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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To The Members of SIS Limited (formerly known as ‘Security and Intelligence Services (India)
Limited’)

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of SIS Limited (formerly known as
‘Security and Intelligence Services (India) Limited’) (hereinafter referred to as “the Company”),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year
ended on that date and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of material accounting
policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the “standalone financial
statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the
“Kct”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the
state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025 and its profit & other comprehensive income, changes
in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (“SAs”) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“the ICAI”) together with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the
Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our
report. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters
below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying standalone financial statements,
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Key Audit Matter

Auditor’s Response

Where the amount of tax payable is uncertain,
the Company establishes provisions based on
management’s judgment of the probable
amount of the future tax liability. The Company
has material certain tax positions including
matters under disputes which
significant judgement to determine
possible outcome of these disputes.

involves
the

In addition, the Company has recognized INR
1,454.47 million of deferred tax assets on March
31, 2025. The recognition of deferred tax assets
involves judgment by management regarding
the likelihood of the realization of these assets.
The expectation that these assets will be
realized is dependent on a number of factors,
including whether there will be sufficient
taxable profits in future periods to support the
utilization of these assets.

For details: - Refer to Note No. 8 to the
Standalone Financial Statements.

+ Discussion with the management on the
development of tax litigations during the year
ended March 31, 2025.

+ Verification that the accounting and/or disclosures
as the case may be in the standalone financial
statements is by the assessment of management/
tax practitioners.

+ Obtaining a representation letter from the

management on the assessment of those matters as

per SA 580 (revised) - written representations.

+ Evaluated the design and tested the operating
effectiveness of key controls implemented by the
Company over recognition of deferred tax assets
based on the assessment of the Company’s ability
to generate sufficient taxable profits in the
foreseeable future allowing the use of deferred tax
assets.

+ Tested the arithmetical accuracy of the calculations
performed by the management.

» Evaluated management’s assessment for adjustment
of such deferred tax assets as per provisions of the
Income-tax Act, 1961 and appropriateness of the
accounting treatment with respect to the
recognition of deferred tax assets as per
requirements of Ind AS 12, Income Taxes.

+ Evaluated the appropriateness of the disclosures
made in the financial statements in respect of
deferred tax assets.

Impairment of Investment in Equity Shares
of companies (Subsidiary/ Joint Ventures) in
the Group

+ As at March 31, 2025, the carrying value of
the Company'’s investments in equity shares
of the wholly owned subsidiary amounted to
INR 5,486.38 Million (before impairment),
which comprises 19.61% of the total assets
of the Company.

* During the year ended March 31, 2025, the
Company has evaluated the indicators of

Rudit Procedures

Our audit procedures in relation to the testing of
Impairment of Investment in subsidiary and joint
ventures included, but were not limited to the
following:

« We obtained an understanding from the
management, assessed and tested the design and
operating effectiveness of the Company’s key
controls over the impairment assessment of such

SIS | Ruditor Report - FY 24-25 (Standalone)
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Key Audit Matter

Ruditor’s Response

impairment on the investment made in the
Group Company, resultant into Provision
for Impairment of INR 31.38 million in Uniq
Security Solutions Private Limited lying in
the standalone financial statements (Refer
Note No. 6 to the Standalone Financial

+ As initial impairment assessment, we compared the

carrying values of the investments in subsidiaries
and joint ventures with their respective net worth
and compared it with the investment in the books of
the Company.

Statements).
+ We evaluated the valuation approach, tested the

methodology and key relevant assumptions
considered for estimating the fair value of company
and also tested the arithmetical accuracy of
calculations.

+ For determining the value in use of the
underlying businesses, discounted cash
flow projections are used which has
sensitivity around the key assumptions,
such as revenue growth, ongoing/ future

projects in hand and discount rates that
+ Besides above, we also evaluated the Company’s

process regarding impairment assessment carried
out by the management expert and basis the
materiality auditor’s expert is being involved, to
assist in assessing the appropriateness of the
valuation model including the independent
assessment of the underlying assumptions relating
to discount rate, terminal value etc.

require considerable judgement.

« We evaluated the disclosures made in the
standalone financial statements. Refer Note No. 6 to
the standalone financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including
Annexures to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s
Information, but does not include the consolidated financial statements, standalone financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon. The other information is expected to be made available to us after the
date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the other information identified above, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement
therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

SIS | Auditor Report - FY 24-25 (Standalone) Page 3 | 15
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Financial

Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance, including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3) (i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether : ] aaterial uncertainty exists related to events
5
A
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or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going

concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’'s report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
company to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the standalone financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (the “Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure A” a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Ozxder.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this report are
in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
anies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.
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e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March
31, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to the financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure B”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the
adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls with
reference to the financial statements.

q) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance
with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in
its standalone financial statements. {Refer Note 34 (b) to the financial statements}.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There is a delay of 54 days in transferring amount worth Rs. 0.22 million, required to be
transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (“IEPF”) by the Company.
{Refer Note 12 to the financial statements}.

iv. a. The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced
or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including
foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b. The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received
by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company
shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (‘“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

SIS | Auditor Report - FY 24-25 (Standalone) Page 6 | 15
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c. Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to
believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 1 1(e), as provided
under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year and until the
date of this report.

Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used an
accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility. The Audit trail feature has operated throughout
the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software and has not been
tampered with and the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the
statutory requirements for records retention.

For S S Kothari Mehta & Co. LLP

Chartered Accoun

tants

Firm’s Registration No.000756N/ N500441

Naveen Aggarwal
Partner

Membership No.094380

UDIN : 25094380BMKXH]2393

Place : New Delhi

Date : May 01, 2025
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ANNEXURE “K” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of
our report to the Members of SIS Limited of even date)

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and the
books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that:

i.

ii.

SIS | Auditor Report - FY 24-25 (Standalone)

In respect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) and Intangible Assets:

a. (B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment and relevant details of
right-of-use assets.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

b. According to the information and explanation provided to us, the Property, Plant & Equipment
and right-of-use assets have been physically verified by the management in phased manner
according to designed program to cover all the assets in period of three (3) years, which in
our opinion is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.
Pursuant to the program, certain PPE and right-of-use were due for the physical verification
during the current financial year and were physically verified by the management. According
to the information and explanation given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on
such verification.

c. According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of
records, we report that, the title deeds of all immovable properties disclosed in the financial
statements included under Property, Plant and Equipment (other than properties where the
Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee)
are held in the name of the Company as at the balance sheet date.

d. According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of
records, the Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including
right-of-use assets) and intangible assets during the year.

e. According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of
records, no proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the
Company as at March 31, 2025 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

(a) As explained to us, physical verification has been conducted by the management at reasonable
intervals during the year in respect of inventory i.e. uniforms and the procedures of physical
verification of inventory followed by the management are reasonable in relation to the size of the
Company and nature of its business. As far as we could ascertain and according to the information and
explanations given to us, no discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate were noticed between
the physical stock and book records.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of records,
the Company has been sanctioned working capital limit against current asset in excess of Rs. 5.00
Crore, in aggregate, from banks. The quarterly returns or statements filed by the Company with such
banks are in agreement with the books of account of the Company.

ol MEX )
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iii.

iv.
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According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the

records of the Company, the Company has made investment in, provided guarantee or security,
granted unsecured loans to companies, firms, limited liability partnership or any other parties during
the year in respect of which the requisite information is set out below. However, there were no
advances in the nature of loans given during the year:

(@) (&)Based on the audit procedures carried on by us and as per the information and explanations
given to us, the Company has not provided any advances in the nature of loans. However, the
Company has given loans or guarantee to subsidiaries which are disclosed hereunder:

(INR in Million)
Particulars Guarantee | Loans
Aggregate amount granted / provided during the year to subsidiaries 17.50 -
Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect of above cases 1,632.50 31.56
to subsidiaries.

(B) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, there are no loans or advances and guarantees or
securities to parties other than subsidiaries, joint venture. Further the Company is not having
any associates during the year.

(b) In our opinion, the investments made, guarantees provided and security given and the terms
and conditions of the grant of all loans and guarantees provided, during the year are, prima
facie, not prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in respect of loans granted by the Company, the schedule of
repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and the repayments or
receipts are regular.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there is no amount overdue in respect of the loans as per the
respective loan agreerments.

() According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there is no loan which has been renewed or extended or fresh
loans granted to settle the overdue of existing loans given to same parties. Hence reporting
under clause 3(iii)(e) is not applicable.

() The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on
demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment during the year. Hence the
reporting under clause 3(iii)(f) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, provisions of Section 185 are not applicable
to the Company. However, the Company has complied with the provisions of Section 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 in respect of loans granted, investments made and guarantees provided, to the
extent applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, during the year the Company has neither

accepted any deposits from the public nor any deposits are outstanding during the year. There are no
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deemed deposits under the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and rules thereunder. Accordingly,

reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

vi. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the requirement of
maintenance of cost records pursuant to Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 prescribed
by the Central Government in terms of sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 are
not applicable to the company. Hence, reporting under clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

vii. According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined

by us, in our opinion:

a. the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues in respect of
provident fund, employees' state insurance, income tax, goods and services tax, service tax,
sales tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material statutory
dues as applicable, with the appropriate authorities with slight delays. There were no
undisputed amounts outstanding at the year-end for a period of more than six months from the
date they became payable.

b. Details of statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) above which have not been deposited as
on March 31, 2025 on account of disputes are given below:
Name of the Period to which | Amount
Nature of Dues Forum where Dispute is Pending the Amount INR (in
statute e—re
Relates million)
Finance Act, 1994 Service tax Appellate Authority - Assistant FY* 2011-12 0.18
Commissioner
Finance Act, 1994 Service tax | Appellate Authority - Commissioner | gy o)1 1.85
Appeal
ity — i FY* 2014-18 & FY
Finance Act, 1994 Service tax Appellate Auth.on.ty iasiSias: & 0.19
Commissioner 2015-16
FY* 2014-15, FY*
Finance Act, 1994 Service tax Appellate Authority — CESTAT, Kolkata 2015-16 & FY* 2016~ 3.46
17
Income tax Act, 1961| Income tax demand Appellate Authority — CIT (&) Fy* 2012-13 4.22
Income tax Act, 1961| Income tax demand Appellate Authority — CIT (A) FY* 2015-16 3.21
Income tax Act, 1961 Income tax demand Appellate Ruthority — CIT (&) FY* 2016-17 3.12
Income tax Act, 1961| Income tax demand Appellate Authority — ITAT (A) FY*2017-18 9.69
Income tax Act, 1961| Income tax demand Appellate Authority — CIT (&) FY* 2021-22 128.29
llate Authority — Assi
GST Act, 2017 GST Appellate Ruthority — Assistant FY* 2017-18 7.19
Commissioner
GST Act, 2017 GST Appellate Authority — Commissioner FY* 2017-18 0.12
Appeals
Appellate Authority — Commissioner FY* 2017-18
29.08
CST Act, 2017 GST Appeals & FY*2018-19
GST Act, 2017 GST Appellate Authority - Commissioner | pyx 50)8.19 34.71
Appeals
GST Act, 2017 GST Appellate Authority — Commissioner FY* 2018-19 3.35
Appeals
— — v = =
GST Act, 2017 GST Appellate Authority — Commissioner FY* 2018-19 & FY 3.00
Appeals 2019-20
GST Act, 2017 GST Appellate Authority — CommissioneT | gy« 5019-20 1.46
SIS | Auditor Report - FY 24-25 (Standalone) Page 10 | 15
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Name of the Period to which | Amount

statute Nature of Dues Forum where Dispute is Pending the Amount INR (in

Relates million)
GST Act, 2017 GST Appellate A“ﬂ:;gza'lsc°mssmner FY* 2019-20 7.72
GST Act, 2017 GST Appellate A“t}:;gza"lsc°"“'“m°“er FY* 2019-20 31.02
GST Act, 2017 GST Appellate Auﬂ:;;:za"lsc°““msm°ner FY* 2019-20 1.33
GST Act, 2017 GST Appellate A“ﬂ:;;tza_lsc°mm°ner FY* 2020-21 0.05
GST Act, 2017 GST fppellate A“ﬂ:;gza_lsc°““'“s‘°ner FY* 2020-21 8.97
GST Act, 2017 GST Appellate Authority - Deputy FY* 2020-21 0.65

Commissioner

viii.

ix.

* FY = Financial Year

There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of
1961).

(a) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of records,
the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of Interest
thereon to any lender and hence, reporting under clause 3(ix)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) Based on the information and explanations obtained by us, the Company has not been declared
wilful defaulter by any bank of financial institution or other lender.

(c) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of records,
the Company has applied the term loans for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

(d) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of records,
funds raised on short-term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term
purposes by the Cormpany.

(e) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of records,
the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations
of its subsidiaries or joint venture. The Company is not having any associate companies during the
year, accordingly, the reporting under this clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable.

(f) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of records,
the Company has raised loansi.e. Non-Convertible Debentures (NCD) during the year on the pledge
of securities held in its subsidiary as per details given below. The Company has not raised any loans
on the pledge of securities held in its joint ventures. Further, the Company is not having any associate
companies during the year.

Nature of | Name of Lender AEmount of | Name of the | Relation Details of
Loan Loan (INR | Subsidiary Security

Taken in million) Pledged

Non- Aditya Birla Sun Life Mutual Fund 875 | Duster Total | Wholly 86% of
Convertible - Solutions owned Investment in
Debentures ICICI Prudential Mutual Fund L6 Private Subsidiary | Equity Shares

Limited of Subsidiary
SIS | Auditor Report - FY 24-25 (Standalone) Page 11 | 15
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xiv.
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5S KOTHARI MEHTA
& CO.LLP

the records, the Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is
not applicable.

management.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of records,
no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 ag
prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central
Government, during the year and upto the date of this report.

(c) We have been informed that there are no whistle blower complaints received by the Company
during the year (and upto the date of this report), while determining the nature, timing and extent of
our audit procedures. Accordingly, the reporting under the clause 3(xi)(c) of the Order is not
applicable.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not
applicable.

In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013
with respect to applicable transactions with the related parties and the details of related party
transactions have been disclosed in the standalone financial statements as required by the applicable
Ind AS (Refer Note No. 39 to the financial statements).

(a) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of records,
in our opinijon the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size and
the nature of its business.

(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the Company
during the year and till date of our report, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit
procedures.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or
persons connected with him. Accordingly, clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable,

(a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act
1934. Accordingly, the provisions of the clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order are not applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records, the Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities.
Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

records, the Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made
by the Reserve Bank of India, accordingly, paragraph 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

records, the Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and
the immediately preceding financial year,

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year, accordingly, reporting under
clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable,

than ongoing Projects requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VI to the Companies Act in
compliance with second Proviso to sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly,
Teporting under clause 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order is not applicable for the year.

For S S Kothari Mehta & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.000756N/ N50044 1

)

Naveen Aggarwal

Partner
Membership No.094380

UDIN : 25094380BMKXH]2393
Place : New Delhj
Date : May 01, 2025
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
ANNEXURE ‘B’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report to the Members of SIS Limited of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements under Clause (i) of
sub- section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Hct”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of SIS LIMITED
(formerly known as ‘Security and Intelligence Services (India) Limited’) (the “Company”) as of March
31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the
year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

Page 14 | 15
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to the financial statements

effectively as at March 3 1, 2025, based on the criteria for internal financial control with reference to financial
statements established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAI.

For S S Kothari Mehta & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 000756N/ N500441

N

Naveen Aggarwal

Partner
Membership No.094380
UDIN : 25094380BMKXH12393
Place : New Delhi

Date : May 01, 2028
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SIS LIMITED (formerly known as ‘Security and Intelligence Services (India) Limited’)

R R R R e e ———————————————

All amounts in INR million, unless stated otherwise

Standalone Balance Sheet

Particulars Note No. As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
A |ASSETS
Non — current assets
Property, plant and equipment 4 1,792.86 1,859.52
Capital work-in-progress 4 8.78 1.84
Other intangible asscts 5 206.97 246.55
Intangible assets under development 5 20.67 12.88
Financial assets
(1) Investments 6 5,920.81 5,895.69
(ii) Loans 7a 31.56 31.56
(iti) Other financial assets 7 178.68 266.16
Deferred tax assets (net) 8 1,454 .47 1,680.38
Income tax asscts (net) 8 1,663.58 1,972.11
Other non — current assets 9 99.19 51.70
Total non — current assets 11,377.57 12,018.39
Current assets
Inventories 10 154.69 180.33
Financial assets
(i) Investments 6 75.00 50.00
(ii) Trade receivables 11 6,849.70 7,959.26
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 12 1,348.22 1,132.08
(iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above 12 3,745.17 289.64
(v) Loans 7a - 91.90
(vi) Other financial assets ] 3,454.97 3,306.88
Other current asscts 9 975.39 843.28
Total current assets 16,603.14 13,853.37
Total assets 27.980.71 25.871.76
B |EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 13 721.84 720.50
Other equity 14 10,750.61 9,569.32
Total equity 11,472.45 10,289.82
Liabilities
Non — current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 15 3,365.50 2,539.10
(ia) Lease liabilities 16 566.96 538.00
(ii) Other non-currcnt financial liabilitics 18 6.88 5.15
Provisions 21 1,075.38 942.90
Total non-current liabilities 5,014.72 4,025.15




SIS LIMITED (formerly known as ‘Security and Intelligence Services (India) Limited’)
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All amounts in INR million, unless stated otherwise

Particulars Note No. As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

Current liabilities

Financial liabilitics

(i) Borrowings 15 5,218.50 6,006.35
(i2) Leasc liabilities 16 151.67 125.75
(ii) Trade payables
(a) Total outstanding ducs of micro cnterprises and small enterprises 17 53.00 39.10
ii)(j”l;;)nt:iloci.:ts;z::;f ducs of creditors other than micro enterpriscs 17 280.00 226.99
(iii) Other current financial liabilitics 18 4,083.24 3,592.71
Other current liabilities 22 1,415.48 1,309.92
Provisions 21 291.65 255.97
Total current liabilities 11,493.54 11,556.79
Total liabilities 16,508.26 15,581.94
Total equity and liabilities 27.980.71 25,871.76

The accompanying notes 1 to 42 form an integral part of these standalone financial statements.

As per our report of even date
For S S Kothari Mehta & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration. No. 000756 ;
A
’y 4
w . '

Naveen Aggarwal ituraj Kishorce Sinha Arvind Kumar Prasad

(Partncr) Managing Dircctor Dircctor ~ Finance
Membership No. 094380 (DIN: 0047372 (DIN: 02865273)
e
rd s Wl B
) F A2569 N .
Place: New Delhi ( O'il-_ _)C’ 29 \ A Brajesh Kumar Pushpalatha Katkuri V.
Date: May 1,2025 whia, Phase-l, }* Chief Financial Officer Company Seereta

Ps!hi—’l'lOOZO IS |

Y
011

07148464



SIS LIMITED (formerly known as ‘Security and Intelligence Services (India) Limited”)
: )
All amounts in INR million, except share data

Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss

Year ended
S No [Particulars Note No.
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Income
| a) Revenue from operations 23 49,310.39 45,412.58
b) Other income 24 365.01 837.33
¢) Other gain/(loss) 25 24.16 2.94
Total Income (2 + b+ ¢) 49,699.56 46,252.85
Expcnses
a)  Purchases of inventory 415.51 699.30
b) Changes in inventory 26 25.64 (29.76)
) c) Employee benefits expense 27 4323587 39,715.77
d) Finance costs 29 888.38 877.35
e) Depreciation and amortisation expenses 30 690.13 736.91
f) Impairment in value of investment 6 31.38 -
g) Other cxpenses 31 2,852.56 2,357.11
Total expenses (2 +b+c+d+e+f+g) 48,139.47 44,356.68
3 |Profit before exceptional items and tax (1-2) 1,560.09 1,896.17
4 |Exceptional itcms - -
5 |Profit before tax (3-4) 1,560.09 1,896.17
6 |Tax expense / (eredit)
a) Current tax 8 - 16.70
b) Deferred tax 8 272.59 8.58
Total tax expense / (credit) . 272.59 25.28
7 |Profit for the year (5-6) 1,287.50 1,870.89
8 |Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
a) Re-mcasurement of defined bencfits plan 27 (185.45) 347
b) Income tax rclating to thesc items 8 46.68 (0.87)
Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year (net of taxes) (138.77) 2.60
Total comprehensive income for the vear (7+8) 1,148.73 1.873.49
10 |Earnings per share (EPS) (face value INR 5 per share) 32
(a) Basic (INR) 8.93 12.87
(b) Diluted (INR) 8.88 12.77
11 |Weighted average equity shares used in compuling eamings per equily share 32
(a) Basic (Nos.) 14,41,50,826 14,53,44,093
(b) Diluted (Nos.) 14,50,56,778 14,65,50,084

The accompanying notes 1 to 42 form an integral part of these standalone financial statements.

As per our report of even date
For S S Kothari Mehta & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartcred Accountants ‘
W \A M \

(Firm’s Registration. No. 0007567
Arvind Kumar Prasad
Managing Dircctor Director — Finance

(DIN: 0047325 (DIN: 02865273)

KR

\asll 2y
\ Brajesh Kumar Pushpalatha Katkyri =

..\ Chicf Financial Officer Company Scereta
1

Naven Aggarwal
(Partner)
Membership No. 094380

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 1, 2025



SIS LIMITED (formerly known as ‘Security and Intelligence Services (India) Limited”)
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All amounts in INR million, unless stated otherwise

Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity

A. Equity Share Capital
Year ended March 31, 2025

Particulars As at April 1, OM__N“wMu:_MﬁM._—__.“NmH” 4 Restated balance as on | Changes during the | As at March 31,
teu 2024 B RAESIE April 1,2024 year 2025
errors
Equity Share Capital 720.50 - 720.50 1.34 721.84
Year ended March 31, 2024
in Eoni
Particula As at April 1, OM-.WMWM:.MSQ—MNmM”M d Restated balance as on | Changes during the | As at March 31,
r 2023 P PHOSE April 1, 2023 year 2024
errors
Equity Share Capital 728.65 - 728.65 (8.15) 720.50
B. Other Equity
Year ended March 31, 2025
R d 1 h
eserves and surplus Other reserves Share
. Capital application Total other
Particulars it ; P ] .
mmo.:.“:nw General reserve Retained earnings m:.nx. options redemption | Money pending equity
premium outstanding account ety allotment
As at April 1, 2024 1,423.74 571.96 7,151.63 391.45 24.54 - 9,569.32
Profit for the year . - 1,287.50 - E - 1,287.50
Other comprehensive income / (loss) - - (138.77) - - - (138.77)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 1,148.73 - - - 1,148.73
Employcc sharc-based payment cxpense - - - 31.93 - - 31.93
Share application money received during the year - = - - - 1.80 1.80
[ssucd on exercisc of stock options (refer note 28) 95.94 - - (95.94) - 117 1.17)
Stock options forfeited / lapsed - 297 - (2.97) - - -
As at March 31, 2025 1,519.68 580.93 8,300.36 324.47 24.54 0.63 10,750.61




SIS LIMITED (formerly known as ‘Security and Intelligence Services (India) Limited’)

%

All amounts in INR million, unless stated otherwise

Year ended March 31, 2024

Reserves and surplus Other reserves
Share
Particulars mmnE.mzom General reserve Retained earnings mncn_n.ev tions _,QMM.M”M_.:_ EMMMWMM”MM:W .Ho“—:whw "
premium outstanding account reserve allotment
As at April 1, 2023 2,334.27 566.47 5,485.90 334.87 16.36 - 8,737.87
Profit for the year - - 1,870.89 - - - 1,870.89
Other comprehensive income / (loss) - - 2.60 - - - 2.60
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 1,873.49 - - - 1,873.49
Employee share-based payment expense - - - 70.68 - - 70.68
Buyback of equity shares, including tax thereon (900.00) - (207.76) - 8.18 - (1,099.58)
“Mo_.,mmvmn:o: cost related to buyback of equity shares (net of (13.14) R R ) ~ B (13.14)
Share application money received during the year - ] - - - 0.02 0.02
Issued on exercise of stock options (refer note 28) 2.61 - - (2.61) - (0.02) (0.02)
Stock options forfeited / lapsed - 11.49 - (11.49) - - -
As at March 31, 2024 1,423.74 577.96 7,151.63 39145 24.54 - 9,569.32

The accompanying notes 1 to 42 form an integral part of these standalone financial statements.

As per our report of even date
For S S Kothari Mehta & Co. LLP
Chartcred Accountants

(Firm’s Registration. No. 00075 500441)

Naveen Apgarwal
(Partner)
Membership No. 094380

Place: New Delhi
Datc: May 1, 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

(DIN: 0047725

BrajeshAlumar

Chicf Financial Officcr

ng Director

R

Arvind Kumar Prasad
Director — Finance
(DIN: 02865273)

Pushpalatha K. w:ﬂf -

Company Sceretary




SIS LIMITED (formerly known as ‘Security and Intelligence Services (India) Limited’)
#
All amounts in INR million, unless stated otherwise

Standalone Statement of Cash Flows

i Year ended
S No |Particulars
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
A. |CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax 1,560.09 1,896.17
Adjusted for:
Depreciation and amortization expenses 690.13 736.91
Unrealised foreign exchange (gain) / loss 0.03 (0.43)
Net (gain) / loss on salc of property, plant and cquipment (3.34) (1.72)
Finance costs 888.38 877.35
Intercst income (357.84) (174.96)
Allowance for expected credit loss 143.12 129.60
Dividend income (7.17) (662.37)
Employee stock option compensation expense 24.99 45.66
Impairment in value of investment 31.38 -
Operating profit / (loss) before changes in working capital 2,969.77 2,846.21
Changes in working capital:
Deercase / (incrcasc) in trade receivables 966.44 (1,225.80)
Decrease / (increase) in inventories 25.65 29.77)
Decrease / (increase) in other current assets (114.07) (195.12)
Decrease / (increase) in other current financial assets (45.01) (451.91)
(Decrease) / increase in trade payables 66.90 41,92
(Decrease) / increase in provisions (17.28) 211.38
(Decrease) / increase in other current liabilitics 114.66 110.39
(Decrease) / increase in other current financial liabilitics 480,02 421.83
Decrease / (increase) in other non-current financial assets 16.70 115.89
(Decrease) / increase in other non-current financial liabilities (2.80) 4.71
Cash (uscd in) / generated from operations 4,460.98 1,849.73
Direct tax (paid), net of refunds 275.71 (783.85)
Net cash inflow / (outfMlow) from operating activities 4,736.69 1,065.88
B. |CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property, plant & equipment and intangible assets (including Capital work in
progress/intangible assets under development) (47334) (881.01)
Procceds from sale / disposal of property, plant and cquipment 39.07 14.82
Investment in subsidiary (refer notc 6) - (30.10)
Other investments made (108.61) (34.99)
Redemption of Non-convertible debentures issued 50.00 50.00
Investment in fixed deposits e (4,944.59) (651.23)
Redemption of fixed deposits 1,560.94 945.22
Interest received 318.87 161.56
Dividend received 7.17 662.37
Net cash inflow / (outflow) from investing activities i (3.550.49) 236.64




SIS LIMITED (formerly known as ‘Security and Intelligence Services (India) Limited’)

Tl ——————————

All amounts in INR million, unless stated otherwise

Year ended
S No |Particulars
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
C. |CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of sharc capital (net of share issuc expenses) 1.34 0.03
Buyback of equity shares including transaction cost and tax - (1,120.90)
Application money received on pending allotment 0.64 -
Proceeds from term loans 199.75 626.82
Repayment of term loans (991.18) (327.01)
Bonds/debentures issued 2,500.00 -
Interest paid (811.75) (793.88)
Payment of leasc liabilitics (216.35) (185.06)
Net cash inflow / (outflow) from financing activities 682.45 (1.800.00)
D. |Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 1,868.65 (497.48)
E. |Cash and cash cquivalents at the beginning of the year 1,132.08 1,002.49
F. |Cash credit at the beginning of the year (5,042.16) (4,415.09)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (D+E+F) (2,041.43) (3,910.08)
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per the statement of the cash flows
Cash and cash equivalents as per above comprisc of the following: March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Cash and cash equivalenis 1,348.22 1,132.08
Cash credit (3,389.65) (5,042.16)
Balances as per statement of cash flows (2,041.43) (3,910.08)

Refer note 40 for reconciliation of liabilities whose cash flow movements are disclosed as part of financing activities in the standalone statement of

cash flows.

The accompanying notes 1 to 42 form an intcgral part of these standalone financial statements.

Ry

As per our report of even date
For 8 S Kothari Mehta & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration. No. (00756NG

e

Naveen Agparwal

(Partner)
Membership No. 094380 = ‘.‘_‘;‘\-,\ (DIN: 00477256)
7 A28229 \et)
Place: New Delhi (/r\ f ]\O:;hléalpl ase-l, | Brajtsh Kumar
Date: May 1, 2025 elhi ’0020 C Chicf Financial Officer

\Tel01-

ura) Kishore Sinha
Managing Dircctor

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Director — Finance
(DIT\ 02865273)

Arvind Kumar Prasad

Pushpalatha Katkuj%:

Company Sccretary
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All amounts in INR million, unless stated otherwise

Notes to the financial statements

1. Company overview

SIS Limited (“the Company™) is a company limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled in India. The Company is listed on the BSE Limited (“BSE”)
and The National Stock Exchange of India Limited (“NSE”). Its registered office is situated at Annapuma Bhawan, Telephone Exchange Road, Kurji,
Patna, Bihar — 800010, India, and its principal place of business is situated at A-28 & 29, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase I, New Delhi — 110020

The name of the Company has been changed to ‘SIS Limited® from ‘Security and Intelligence Services (India) Limited’ and a fresh certificate of
incorporation in the name of *SIS Limited was issued by the Registrar of Companies on January 13, 2021.

The Company is directly and indirectly engaged in rendering security and related services consisting of manned guarding, training, and indirectly engaged
in paramedic and emergency response services; loss prevention, asset protection and mobile patrols; facility management services consisting of cleaning,
house-keeping and pest control management services in the arcas of facility management; cash logistics services consisting of cash-in-transit, ATM cash
replenishiment activities and secure transportation of precious items and bullion; and alarm monitoring and response services consisting of trading and
installation of electronic security devices and systems through its subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates.

These standalone financial statements (herein after referred to as “financial statement”) were authorised for issue by the directors on May 01, 2025.

2. Basis of preparation / measurement and Material accounting policies
This note provides a list of material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statemments.

2.1 Basis of preparation

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind-AS) and other applicable provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Companies Act”) and guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI). The Ind-AS are notified under Section
133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) and are rounded off to the nearest millions (*Mn’) except per share data and unless stated
otherwise. Due to rounding off, the numbers presented throughout the document may not add up precisely to the totals and percentages may not precisely
reflect the absolute figures. The figures which are appearing as ‘0’are the result of rounding off.

2.2 Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on an accrual and going concem basis, except for the items where the
relevant Ind AS requires the financial instruments to be classified as fair value through profit or loss (‘FVTPL’) and are measured at fair value, including
the following material items:

a) certain financial assets and financial liabilities (including derivative financial instruments) and contingent consideration that are measured at fair value;
b) assets held for distribution to owners upon demerger that are held at lower of carrying cost and fair value less cost to distribute;

c) share based payments; and

d) The defined benefit asset/(liability) which is recognised as the present value of defined benefit obligation less fair value of plan assets.

Accounting policies have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these financial statements.

The financial statements are based on the classification provisions contained in Ind AS 1, ‘Presentation of Financial Statements” and division Il of
schedule I1I of the Companies Act 2013, For the purpose of clarity, various items are aggregated in the statements of profit and loss and balance sheet.
These items are disaggregated separately in the notes to the financial statements, where applicable or required.

Fair value measurement

The Company records certain financial assets and liabilities at fair value on a recurring basis. The Company determines fair value based on the price it
would receive to sell an asset or pay to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date and either in the
principal market or in the absence of a principal market, most advantageous market for that asset or liability.

Fair value hierarchy

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using
quoted prices. This includes listed equity instruments, bonds and debentures and mutual funds that have a quoted price. The fair value of all
financial instruments which are traded on the stock exchanges is valued using the closing price as at the reporting period.

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly
(i.e. derived from prices). The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques
which maximize the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to
fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). If one or more of the significant inputs is
not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity / preference securities included
in level 3.

In accordance with Ind-AS 113, ‘Fair value measurement’, assets and liabilities are to be measured based on the following valuation techniques:

()  Market approach — Prices and other relevant information generated by market transactions involving identical or comparable assets or
liabilities.

(i)  Income approach — Converting the future amounts based on market cxpectations to its present valuc using the discounting method.

(iii)  Cost approach — Replaccment cost method.
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2.3 Summary of material accounting policies
a) Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the standalone balance sheet based on current / non-current classification. An asset is classified as current

when it is:

(i)  Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle;

(ii)  Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

(iti) Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or

(iv) Cash or cash equivalent unless the asset is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period;

All other assets arc classificd as non-current.

A liability is current when it is:

(i)  Expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle;

(ii)  Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

(iii) Due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

(iv) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period. Terms of a liability that
could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments, do not affect its classification.

The Company classifics all other liabilitics as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has
identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

b) Property, plant and equipment
Recognition and measurement

An item is recognised as an asset, if and only if; it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and
its cost can be measured reliably. Property, plant and equipment under construction and cost of assets not ready for use at the year-end are disclosed as
capital work-in-progress (‘CWIP’).

Items of property, plant and equipment (‘PPE’) and CWIP are initially recognised at cost. Freehold land is carried at historical cost. All items of property,
plant and equipment arc measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, ifany, Cost comprises the purchase price, asset retirement
obligation and costs directly attributable towards bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use. Any trade discounts and rebates arc
deducted in arriving at the purchase price. General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the construction of a qualifying asset are
capitalized as part of the cost.

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of property, plant and equipment is added to its carrying value or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits attributable to such subsequent cost associated with the item, will flow to the Group. The carrying
amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is de-recognised when replaced. All other expenses on existing items of property, plant and
equipment, including day-to-day repairs, maintenance expenditure and cost of replacing parts, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the
year during which such expenses are incurred.

Advances given towards purchase of an item of property, plant and equipment or CWIP outstanding as at each balance sheet date arc disclosed under
other non-financial assets.

Depreciation
The Company depreciates property, plant and equipment over the estimated useful lives using the written down value method from the date the assets
are available for use.

The estimated useful lives of assets are as follows:

Category Useful life

Buildings 60 years

Plant and machinery 5 to 15 years

Leasehold improvement Shorter of useful life or lease period
Computer equipment 3 years

Fumiture and fixtures 10 years

Office Equipment 5 years

Vehicles 3 to § years

Based on technical assessment, the useful lives as given above best represent the period over which the management expects to use these assets. The
estimated useful lives for these assets may therefore be different from the useful lives prescribed under Part C of Schedule I of the Companies Act 2013.

The residual values are generally not more than 5% of the original cost of the asset. The asset’s residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation
of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Where, during any financial year, any addition has been made to any asset, or where any asset has been sold, discarded, demolished or destroyed, or
significant components replaced; depreciation on such assets is calculated on a pro rata basis as individual assets with specific useful lifc from thc month
of such addition or, as the casc may be, up to the month on which such asset has been sold, discarded, demolished or destroyed or replaced

Derecognition

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part, initially recognised, is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is recognised in the standalone statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.
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¢) Intangible assets
Recognition and measurement

Intangible assets are recognised when the Company controls the asset, and it is probable that future economic benefits attributed to the asset will flow to
the Company and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at historical
cost. The cost of intangible asscts acquired in a business combination is their fair valu at the date of acquisition.

Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumnulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost
comprises the purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use. Internally generated intangibles,
excluding capitalised software development costs, are not capitalised and the related expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the
cxpenditure is incurred,

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the probable future economic benefits from the specific asset to which it relates.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic
life on a straight line method effective from the financial year 2024-25 (written down value method till financial year 2023-24) and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life arc reviewed at least at the end of cach reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected
pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are accounted by modifying the amortisation period or method, as appropriate,
and are Ireated as changes in accounting estimates and adjusted accordingly. The amortisation expense on intangible assels with finite lives is recognised
in the standalone statement of profit and loss.

The estimated useful lives of intangible assets are as follows:

Category Useful life

Computer software 5 years

Customer contracts Expected contract duration

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal procecds and the carrying
amount of the asset and arc recogniscd in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is derccognised.

Software

Costs incurred in developing products or systems and costs incurred in acquiring software and licenses that will contribute to probable future economic
benefits through revenue generation and/or cost reduction are capitalised to software and systems. Costs capitalised include external direct costs of
materials, services, and direct payroll and related costs of employees' time spent on the project.

License & franchise:
Licenses & franchise fees are amortized commencing from the date when license & franchise fees are available for intended use.

d) Investment in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures
A subsidiary is an entity over which the Company has control. The Company controls an investee entity when it is exposed to or has rights to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity.

An associate is an entity over which the Company has significant influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control of those policies. This is generally the case where the Company holds between 20% to
50% of the voting rights.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint
venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which cxists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require the unanimous consent of the partics sharing control.

The considerations made in determining whether significant influence or joint control exist are similar to those necessary to determine control over the
subsidiaries.

Investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures are accounted for at cost less impairment loss, if any. The said investments are tested for
impairment whenever circumstances indicate that their carrying value may exceed the recoverable amount.

e) Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives risc to a financial assct of one entity and a financial liability or cquity instrument of another cntity.
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assels

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component are measured
at transaction price. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in
the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measur t

For purposes of subsequent measurcment, financial asscts are classificd in below catcgorics:

(i)  Financial assets at amortised cost

(iiy  Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

(i) Financial assets derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
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Financial assets at amortised cost

A ‘financial assct’ is measurcd at the amortised cost if both the following conditions arc met:

(i)  The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

(i)  Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal
amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. EIR is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset.
When calculating EIR, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example,
prepayments, extensions call and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The interest income based on EIR is included as interest
income as a part of other income in the standalone statement of profit and loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in profit or loss. A
gain or loss on such financial asset which is not part of 2 hedging relationship is recognised in profit or loss when the assct is derccognised. This category
generally applies to trade and other receivables.

Financial assets at FVTOCI

A ‘“financial asset’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

(i)  The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets, and
(ii)  The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPL

Financial assets included within the FVTOCI category are measured as at cach reporting date at fair valuc. Fair valuc movements are recognised in the
other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Company recognizes interest income calculated using the EIR method, impairment losses & reversals
and foreign exchange gain or loss in the profit or loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL
FVTPL is a residual category for financial assets. Any financial asset, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as
FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a financial asset, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However,
such election is made only if doing so reduces or climinates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’).

Financial assets included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognised in the profit or loss in respect of such assets
that are not part of a hedging relationship. The gain /loss on assets measured at FVTPL are presented in the standalone statement of profit and loss within
other gains/losses in the period in which it arises. Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income.

Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind-AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading and contingent consideration
recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind-AS 103 applies are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the
Company may make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes such
clection on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognised
in the OCL There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to profit or loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the
cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with gain/loss presented in the standalone statement of profit and loss
within other gains/losses in the period in which it arises.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed

from the Company’s standalone balance sheet) when:

(i)  The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

(ii) The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either () the Company has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognised.
Similarly, where the Company retains control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing involvement in
the financial asset.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognizes loss allowances on a forward-looking basis using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets which are not
fair valued through profit or loss. Lifetime ECL allowance is recognised for trade receivables with no significant financing component. For all
other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant increase in credit
risk from initial recognition in which case they are measured at lifetime ECL. How the Company determines whether there has been a significant increase
in the credit risk has been detailed in the notes to the financial statements. The amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the
loss allowance at the reporting date is recogniscd in the standalone statement of profit and loss.
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Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, borrowings, payables, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. :

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.
The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafis, financial guarantee contracts and
derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments, if any entered into by the Company, that are not designated
as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind-AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading
unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses on linbilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the initial datc of recognition, and only
if the critcria in Ind-AS 109 arc satisfied. For liabilitics designated as FVTPL, fair valuc gains/losses attributable to changes in own credit risk arc
recognised in OCI. These gains/losses are not subsequently transferred to profit or loss. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or
loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Borrowings

After initial recognition, borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and
the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowing using the EIR method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan
facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee
is deferred until the draw down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or alt of the facility will be drawn down, the fee
is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Preference shares which are mandatorily redecmable are classificd as liabilitics. The dividends on these prefercnce shares, to the extent such dividends
are mandatorily payable, are recognised in profit or loss as finance costs.

The fair value of the liability portion of an optionally convertible debenture/ bond/ preference share or a zero-coupon debenture/ bond/ preference share
or compulsorily convertible debenture/preference shares where the price of conversion of the debenture/preference shares into equity share is not fixed,
is determined using a market rate of interest for an equivalent non-convertible bond. This amount is recorded as a liability on an amortised cost basis
until extinguished on conversion or redemption of the bonds. The remainder of the proceeds is attributable to the equity portion of the compound financial
instrument. This is recognised and included in shareholders’ equity, net of income tax effects, and not subsequently remeasured.

When the terms of a financial liability are renegotiated and the entity issucs equity instrument to a creditor to extinguish all or part of a liability (dcbt for
equity swap), a gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss, which is measured as the difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability and
the fair value of the equity instrument issued.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months
after the reporting period. Where there is a breach of a material provision of 2 long-term loan arrangement on or before the end of the reporting period
with the effect that the liability becomes payable on demand on the reporting date, the entity does not classify the liability as current, if the lender agreed,
after the reporting period and before the approval of the financial statements for issue, not to demand payment as a consequence of the breach.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issucd by the Company arc those contracts that requirc a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a financial assct. Financial guarantce contracts arc
recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee, with
corresponding increase in investment in subsidiary. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as
per impairment requirements of Ind-AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumnulative amortisation.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. The difference between the carrying
amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets
transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as other gains/ losses. When an cxisting financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is
treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised
in the standalone statement of profit and loss as other gains/losses.

Reclassification of financial assets

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition, no reclassification is made for
financial assets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are financial assets, a reclassification is made only if
there is a change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The Company’s senior
management determines changes in the business model as a result of external or internal changes which are significant to the Company’s operations.
Such changes arc evident to extcrnal parties. A change in the business model occurs when the Company cither begins or ceases to perform an activity
that is significant to its operations. If the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applics the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date
which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period following the change in business model. The Company does not restate any previously
recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest.
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Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial asscts and financial liabilities arc offset, and the nct amount is reported in the standalonc balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. The
legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default,
insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company of the counterparty.

f) Trade receivables
Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component are recognised initially at transaction price and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment (allowance for expected credit loss).

g) Current and deferred tax
Income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the applicable tax rate adjusted by
changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Current tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of tax laws cnacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It cstablishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to tax authorities.

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or payables in the standalone balance
sheet.

Effective from April 1, 2019, the Company has adopted the option of lower effective corporate tax rate of 25.17% (including surcharge and cess), as per
Section 115BAA of Income Tax Act.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the financial statements at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

(i)  When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination that, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

(i)  In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiarics, associates and inlerests in joint ventures, when the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred
tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

(i)  When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary differcnee arises from the initial recognition of an assct or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination that, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

(i)  Tn respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax
assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date
and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. The effect of changes in tax rates on deferred
income tax assets and liabilities is recognised as income or expense in the period that includes the enactment or the substantive enactment date.

Deferred tax asscts and deferred tax liabilitics arc offsct if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

h) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the standalone balance sheet comprise cash on hand, balance with bank and short-term deposits with an original maturity
of three months or less, which are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and cash equivalents and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value.

For the purposc of the standalone statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, balance with bank and shart-term deposits,
as defined above, net of oufstanding bank overdrafts (including cash credit facilities) as they are considercd an integral part of the Company's cash

management. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the standalone balance sheet.

i) Equity share capital
Equity shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
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j) Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilitics for goods and scrvices provided to the Company prior to the end of the financial ycar which are unpaid. The amounts
arc unsccured and are usually paid within 30 to 90 days of recognition. Trade and other payables arc presented as current liabilitics unlcss payment is
not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

k) Provisions and contingencies

Provisions

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present legal or a constructive obligation as a result of past event and it is probable that an outflow
of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are recognised for legal claims and
service warranties. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where therc are a number of similar obligations, the likclihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the class of
obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations
“ may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of
the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the present value is the pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in provision due to the passage of time is recognised as an interest expense.

These are reviewed at cach balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best cstimates. In respect of losses that arc covered by insurance, such
Tosses arc recognised as an expense when there is clear cvidence or determination or probability that any portion of the loss is not expected to be settled
through insurance or other forms of recovery.

Asset Retirement Obligations (ARO)

ARO are recognised for those operating lease arrangements where the Company has an obligation at the end of the lease period to restore the leased
premises in a condition similar to inception of lease. ARO are provided at the present value of expected costs to settle the obligation and are recognised
as part of the cost of that particular asset and amortised or depreciated in the same manner as the asset to which it pertains. The estimated future costs of
decommissioning are reviewed annually and any changes in the estimated future costs or in the discount rate applied are adjusted from the cost of the
asset.

Contingent liabilities and Contingent assets

Contingent liabilitics are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past cvents, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the
oceurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises
from past events where it is cither not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle, or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be
made. Contingent asset is not recognised and is disclosed only where an inflow of economic benefits are probable.

Contingent liabilities recognised in a busi combination

A contingent liability recognised in a business combination is initially measured at its fair value. Subsequently, it is measured at the higher of the amount
that would be recognised in accordance with the requirements for provisions above or the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative
amortisation recognised in accordance with the requirements for revenue recognition.

1) Revenue recognition R

Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured at the amount of transaction price (net of variable consideration) allocated to that
performance obligation. The transaction price of goods sold and services rendered is net of variable consideration on account of various discounts and
schemes offered by the Company as part of the contract. Revenue is recognised when the control is transferred to the customer and when the Company
has completed its performance obligations under the contracts.

At the inception of the new contractual arrangement with the customer, the Company identifies the performance obligations inherent in the agreement.
The terms of the contracts are such that the services to be rendered represent a series of services that are substantially the same with the same pattern of
the transfer to the customer.

Revenue is recognised as follows:

(i)  Revenue from services represents the amounts receivable for services rendered.

(i)  For contract-based business (Expressed or implied), revenue represents the sales value of work carried out for customers during the period. Such
revenues are recognised in the period in which the service is rendered.

(ili) Unbilled revenue (contract assets) net of expected deductions is recognised at the end of each period. Such unbilled revenue is reversed in the
subsequent period when actual invoice is raised.

(iv) Uneamed income (contract liabilities) represents revenue billed but for which services have not yet been performed. The same is released to the
standalone statement of profit and loss as and when the services are rendered.

(v)  Revenue from the use of assets such as rent for using property, plant and equipment is recognised on a straight-line basis over the terms of the
related leases unless payments are structured to increase in line with the expected general inflation to compensate for the lessors’ cxpected
inflationary cost increase.

Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the control of goods has been transferred, being when the products are delivered to the buyer, the
buyer having the full discretion over the use of the goods and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the buyer’s acceptance of the product.
Delivery occurs when the products have been shipped to the specific location, the risks of obsolescence and loss have been transferred to the buyer, and
either the buyer has accepted the products in accordance with the sales contract, the acceptance provisions have lapsed, or the Company has objective
evidence that all criteria for acceptance have been satisfied. Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable, net of returns and allowances, trade discounts and volume rebates. Discounts and rebates are estimated based on accumulated experience.
The Company provide normal warranty provisions for general repairs for one ycar on all its products sold, in line with the industry practicc. A liability
is recognised at the time the product is sold. Revenue is deferred and recognised on a straight-line basis over the extended warranty period in case
warranty is provided to customer for a period beyond one year.
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Rendering of services

In contracts invelving the rendering of services, revenuc is measurcd using the proportionate completion method when no significant uncertainty cxists
regarding the amount of the consideration that will be derived from rendering the service. When the contract outcome cannot be measured reliably,
revenue is recognised only to the extent that the expenses incurred are eligible to be recovered.

Estimates of revenue, costs or extent of progress towards completion are revised if circumstances change. Any resulting increases or decreases in
estimated revenue or costs are reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the circumstances that give rise to the revision become known to the
management.

Multiple-element arrangements
When a sales arrangement contains multiple elements, such as services, material and maintenance, revenue for each element is determined based on

cach element’s fair value.

Revenuc recognition for delivered clements is limited to the amount that is not contingent on the future delivery of products or services, futurc
performance obligations or subject to customer-specified retumn or refund privileges.

The undiscounted cash flows from the arrangement are periodically estimated and compared with the unamortized costs. If the unamortized costs
exceed the undiscounted cash flow, a loss is recognised.

Interest income

For all financial asscts measured cither at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income, interest income is recorded using the
effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or reccipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When
calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument
(for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included in other
income in the standalone statement of profit and loss.

Dividends
Dividend income from investments is recognised in profit or loss as other income when the Company’s right to receive payments is established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Company, and amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Rental income

Rental income arising from operating leases on investment propertics is accounted for on 2 straight-line basis over the leasc term unless payments arc
structured to increase in line with the expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increase and is included in
revenue in the statement of profit or loss due to its operating nature.

m) Employee benefits

The Company’s employee benefits mainly include wages, salaries, bonuses, compensated absences, defined contribution to plans, defined benefit plans
and share-based payments. The employee berefits are recognised in the year in which the associated services are rendered by the employees of the
Company.

Short-term obligations

Liabilitics for wages and salarics, including non-monctary benefits and compensated abscnces that are cxpected to be scttled within twelve months after
the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect of employees' services up to reporting date and are
measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liability for compensated absences is recognised in the provision for
employee benefits. All other short-term employee benefit obligations are presented as employee benefits payable under other financial liabilities, current.

Bonus
The Company recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses. The Company recognises a provision where contractually or legally obliged or where
there is a past practice that has created a constructive obligation.

Compensated absences/Leave obligations

The cmployces of the Company are cntitled to compensated absences which are both accumulating and non-accumulating in naturc. The employecs
can carry forward up to a specificd portion of the unutilized accumulated compensated absences and utilize it in futurc periods or receive cash at
retirement. The expected cost of accumulating compensated absences is determined by actuarial valuation (using the projected unit credit method)
based on the additional amount expected to be paid as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the balance sheet date. The
expense of non-accumulating compensated absences is recognised in the standalone statement of profit and loss in the year in which the absences
occur. Re-measurements arising out of actuarial gains / losses are immediately taken into the standalone statement of profit and loss and are not deferred.

In respect of those employees who are entitled to an encashment of the leave at the end of every calendar year, a provision is created to account for the
liability.

The obligations arc presented as current liabilities in the standalone balance sheet if the entity docs not have an unconditional right to defer settlement
for at least twelve months after the reporting date, regardless of when the actual settlement is expected to occur.

Post-employment obligations

The Company operates the following post-employment schemes:

i) Defined contribution plans such as provident fund and employees’ state insurance; and
ii) Defined benefit plans such as gratuity.

Defined contribution plan
The Company’s policy to contributc on a defined contribution basis for eligible employces, to Employces’ Provident Fund, Employecs’ Pension Scheme
and Employees’ Statc Insurance Scheme towards post-croployment benefits, all of which are administered by the respective Government authorities, and
has no further obligation beyond making its contribution which is expected in the year in which it pertains. The contributions are accounted for as defined
contribution plans and the contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset
to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.
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Defined benefit plan

The Company has a defincd benefit plan, viz., Gratuity, for all its employees, the liability for which is accrued and provided for as dctermined by an
independent actuarial valuation. A portion of this liability for gratuity is contributed to a fund administered and operated by a reputed insurance company.
The liability or asset recognised in the standalone balance sheet in respect of gratuity plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the
end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit is actuarially determined (using the projected unit credit method) at the
end of each year.

Present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields on
government bonds at the end of the reporting periods that have approximately similar terms to the related obligation.

The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the standalone statement of profit and loss:
(i)  Secrvice costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routinc scttlements; and
(ii)  Net interest cxpensc or income

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:
(i)  The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
(ii)  The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs.

The net interest is calculated by applying the above-mentioned discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligations and the fair value of
plan assets. This cost is included in the cmployee benefits expense in the standalone statement of profit and loss.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined
benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately
in the standalone balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained eamnings through other comprehensive income in the period in which they
occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Equity settled stock-based compensation
Employees (including senior executives) of the Company receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments, whereby employees render services

as consideration for equity instruments (equity-settled transactions).

The cost of cquity-scttled transactions is determined by the fair value at the datc when the grant is made using an appropriate valuation model. The fair
valuc of options granted under various Employec Stock option plans is rccognised as an employee benefits expense with a corresponding increase in
equity (stock option outstanding account).

The total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which s the period over which all of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At the
end of each period, the entity revises its estimates of the number of options that are expected to vest based on the non-market vesting and service
conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision to original estimates in the period of change, if any, in the profit or loss, with corresponding adjustment

to equity.

Scrvice and non-market performance conditions arc not taken into account when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but the likelihood of
the conditions being met is assesscd as part of the Company’s best estimate of the number of cquity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market
performance conditions, if any, are reflected within the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without an associated service
requirement, are considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an immediate
expensing of an award unless there are also service and/or performance conditions.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance and/or service conditions have not been met. Where
awards include a market or non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vested irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of diluted earnings per share.

n) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs include interest calculated on the effective interest ratc method, other costs incurred in connection with borrowing and exchange
differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost. General and specific
borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of the assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale (‘qualifying assets’), are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the standalone statement of profit and loss within finance costs in the period in which
they are incurred.

o) Leases

Company as a lessee

The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for buildings, equipment and vehicles. For any new contract, the Company assesses whether
a contract is, or contains a lease. A lease is defined as ‘a contract, or part of a contract, that conveys the right to use an asset (the underlying asset) for a
period in exchange for consideration’. To apply this definition the Company assesses whether the contract meets three key evaluations which are whether:
(i) the contract contains an identified asset, which is either explicitly identified in the contract or implicitly specified by being identified at the time the
asset is made available to the Company

(ii) The Company has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the identified asset throughout the period of use, considering
its rights within the defined scope of the contract

(iii) The Company has the right to direct the use of the identified asset throughout the period of use.

The Company assesscs whether it has the right to direct ‘how and for what purposc’ the asset is uscd throughout the period of usc.
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Measurement and recognition of leases as a lessee
At lcase commencement date, thc Company recogniscs a right-of-use assct (‘ROU”) and a corresponding lease liability on the standalonc balance shect.
The right-of-usc asset is measurcd at cost, which comprises of the initial measurcment of the Icase liability, any initial dircct costs incurred by the
Company, an estimate of any costs to dismantle and remove the asset at the end of the lease, and any lease payments made in advance of the lease
commencement date (net of any incentives received).

The Company depreciates the right-of-use assets using the straight line method effective from the financial year 2024-25 (written down value method
will financial year 2023-24) from the lease commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease
term. The Company also assesses the right-of-use asset for impairment when such indicators exist.

IndAS116 requires lessees to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease adjusted with an option to extend or terminate the lease,
if the use of such option is rcasonably certain. The lcase term in future periods is reassessed to cnsure that the leasc term reflects the current cconomic
circumstances.

Extension and termination options are included in a number of leases of the Company. These are used to maximise operational flexibility in terms of
managing the assets used in the Company’s operations. The majority of extension and termination options held are exercisable only by the Company and
not by the respective lessor.

At the commencement date, the Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments unpaid at that date, discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the leasc if that rate is rcadily available or the Company’s incremental borrowing rate. Leasc payments included in the
measurement of the lease liability arc comprises of fixed payments (including in substance fixed), variable payments based on an index or rate, amounts
expected to be payable under a residual value guarantec and payments arising from options reasonably certain to be exercised.

Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability will be reduced for payments made and increased for interest. It is remeastired to reflect any reassessment
or modification, or if there are changes in in-substance fixed payments. When the lease liability is remeasured, the corresponding adjustment is reflected
in the right-of-use asset, or profit and loss if the right-of-use asset is already reduced to zero.

The Company has elected to account for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets using the practical expedients. Instead of recognising a right-
of-use asset and lease liability, the payments in relation to these are recognised as an expense in profit or loss on a straight-line basts over the lease term.

Lease liability and right-of-usc asscts have been scparatcly presented in the notes to the financial statements under ‘Other financial liability’ and
‘Property, plant and equipment” (except those mecting the definition of investment property) respectively. Leasc payments have been classified as *Cash
flows from financing activities’.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets:
The Company has elected not to recognise ROU and lease liabilities for short-term leases that have a lease term of twelve months or less and leases of
low value assets. The Company recognises lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an assct are classified as operating leascs. Rental
income from operating lease is recogniscd on a straight-linc basis over the term of the relevant leasc unlcss payments arc structured to increase in line
with the expected general inflation to compensate for the expected inflationary cost increase under “Other Income™ in the standalone statement of profit
and loss. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised
over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are eamed. The respective
leased assets are included in the standalone balance sheet based on their nature.

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership transfer from the Company to the lessee. Amounts
due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the Company’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to
accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment outstanding in respect of the lease.

p) Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment, or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are
tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount is the higher of its fair value less cost of disposal and its value-in-use. Value-in-use is the present value of future cash flows
expected to be derived from the asset. For the purposes of impairment testing, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or group of assets (cash-generating units or CGU). Impairment
occurs when the carrying amount of a CGU including the goodwill, exceeds the estimated recoverable amount ofthe CGU. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated to the Company’s CGUs expected to benefit from the synergies arising from the
business combination. Total impairment loss of a CGU is allocated first to reducc the carrying amount of goodwill allocated to the CGU and then to the
other asscts of the CGU, pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the CGU. An impairment loss on goodwill rccognised in the
standalone statement of profit and loss is not reversed in the subsequent period. Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of impairment at the end of each reporting period.

q) Earnings per share
Basic earnings per sharé are calculated by dividing the net profit for the period attributable to equity sharcholders of the Company (after deducting
preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity share to the extent that they were entitled to participate in dividends relative to a fully paid
equity share during the reporting period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events of bonus
issue; bonus clement in a rights issuc to cxisting shareholders; share split; and reverse share split (consolidation of shares).
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Diluted Earnings per share amounts arc computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company (after deducting
preference dividends and attributable taxes but after adjusting the after income tax cffect of interest and other financing cost associated with dilutive
potential equity shares) by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and also the weighted
average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. The diluted potential equity shares
are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the shares been actually issued at fair value (i.e. the average market value of the outstanding shares).
Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as at the beginning of the year, unless issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are
determined independently for each year presented.

r) Statement of Cash flows

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any
deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash
flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of thc Company are segregated.

2.4 Other accounting policies
a) Investment properties
Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Company, is classified as investment

property.

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if any.

The cost includes borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. Subsequent expenditure is capitalised to the
asset’s carrying amount only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company and the cost of
such expenditure can be measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. When part of an investment
property is replaced, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.

Investment properties are depreciated using written down value method over their estimated useful lives of 60 years. The useful life has been determined
based on a technical evaluation performed by the management’s expert.

Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of or when they are permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic
benefit is expected from their disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognised in profit or
loss in the period of derccognition.

b) Financial instruments

Derivatives

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the
end of each reporting period. The accounting for subsequent changes in fair value depends upon whether the denvative 1s designated as a hedging
instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged, and the type of hedge relationship designated.

Derivatives which are not designated as hedges are accounted for at fair valuc through profit or loss and are included in other gains/ losses.

Embedded derivatives

An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid (combined) instrument that also includes a non-derivative host contract — with the effect that some
of the cash flows of the combined instrument vary in a way similar to a stand-alone derivative. An embedded derivative causes some or all of the cash
flows that otherwise would be required by the contract to be modified according to a specified interest rate, financial instrument price, commodity price,
foreign exchange rate, index of prices or rates, credit rating or credit index, or other variable, provided in the case of a non-financial variable that the
variable is not specific to a party to the contract.

If the hybrid contract contains a host that is a financial asset within the scope of Ind-AS 109, the Company does not separate embedded derivatives.
Rather, it applies the classification requirements contained in Ind-AS 109 to the entire hybrid contract. Derivatives embedded in all other host contracts
are accounted for as scparate derivatives and recorded at fair value if their economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the host
contracts and the host contracts are not held for trading or designated at fair value though profit or loss. Thesc embedded derivatives arc measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss, unless designated as effective hedging instruments. Reassessment only occurs if there is
either a change in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial
asset out of the fair value through profit or loss.

¢) Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of the cost or net realizable value. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less cstimated costs of completion and cstimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on first in,
first out basis.

d) Non-current assets held for sale/distribution to owners and discontinued operations

The Company classifies non-current assets and disposal groups as held for sale/distribution to owners if their carrying amounts will be recovered
principally through a sale/distribution rather than through continuing use and where a sale is considered highly probable. Actions required to complete
the sale/distribution should indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes to the sale/distribution will be made or that the decision to sell/distribute
will be withdrawn and Management must be committed to the sale/distribution being completed within one year from the date of classification.

Non-current assets held for sale/for distribution to owners and disposal groups are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and the fair valuc less
costs to scll/distribute except for asscts such as deferred tax assets, assets arising from employee benefits, financial asscts and contractual rights under
insurance contracts, which are specifically exempt from this requirement. Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale/distribution are presented
separately in the standalone balance sheet.
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An impairment loss is recogniscd for any initial or subscquent writc-down of the asset (or disposal group) to fair valuc Icss costs to scll/distributc. A gain
is rccognised for any subscquent increascs in fair value less costs to scll/ distribute an assct (or a disposal group), but not in excess of any cumulative
impairment loss previously recognised. A gain or loss not previously recognised by the date of sale/ distribution of the non-current asset (or disposal
group) is recognised on the date of derecognition.

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets once classified as held for sale/distribution to owners are not depreciated or amortised.

A disposal group qualifies as discontinued operation if it is a component of an entity that either has been disposed of, or is classified as held for sale,
and:

(i)  Represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations,

(i) Is part of a single coordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations, or

(iti) Is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale

Discontinued operations are excluded from the results of continuing operations and are presented as a single amount as profit or loss after tax from
discontinued operations in the standalone statement of profit and loss.

All other notes to the financial statements mainly include amounts for continuing operations, unless otherwise mentioned.

e) Government grants
Grants from the Govemment arc recognised at their transaction valuc where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received, and the
Company will comply with all attached conditions.

Govemnment grants relating to income or expenditure /expenses are deferred and recognised in the profit or loss over the period necessary to match them
with the costs that they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and equipment are included in non-current liabilities as deferred income and recognised
on a straight-line basis over the expected lives of related assets and presented within other income.

f) Foreign currency transaction and balances
The financial statements of the Company are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) which is also the Company’s functional currency,ie,the currency
of the primary economic cnvironment in which the Company opcratcs.

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at their respective functional currency spot rates prevailing at the date, the
transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates prevailing as at the reporting date.

Subsequently, differences arising on restatement or settlement of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions and translation differences
are recognised in OCI with the accumulation in other equity as foreign currency translation rescrve. Non-monctary items mcasured at fair valuc in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange ratcs at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-
monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation
differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).

The equity items denominated in foreign currencies are translated at historical cost.

g) Cash dividend and non-cash distribution to equity holders of the Company
The Company recognises a liability to make cash or non-cash distributions to equity holders of the Company when the distribution is authorised and the
distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. A corresponding amount is recognised directly in equity.

Non-cash distributions arc measured at the carrying value of the assets to be distributed in case of distributions in which all owners of thc same class of
equity instruments arc treated equally or the distributed asset is ultimately controlled by the same party or partics both beforc and after the distribution,
and at fair value of the assets to be distributed in other cases, with such value recognised directly in equity. For this purpose, a group of individuals shall
be regarded as controlling an entity when, as a result of contractual arrangements, they collectively have the power to govem its financial and operating
policies so as to obtain benefits from its activities, and that ultimate collective power is not transitory. Upon distribution of non-cash assets, any difference
between the carrying amount of the liability and the carrying amount of the assets distributed is recognised in the standalone statement of profit and loss.

h) Exceptional items
Exceptional items refer to items of income or expense within the standalone statement of profit and loss from ordinary activities which arc non-recurring
and are of such size, nature or incidence that their scparate disclosure is considered neccssary to explain the performance of the Company.

2.5 Recent Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA™) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Corapanies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended March 31, 2025, MCA has notified Ind AS — 117 Insurance Contracts and amendments to Ind AS
116 — Leases, relating to sale and leaseback transactions, applicable to the Company w.e.f. April 1, 2024. The Company has reviewed the new
pronouncements and based on its evaluation has determined that it does not have any significant impact in its financial statements.
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3. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

Use of estimates and judgment

The preparation of the financial siatements in conformity with Ind-AS requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses and other comprehensive income (OCI) that
are reported and disclosed in the financial statements and accompanying notes,

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. They are based on historical experience and other factors including expectations
of future events that may have a financial impact on the Company and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

Judgements
In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policics, management has made various judgements, which have the most significant effect on the

amounts rccognised in the financial statements.

This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity, and of items which are more likely to be materially
adjusted due to estimates and assumptions tumning out to be difTerent than those originally assessed. Detailed information about each of these estimates
and judgements is included in relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected line item in the financial statements

Critical estimates and judgements

The areas involving critical cstimates or judgements arc:

(i)  Estimation of current tax expense and payablc — Notc 8

(i)  Estimated useful life of intangible assets — Note 2.3.¢

(iii) Estimation of defined benefit obligation — Note 27

(iv) Recognition of deferred tax assets for carried forward of tax losses — Note 8

(v) Impairment of trade receivables — Note 11

(vi) Whether assets held for distribution to owners meet the definition of discontinued operations — Note 2.4.d

Impairment

The Company assesses impairment at each reporting date by evaluating conditions specific to the Company that may lead to impairment of assets. Where
an impairment trigger exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is determined. Value-in-use calculations performed in assessing recoverable amounts
incorporate a number of key cstimates (Refer note 6).

Share-based payments
Estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions requires determination of the most appropriate valuation model, which is dependent on the

terms and conditions of the grant. This estimate also requires determination of the most appropriate inputs to the valuation model including the expected
life of the stock option, volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions about therm. The assumptions and models used for estimating fair value
for share-based payment transactions are disclosed in note 28.

Taxes

Deferred tax asscts arc recognised for unuscd tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the losscs can
be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely
timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. (Refer note 8)

Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment benefits and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using
actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include
the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term
nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend to change only at intervals in response to demographic
changes. Future salary increases, and gratuity increases arc based on cxpected future inflation rates. (Refer note 27)

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the standalone balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in
active markels, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the Discounted Cash Flows model. The inputs to these models are taken
from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include
considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value
of financial instruments. (Refer note 20)

Leases

Ind AS 116 requircs lessees to detcrmine the lcase term as the non-cancellable period of a lease adjusted with any option to cxtend or terminate the lease
if the use of such option is reasonably certain. The Company makes an assessment on the expected lease term on a lease-by-lease basis and there by
assesses whether it is reasonably certain that any options to extend or terminate the contract will be exercised. In evaluating the lease term, the Company
considers factors such as any significant leasehold improvements undertaken over the lease term, costs relating to the termination of the lease and the
importance of the underlying asset to Company's operations taking into account the location of the underlying asset the availability of suitable
alternatives. The lease term in future periods is reassessed to ensure that the lease term reflects the current economic circumstances (Refer note 4(i) and
note 16).

Provisions
At each balance sheet date basis the management judgement, changes in facts and legal aspects, the Company assesscs the requircment of provisions
against the outstanding contingent liabilitics. However, the actual futurc outcome may be different from this judgement.
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Contingencies

Contingent liabilities may arise from the ordinary coursc of business in relation to claims against the Company, including legal, contractual and other
claims. By their nature, contingencies will be resolved only when one or more uncertain future events occur or fail to occur. The assessment of the

existence, and potential quantum, of contingencies inherently involves the exercise of significant judgements and the use of estimates regarding the
outcome of future events.

Useful lives of tangible/intangible assets )
The Company reviews its estimate of the useful lives of tangible/intangible assets at each reporting date, based on the expected utility of the assets.

(This space is intentionally left blank)
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All amounts in INR million, unless stated otherwise

6. Investments

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Nonp-current investments
Investments in equity instruments
Unquoted equity shares (fully paid)
Investment in subsidiarics (at cost unless stated otherwisc)
4,000,000 (March 31, 2024: 4,000,000) equity shares in SIS Security International Holdings Pte. Ltd. (formerly known| 249.07 249.07
as SIS International Holdings Ltd.) of AUD 1/~ each fully paid up ) i
11,512,800 (March 31, 2024: 11,512,800) equity shares in SMC Integrated Facility Management Solutions Limited 142.03 142.03
(formerly know as Scrvice Master Clean Limited) of INR 10/- cach fully paid up ) )
22,500,000 (March 31, 2024: 22,500,0000) cquity shares in Terminix SIS Tndia Private Limited of INR 10/~ cach fully 122.03 122.03
paid up ) )
17,800,000 (March 31, 2024: 17,800,000 equity shares in Tech SIS Limited of INR 10/- each fully paid up 183.78 183.19
800,000 (March 31, 2024: 800,000) cquity sharcs in SIS Australia Group Pty Ltd. of AUD 1/- cach fully paid up 47.93 47.93
2,801,666 (March 31, 2024: 2,801,666) cquity sharcs m Dusters Total Solutions Services Privatc Limited of INR. 10/-
i 1,965.58 1,965.58
each fully paid up
250,000 (March 31, 2024: 250,000) equity shares in SLV Security Services Private Limited of INR. 100/- each fully 808.67 891.97
paid up ) )
1,169,213 (March 31, 2024: 1,169,213) equity shares m RARE Hospitality and Services Private Limited of INR. 10/-
s » 526.25 523.55
each filly paid up
1,800,000 (March 31, 2024: 1,800,000) cquity shares in Uniq Security Solutions Private Limitcd (formerly known as 1.032.53 1.032.53
Uniq Detective and Security Services Private Limited) of INR. 10/~ each fully paid up* P N
10,000 (March 31, 2024: 10,000) equity shares n SIS Synergistic Adjacencies Ventures Private Limited of INR 10/~ 0.10 0.10
cach fully paid up i i
10,000 (March 31, 2024: 10,000) equity shares in SIS Business Support Services and Solutions Private Lirmited of INR 0.10 0.10
10/- each fully paid up ) i
29,000,000 (March 31, 2024: 29,000,000) cquity shares in SIS Alarm Monitoring and Response Services Private 30811 208.43
|Limited of INR 10/~ each fully paid up . T
1,010,000 (March 31, 2024: 1,010,000) equity shares in One SIS Solutions Private Limited of INR 10/- each fully paid 10.10 10.10
. . X
10,000 (March 31, 2024: 10,000) equity shares m One SIS Residential Solutions Private Limited of INR 10/~ each fully 0.10 0.10
paid up i
5,486.38 5,466.71
Less: Provision for mpairment in value of mvestment 31.38 -
Total investment in subsidiaries (A) 5,455.00 5,466.71
Investment in joint ventures (at cost unless stated otherwise)
7,788,892 (March 31, 2024: 7,788,892) equity shares in SIS Cash Services Limited (formerly known as SIS Cash 77.89 77.89
Services Private Limited) of INR 10/~ each fully paid up ) ’
Total investment in joint ventures (B) 77.89 77.89
Investment in others (at FVTPL)
30 (March 31, 2024: 30) equity shares in Staqu Technologies Private Limited of INR 10/- each fully paid up 0.18 0.18
196,962 (March 31, 2024: Nil) equity sharcs in Agarsha Scnior Carc Private Limited of INR 10/- cach filly paid up 21.67 -
Total Investment in others (C) 21.85 0.18
Total investment in equity instruments (D=A+B+C) 5,554.74 5,544.78
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Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Investment in preference shares (at FVTPL)

Unquoted preference shares (fully paid)

Investment in others

7,773 (March 31, 2024: 7,773) Class-2 compulsory convertible cunmilative preference shares in Staqu Technologies

Z : 2 c 50.01 50.01
Private Limited of INR 10/~ each fiilly paid up

2,169 (March 31, 2024: 2,169) Compulsory convertible preference shares in Staqu Technologies Private Limited of 13.26 13.26
INR 542/~ each fully paid up ’ i
549,141 (March 31, 2024: Nil) Pre Series B compulsory convertble preference shares in Agarsha Senior Care Private 86.94 i
Limited of INR 158.33/- each fully paid up )

Total investment in preference shares (E) 150.21 63.27

Investments in debentures or bonds

Investment in subsidiaries (at amortised cost)
120 (March 31, 2024: 120) Non-convertble debentures in SIS Alarm Monitoring and Response Services Private

. : 120.00 120.00
Limited of INR 1,000,000/~ each fully paid up
Investment in subsidiaries (at FVTPL)

300,000 (March 31, 2024: 300,000) Optionally convertble debenfures in Terminix SIS India Private Limited of INR| 28.72 28.42
100/- each fully paid up T '
49 (March 31, 2024: 49) Optionally convertble debentures in SMC Integrated Facility Management Solutions Limited 32.15 2923

(formerly known as Service Master Clean Limited) of INR 1,000,000/~ cach fully paid up
Investment in joint ventures (at amortised cost)

125 (March 31, 2024: 125) Non-convertible debentures in SIS Cash Services Limited of INR 1,000,000/~ each fully . 75.00
paid up **

Investment in others (at FVTPL)

3,077 (March 31, 2024: 3,077) Compulsory convertible debentures i Entitled Soltions Private Limited of INR| 34.99 34.99
11,373/- each fully paid up

Total investments in debentures or bonds (F) 215.86 287.64
Total non-current investments (D+E+F) 5,920.81 5,895.69

Current investments

Investments in debentures or bonds

Investment in joint ventures (at amortised cost)

Non-convertible debentures in SIS Cash Services Limited of INR 1,000,000/~ each fully paid up ** 75.00 50.00
Total current investments 75.00 50.00
Total investments 5,995.81 5,945.69
Aggregate amount of quoted mvestments and market value thercof - -
Aggregate amount of unquoted mvestments 5,995.81 5,945.69
Aggregate amount of impairment in value of nvestments 31.38 -

* During the year ended March 31, 2025, the Company provided the provision for impairment in value of investment amounting to INR 31.38 millions
(March 31, 2024: Nil).

*#+ During the year ended March 31, 2025, the Company has redeemed the non-convertible debentures amounting to INR 50 million and the current
maturity of non-convertible debentures amounting to INR 75 millions (March 31, 2024: INR 50 million) has been disclosed under current investments
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7. Other financial assets

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Other non-current financial assets

Security deposits (unsecured, considered good) 129.50 145.35
Margin money in the form of fixed deposits * 47.26 117.70
Fixed deposit maturing after 12 months 1.68 3.11
Other non-current financial assets 0.24 -
Total other non-current financial assets 178.68 266.16

Other current financial assets

Unbilled revenue ** (Refer notc 23) 3,083.49 2,903.29
Less: Provision 13.81

3,069.68 2,903.29
| Sceurity deposits (unsccured, considered good) 102.85 156.99
Interest accrucd on deposits / investments / loans 122.20 111.02
Other receivables 160.24 135.58
Taotal other current financial assets 3,454.97 3,306.88
Total financial assets 3,633.65 3,573.04

* Fixed deposits have been pledged as margin money against bank guarantees.
+* All unbilled dues are undisputed and falling under the ageing bucket of less than six months from the date of completion of delivery of services.
Further, unbilled revenues are classified as financial assets as right to consideration is unconditional and is due only after passage of time.

No other advances are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person and from firms or private
companics respectively in which any dircctor is a partner, a director or a member except as disclosed in note 39.

For outstanding balances, terms and conditions relating to related party receivables, refer note 39.

Refer note 40 for the Company’s policy regarding impairment allowance on other financial assets and Company’s credit risk management processes.

7a. Loans
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Non-current loans
Loans to related parties 31.56 31.56
Total non-current loans 31.56 31.56

Current loans

Loans to rclated parties - 91.90
Total current loans - 91.90
Total Loans 31.56 123.46

Break-up of security details:

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Loan Receivables considered good - Secured - -
lLoan Receivables considered good - Unsecured 31.56 123.46
Total Loans 31.56 123.46

No loans are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person and from firms or private companies
respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or 2 member except as disclosed in note 39.
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8. Income tax
The major components of income tax expensc for the ycars ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 are:

Statement of Profit and loss:
Profit or loss section

Tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Current income tax:
Current income tax charge - .
Adjustments in respect of current income tax cxpensc / (reversal) of previous years 16.70
Deferred tax:
Decrease / (increase) in deferred tax assets (net) 272.59 8.58
Income tax expense / (credit) reported in the statement of profit and loss 272.59 25.28
OCI section
Tax related to items recognised in OCI during the year:
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Tax expense / (credit) on re-measurements of defined benefit plans (46.68) 0.87
Income tax charged/(credited) to OCI (46.68) 0.87
Tax related to items recognized directly in equity during the year:
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Aggregate current and deferred tax arising in the reporting period and not recognized in profit or loss or other ) )
comprehensive income, but dircctly debited/credited to equity
Income tax credited / (charged) to equity - -
Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by the tax rate for March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024:
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Accounting profit before income tax 1,560.09 1,896.17
Statutory income tax rate 25.17% 25.17%
Income tax cxpensc at statutory rate 392.64 4717.23
Additional temporary tax deductible in respect of certain benefits under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (138.08) (480.02)
Non-deductible expenses for tax purposes
Corporate social responsibility expenditure 6.38 5,63
Donation 0.82 0.66
Other non-deductible expenscs 10.83 5.08
Adjustments in respect of current income tax expense / (reversal) of previous years - 16.70
272.59 25.28

The effective tax rate applicable to the Company for the financial year 2025-26 would be 25.17% (including surcharge and cess) based on the law as it

exists on the date of these financial statements.

The balance in deferred tax assets (liabilities) comprises temporary differences attributable to:

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Property, plant and equipment / Intangible asscts 151.61 137.75
Defined bencfit obligations 453.60 415.65
Deductions in respect of certain benefits under the Income Tax Act, 1961 396.60 720.08
Accruals and others 280.80 268.60
Allowance for expected credit loss — trade receivables 170.34 136.78
Unuscd tax losses 1.52 1.52
Total deferred tax assets / (liabilities) 1,454.47 1,680.38
Reflected in the balance sheet as follows:

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Deferred tax assets 1,454.47 1,680.38
Deferred tax liabilities - -

Deferred tax assets / (liabilities), net 1,454.47 1,680.38
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Reconciliation of deferred tax assets / (liabilities), net:

Property, Defined Deductions in| Accruals Allowance | Unused tax Total
plant and benefit respect of and others | for expected losses
equipment/ | obligations certain credit loss —
Particulars Intangible benefits under trade
assets the Income receivables
Tax Act, 1961
As at April 1,2023 145.55 364.78 809.55 258.36 110.07 1.52 1,689.83
Tax income / (cxpense) during the peripd recognised (7.80) 5174 (89.47) 1024 26.71 ; 8.58)
in profit or loss
Tax income / (expense) during the period recognised i 0.87) B ) N . ©.87)
in OCI
As at March 31, 2024 137.75 415.65 720.08 268.60 136.78 1.52 1,680.38
. 7 T - .
Tax income / (cxpensc) during the period recognised 13.86 (8.73) (323.48) 12.20 33.56 B 72.59)
in profit or loss
Tax income / (expense) during the period recognised - 46.68 _ : ; ) 46.68
in OCI
As at March 31, 2025 151.61 453.60 396.60 280.80 170.34 1.52 1,454.47
Income tax assets:
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Opening balance 1,972.11 1,204.96
Taxes paid 821.41 825.27
Refund received (1,129.94) (41.42)
Current tax payable for the year - (16.70)
Income tax assefs 1,663.58 1,972.11

The Company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and
the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority.

9. Other Assets

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Other non-current assets

Capital advanccs 89.69 46.12
Other advances 9.50 5.58
Total other non-current assets 99.19 51.70

Other current assets

Prepaid expenses 318.01 318.98
Other advances 261.04 154.10
Other current assets* 396.34 370.20
Total other current assets 975.39 843.28
Total other assets 1,074.58 894.98

*[ncludes balance under protest with revenue authorities
For outstanding balances, terms and conditions relating to related party receivables, refer note 39.

10. Inventories

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Uniforms* 154.69 180.33
Total inventories at the lower of cost and net realisable value 154.69 180.33

* Includes uniform in transit of INR 0.02 million (March 31, 2024: Nil)
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11. Trade receivables

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Trade receivables 7,526.50 8,502.73
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss 676.80 543.47
Total trade receivables 6,849.70 7,959.26
Break-up of security details:

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Sccured, considered good . -
Unsecured, considered good 6,849.70 7,959.26
Total 6,849.70 7,959.26

The amount of loss allowance (lifetime expected credit loss) has been recognised under the simplified approach for trade receivable and hence break-
up of trade receivable into 'significant increase in credit risk' and ‘credit impaired' has not been disclosed separately.

The ageing schedule for outstanding trade receivables from the due date is given below:
As at March 31, 2025

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date Total
Not due Less than 6 | 6 months - 1| 1-2 years 2-3 years | More than 3
months vear years
(i) Undisputed trade receivables 3,632.84 2,155.75 507.89 424.39 190.49 518.42 7,429.78
(ii) Disputed trade receivables 5.09 0.77 14.39 18.28 3.14 55.05 96.72
As at March 31, 2024
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date Total
Not due Less than 6 | 6 months - 1| 1-2 years 2-3 years | More than 3
months year years
(i) Undisputed trade receivables 3,486.76 3,034.93 534.16 566.73 386.65 458.58 8,467.81
(ii) Disputed trade receivables - - - 3.14 6.61 25.17 34.92
The movement in allowances for expected credit loss is as follows:
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Opening balance 543.47 516.91
Additions 143.12 129.60
Write off 9.79) (103.04)
Closing balance 676.80 543.47

No trade receivables are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person and from firms or private
companics respectively in which any dircctor is a partner, a dircctor or a member cxcept as disclosed in note 39.

Refer note 40 for the Company’s policy regarding impairment allowance on trade receivables and Company’s credit risk management processes.
For outstanding balances, terms and conditions relating to related party receivables, refer note 39.

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and arc generally on terms of 30 to 90 days.

12. Cash and bank balances

Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Balances with banks:

— In current and other accounts 1,081.64 351.05
— Drafts on hand 1.17 -

— Bank deposits with original maturity of three months or less 265.41 781.03
Total 1,348.22 1,132.08

Bank balances lying in various current accounts bear no interest.
There are no repatriation restrictions with regard to cash and cash equivalents as at the end of reporting period and prior periods.
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Other bank balances
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Unclaimed dividend accounts 0.94 0.94
Dieposits with origi'nal maturity of more than three months and having remaining maturity of less than twelve] 2,864.39 122.27
hs from reporting date
Margin money * 879.84 166.43
Total 3,745.17 289.64

* Pledged as security/margin money against guarantees issued by banks on behalf of the Company.

During the year ended March 31, 2025, an amount of INR 0.22 million pertaining to unclaimed dividends became due for transfer to the [nvestor
Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The said amount was transferred to the

IEPF before the approval of the financial statements.

13. Equity Share capital
Authorised share capital

Particulars (Nos. in million}) (INR million)
As at April 1, 2023 (Equity shares of INR S each) 270.00 1,350.00
Increasc/(decreasc) during the year -
As at March 31, 2024 (Equity shares of INR 5 each) 270.00 1,350.00
Increase/(decrease) during the year a &
As at March 31, 2025 (Equity shares of INR 5 each) 270.00 1,350.00
Issued, subscribed and paid up equity capital
Particulars (Nos. in million) (INR million)
As at April 1, 2023 (Equity shares of INR 5 each) 145.73 728.65
Issued on exercise of stock options 0.01 0.03
Buyback of equity shares (1.64) (8.18)
As at March 31, 2024 (Equity shares of INR 5 each) 144.10 720.50
Issued on excrcise of stock options 0.27 1.34
Buyback of cquity shares -
As at March 31, 2025 (Equity shares of INR 5 each) 144,37 721.84

During the year cnded March 31, 2025, the Board of Dircctors of the Company, at its meeting held on March 25, 2025, has approved the proposal for
buy-back of fully paid up equity shares up to 37,12,871 equity sharcs of face value of INR 5/- each of the Company for an aggregate amount not cxcceding
INR 1,500 million, being 2.57% of the total paid up equity share capital of the Company as on March 21, 2025, at INR 404 per equity share in accordance
with the provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy-back of Securities) Regulations, 2018, as amended and the Companies Act,
2013, as amended. The Buyback is subject to the approval of the shareholders by means of a special resolution through a postal ballot.

During the year ended March 31, 2024, pursuant to the approval of the Board of Directors of the Company, at its meeting held on November 30, 2023,
the Company offered 1,636,363 equity shares of face value of INR 5 each for buyback to all eligible shareholders, through the tender offer process, for
an aggregate amount not exceeding 900 million, equivalent to 1.12% of the total paid up equity share capital of the Company as on November 24, 2023,
at INR 550 per equity share, in accordance with the provisions of the Security and Exchange Board of India (Buy-back of Securities) Regulations 2018,
as amended and the Companies Act, 2013, as amended. The said shares bought back through the tender offer process and were extinguished on January
05, 2024. The Company funded the buyback from its frec reserves as required under the said regulations. Consequently, 1,636,363 equity shares of facc
value of INR 5 each were extinguished by appropriating a sum of INR 891.82 million from the sccurities premium and an amount of INR 8.18 million,
equivalent to the nominal value of the Equity Shares bought back through the buyback have been transferred to the capital redemption reserve account.

During the year ended March 31, 2023, pursuant to the approval of the Board of Directors of the Company, at its meeting held on June 29, 2022, and the
shareholders, by way of a special resolution through postal ballot, on August 12, 2022, the Company offered 1,454,545 equity shares of face value of
INR 5 each for buyback for buyback to all eligible shareholders, through the tender offer process, for an aggregate amount not exceeding 800 million,
cquivalent 0.99% of the total paid up cquity share capital of the Company as on March 31, 2022, at INR 550 per equity share, in accordance with the
provisions of the Sccurity and Exchange Board of India (Buy-back of Sccuritics) Regulations 2018, as amended and the Companics Act, 2013, as
amended. The said share bought back through the tender offer process was completed on November 11, 2022. The Company funded the buyback from
its free reserves as required under the said regulations. Consequently, 1,454,545 equity shares of face value of INR 5 each were extinguished by
appropriating a sum of INR 792.73 million from the securities premium and an amount of INR 7.27 million, equivalent to the nominal value of the Equity
Shares bought back through the buyback have been transferred to the capital redemption reserve account.

During the year ended March 31, 2022, pursuant to the approval of the Board of Directors of the Company, at its meeting held on February 15, 2021,
and the shareholders, by way of a special resolution through postal ballot, on March 20, 2021, the Company offered 1,818,181 equity shares of face value
of INR 5 each for buyback for buyback to all eligible shareholders, through the tender offer process, for an aggregate amount not exceeding 1,000 million,
equivalent 1.24% of the total paid up equity share capital of the Company as on March 31, 2020, at INR 550 per equity share, in accordance with the
provisions of the Security and Exchange Board of India (Buy-back of Securities) Regulations 2018, as amended and the Companies Act, 2013, as
amended. The said share bought back through the tender offer process was completed on Junc 21, 2021. The Company funded the buyback from its free
reserves as required under the said regulations. Consequently, 1,818,181 equity shares of face value of INR 5 each were extinguished by appropriating
a sum of INR 990.91 million from the securities premium and an amount of INR 9.09 million, equivalent to the nominal value of the Equity Shares
bought back through the buyback have been transferred to the capital redemption reserve account.




SIS LIMITED (formerly known as ‘Security and Intelligence Services (India) Limited’)

e —_ ————————e

All amounts in INR million, unless stated otherwise

Notes (pre share sub-division effect Le. face value of INR 10 per share):

a. 2,210,500 and 62,457,240 cquity sharcs werc allotted as fully paid Bonus Sharcs by capitalization of general reserve during the year ended March
31, 2006 and March 31, 2017 respectively.

b.  Mr. Uday Singh was the holder of 79,000 unpaid shares in SIS International Holdings Ltd., a wholly owned subsidiary. In terms of a letter dated
December [, 2009, Mr. Singh had the option to exchange these shares for shares of the Company in a manner reflecting the fair value of these
shares, reduced by the amounts unpaid on them. Subsequently, in lieu of these shares and suitably adjusted for amounts unpaid thereon, Mr. Singh
was allotted 40,565 Equity Shares during the year ended March 31,2017, at a ratio as determined in accordance with a valuation report prepared
by a SEBI registered merchant banker.

¢.  During the year ended March 31, 2018, the Company completed an Initial Public Offering (IPO) of its shares consisting of a fresh offer of
4,444,785 equity shares of INR 10 each at a premium of INR 805 per share and an offer for sale of 5,120,619 equity shares of INR 10 each by the
selling shareholders. The proceeds of the fresh offer component from the IPO amounted to INR 3,410.47 (million) (net of issue expenses). The
cquity sharcs of the Company werc listed on NSE and BSE effective August 10, 2017.

Dividends

The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian Rupees. According to the Companies Act, 2013 any dividend should be declared only out of
accumulated distributable profits. A Company may, before the declaration of any dividend, transfer a percentage of its profits for that financial year, as
it may consider appropriate, to the reserves.

The Board, at its meeting dated May 01, 2025, has not proposed final dividend for the year ended March 31, 2025 (March 31, 2024: INR Nil per share).

Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of INR 5 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share and
to participate in dividends in proportion to the number of and amounts paid on the shares held. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian
rupees.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the remaining assets of the Company, after distribution
of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Name of the shareholder o, ine i o e i
No. in million % holding in the No. in million % holding in the
class class
Ravindra Kishore Sinha 56.62 39.22% 56.62 39.29%)
Rita Kishore Sinha 23.09 15.99% 23.09 16.02%)
Riturgj Kishore Sinha 16.10 11.15% 15.51 10.76%
Aggregate number of cquity shares issucd as bonus, shares issued for consideration other than cash and sharcs bought back during the period of five
years immediately preceding the reporting date:
March 31, 2025] March 31, 2024| March 31, 2023| March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Particulars
No. No. No. No. No.
Equity shares allotted as fully paid bonus shares by capitalization of 10.480
LE,Lcncral reserve 5
Equity shares allotted as fully paid up without payment being received in R
cash =
Buyback of equity shares - 16,36,363 14,54,545 18,18,181
Details of promoter shareholding in the Company
Year ended March 31, 2025
S. No. Name of the Promoter Equity shares as on| | N Equity shares as on .. % Change|
3 hold % hol
March 31, 2025| 7 holding in March 31, 2024] 7 POldimginf g ring the
. the class . the class
(in Nos.) (in Nos.) vear
Promoters
| Ravindra Kishore Sinha 5,66,18,087 39.22% 5,66,18,087 39.29% -0.07%
2 Rituraj Kishorc Sinha 1,61,03,533 11.15% 1,55,09,033 10.76% 0.39%
Total 7,27,21,620 7,21,27,120
Year ended March 31, 2024
S. No. Name of the Promoter Equity shares as on| | L Equity shares as on| | - % Change|
March 31, 2024| ° holding in March 31,2023| °oldinginl g ing the
. the class . the class
(in Nos.) (in Nos.) year|
Promoters
1 Ravindra Kishore Sinha 5,66,18,087 39.29% 5,71,63,671 39.23%) 0.06%
2 Rituraj Kishore Sinha 1,55,09,033 10.76% 1,56,58,482 10.74% 0.02%
Total 7,21,27,120 7,28,22,153

Shares reserved for issue under options: Refer note 28 for details regarding employee stock options issued by the Company.
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14. Other equity

Balance at the end of year

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Reserves and surplus
Securities premium 1,519.68 1,423,74
General reserve 580.93 577.96
Retained eamings 8,300.36 7,151.63
Total reserves and surplus (A) 10,400.97 9,153.33
Other reserves
Stock options outstanding account 32447 391.45
Capital redemption reserve 24,54 24.54
Total other reserves (B) 349.01 415.99
Share application money pending allotment (C) 0.63 -
Total other equity (A+B+C) 10,750.61 9,569.32
Securities premium
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Balance at the beginning of year 1,423.74 2,334.27
Exercisc of stock options 95.94 2.61
Buyback of cquity shares - (900.00)
Transaction cost related to buyback of equity shares (net of taxes) - (13.14)
Balance at the end of year - 1,519.68 1,423.74
General reserve
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Balance at the beginning of year 577.96 566.47
Transferred from stock options outstanding account on stock options forfeited/lapsed 2.97 11.49
Balance at the end of year 580.93 577.96
Retained earnings
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Balance at the beginning of year 7,151.63 5,485.90
Net Profit / (loss) for the year 1,287.50 1,870.89
ltems of other comprehensive income recognised directly in retained camings
- Remeasurements of post-cmployment benefit plans directly in retained camings (net of taxes) (138.77) 2.60
Appropriations-
- Tax on buyback of equity shares - (207.76)
Balance at the end of year 8,300.36 7,151.63
Stock options outstanding account
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Balance at the beginning of year 391.45 334.87
Stock option compensation cxpense 31.93 70.68
Transferred to securities premium on exercise of stock options (95.94) (2.61)
Transferred to general reserve on stock options forfeited/lapsed (2.97) (11.49)
Balance at the end of year 324.47 391.45
Capital Redemption Reserve
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Balance at the beginning of year 24.54 16.36
Created on buyback of equity shares - 8.18
24.54 24.54
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Share Application Money Pending Allotment

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Balance at the beginning of year = -
Share application moncy received during the ycar 1.80 0.02
Issued on exercise of stock options . (1.17) (0.02)
|Balance at the end of year 0.63 -

Nature and purpose of Reserves

Securities Premium

Sceurity premium is used to record the premium on issuc of shares or other sceuritics such as debentures or bonds. The rescrve is utilised in accordance
with the Companies Act, 2013.

General Reserve

The general reserve is the result of a company’s transferring 2 certain amount of profit from the account of retained earnings to the general reserve
account. The purpose of setting up a general reserve account is to meet potential future unknown liabilities. In other words, the general reserve is a free
reserve which can be utilized for any purpose after fulfilling certain conditions.

Retained earnings
Retained carnings represent the amount of accurnulated earnings of the Company and re-measurement diffcrences on defined benefit plans.

Stock Options outstanding Account

The stock options outstanding account is used to recognize the grant date fair value of options issued to employees under the company’s employee stock
option plans. The share-based payment reserve is used to recognise the value of equity-settled share-based payments provided to employees, including
key management personnel, as part of their remuneration. Refer to note 28 for further details.

Capital redemption reserve

As per the Companies Act, 2013, Capital redemption reserve is created when a company purchases its own shares out of ffee reserves or securities
premium. A sum cqual to the nominal value of the shares so purchased is transferred to capital redemption rescrve. This rescrve can be utilized in
accordance with the provisions of section 69 of the Companies Act, 2013. Refer note 13 for further details.

Share application 2y pending allot t

Share application money pending allotment represents the exercise price received from employees of the Company against stock options on which
allotment is not yet made.

g -“\ (This space is intentionally left blank)
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15. Borrowings

Aggregate unsecured borrowings

Particulars Note March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Non-current borrowings

Secured

Bonds/ debentures

- Non convertible debentures a 2,472.87 -

Term loans

From banks

- HDFC bank limited b 178.40 233.29

- Standard Chartered Bank c 108.95

- DBS Bank d 186.35 175.33

- Vehicle loan from banks e 377.14 344.40

From other parties

- Axis Finance Limited f 756.01 942.21

- Bajaj Finance Limited g 473.38 944.14

- Vehicle loan from others h 0.59 6.09

Total secured borrowings 4,444.74 2,754.41

Unsecured

Bonds/ debentures

Rupee denominated bonds issued to SIS Australia Group Pty Limited, a subsidiary company i 749.61 748.88

Total unsecured borrowings 749.61 748.88

Total non-current berrowings 5,194.35 3,503.29

Less: Current maturity of long-term borrowings (refer table below) (1,828.85) (964.19)

Non-current borrowings 3,365.50 2,539.10

Current borrowings

Sccured

Loans repayable on demand

From banks

- Axis Bank Limited j 540.00 740.00

- HDFC Bank Limited ] 1,500.00 1,300.00

- ICICI Bank Limited j - 800.93

- Standard Chartered Bank j 800.00 800.00

- Yes Bank Limited j - 600.00

- DBS Bank i 549.65 451.23

- CTBC Bank Co. Ltd. k - 350.00

Total secured borrowings 3,389.65 5,042.16

Unsecured - -

Total unsecured borrowings - -

Add: Current maturity of long-term borrowings (refer table below) 1,828.85 964.19

Current borrowings 5,218.50 6,006.35

Aggregate secured borrowings 7,834.39 7,796.57
749.61 748.88
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Breakup of current maturity of long-term borrowings:
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Secured

Bonds/ debentures ' . .

Term loans
From banks 223.65 293.69

From other parties 855.59 670.50

Unsecured

Total current maturity of long-term borrowings 1,828.85 964.19

Notes:
Long Term Borrowings - Secured:

Bonds/Debentures:
a)  OnMarch 26, 2025, thc Company successfully issued 25,000 Listed, Rated, Sccurcd, Redeecmable, Non-Convertible Debentures (“NCDs™) having

a face value of INR 1,00,000/- (Indian Rupees One Lakh only) each, aggregating to INR 2,500 million, The NCDs carry interest @ 8.50% per
annum, payable Quarterly. The NCDs are secured by a pledge over a portion of the Company’s Shareholding in Dusters total solutions services
private limited, a subsidiary of the Company. The debentures are redeemable 3 years after the date of issue. i.e. March 25, 2028.

Term loans:

From Banks: .

b)  Secured by way of exclusive charge on equipment/assets finance by lender to Company. The loan is repayable in 18 equal quarterly instalments
commenced in the 4* quarter of FY 2023-24 and last installment repayment is scheduled in first quarter of FY 2028-29.

¢)  Secured by way of exclusive charge over the Monitoring cquipment/assets purchascd out of the term loan proceeds. The loan is repayable in 12
equal quarterly instalments commenced from the end of the fourth quarter of FY 2021-22 and has been fully repaid during the FY 2024-25.

d) Secured by way of exclusive charge on the Monitoring equipment/assets purchased out of the term loan proceeds. The loan was repayable in 18
equal quarterly instalments commenced from the end of the 4th quarter of FY 2023-24 and last installment repayment is scheduled in first quarter
of FY 2028-29.

€) Vehicle Loan from banks are secured by hypothecation of vehicles purchased against the loan taken from that Bank. The loans have various
repayment schedules and the last instalment repayment is scheduled in FY 2029-30.

The term loans mentioned above except vehicle loans, carry interest at quarterly/half-yearly/year MCLR/Repo/T-Bill plus spread ranging from upto to
186 bps (March 31, 2024: upto to 315 bps). The vehicle loans carry interest from 7.10% to 9.20% per annum.

From Other Parties:
f)  Secured by way of first pari-passu charge on current and non-current assets of Dusters Total Solution Services Private Limited & Uniq Security

Solutions Private Limited (subsidiaries of the Company) and pledge over portion of the Company Shareholding in Dusters Total Solutions Services
Private Limited. The loan has been fully prepaid during first quarter of F.Y.2025-26.

g)  Secured by way of first pari-passu charge on current and movable fixed assets of Dusters Total Solutions Services Private Limited & UNIQ Security
Solutions Private Limitcd (subsidiarics of thc Company) and pledge over portion of the Company Shareholding in Dusters Total Solutions Services
Private Limited. The loan has been fully prepaid during first quarter of F.Y.2025-26.

h)  Vehicle Loan from other financiers are secured by hypothecation of the respective vehicle(s) purchased against the loan taken from that financier(s).
The loans carry interest from 7.50% to 9.50% per annum and have various repayment schedules and last instalment repayment is scheduled in FY
2025-2026.

Long term borrowings — Unsecured:

Bonds/debentures:

i) SIS Australia Group Pty Limited, a subsidiary, has subscribed to 750 Rupee Denominated Bonds (RDBs) of face value of INR 1,000,000/- each.
The RDBs will constitute direct, unconditional and unsecured obligations of the Company to repay the issue price plus interest @ 8% per annum.
These RDB’s shall be redeemed within 9 years (redemption due by August 2025) from the date of issue with a lock-in-period of 3 years from the
date of issue and interest is payable half yearly..

Short term borrowings — Secured/Unsecured loans repayable on demand:

i) Secured by first pari-passu charges over the current assets and second pari-passu charge over movable fixed assets.
k)  Secured by first pari passu charge over current assets both present and future.

)  The short-term borrowing charges are excluding assets specifically charged to term loan lenders, if any.

The loans repayable on demand mentioned abovc, carry interest at quarterly/half yearly/yearly MCLR/Repo rate/MIBOR/TBILL plus spread ranging
from upto 151 bps (March 31, 2024: upto 200 bps) for WCDL/Cash credit facility.

Quarterly returns or statements of current assets filed by the Company with the Banks/Financial Institutions are in agreement with the books of accounts
as per the approach agreed with the lenders, as applicable.

There has been no default in the payment of interest or repayment of principal in respect of the above loans/borrowing.
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16. Lease Liabilities

Rent expense related to short-term leases and low valuc assets

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Non-current leasc liabilitics 566.96 538.00
Current leasc liabilitics 151.67 125.75
Total lease liabilities 718.63 663.75
Movement of lease liability

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Opening balance 663.75 495.45
Additions 190.30 279.07
Finance cost accrued during the year 80.93 74.29
Payment of lease liability (216.35) (185.06)
Closing balance 718.63 663.75
Particulars | Marcn31,2025 | March 31,2024
Other disclosure related to leases

| 409.23 | 289.98

Refer note 4(i) for disclosure of related Right of Use Assets.

The Company does not expect potential exposure to variable lease payments, extension / termination options, guaranteed residual value and lease

commitments.

17. Trade payables
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Non-current - -
Current
Tradc payables
- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (MSME) 53.00 39.10
- total outstanding ducs of creditors other than micro cnterpriscs and small enterpriscs 280.00 226.99
Total current trade payables 333.00 266.09
Total 333.00 266.09

The terms and conditions of the above financial liabilities arc as follows:

a. Trade payables arc non-intercst bearing and are normally scttled on credit terms ranging from 30-90 days which vary by vendor and typc of scrvice.

b. For outstanding balances, terms and conditions with related parties, refer to note 39.

The ageing schedule for outstanding trade payables from due date is given below:
As at March 31, 2025

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date Total
Not due <1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
()MSME 44.33 8.67 - - 53.00
(ii)Others 30.76 22424 11.23 9.33 4.44 280.00
As at March 31, 2024
Particulars .Outstanding for following periods from due date Total
Not due <1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
(()MSME 37.96 114 - - - 39.10
(ii)Others 48.97 157.59 12.38 7.01 1.04 226.99

There are no disputed dues during the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024.
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Based on the information available with the Company, the amount payable to creditors who have been identified as “suppliers” within the meaning of

“Micro, Small and Medium Entcrprises Devclopment (MSMED) Act, 2006” is as below:

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Principal amount and the intcrest [ Nil (March 31, 2024 —Nil)] duc thereon 53.00 39.10
Amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act, 2006, along with the amounts of] R ;
the payment made to the supplier beyond the app 1 day during cach ing year
Amount of intcrest duc and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond B
the appointed day during the vear) but without adding the interest specified under MSMED Act, 2006
Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year - -
Amount of further interest remaining due and payable cven in the succeeding years, until such date when the
interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as n deductible - -
|expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act, 2006

18. Other financial liabilities
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Non-current
Financial guarantees 4.83 0.64
Other non-current financial liabilities 2.05 4.51
Total other non-current financial liabilities 6.88 5.15
Current
Capital creditors 21.84 1.57
Interest accrued but not duc on borrowings 26.58 31.47
Financial guarantces 10.77 9.65
Unelmimed/unpaid dividends 0.94 0.94
Employec bencefits payable 3,625.52 3.178.64
Other payablcs and accruals * 397.59 364.44
Tatal other current financial liabilitics 4,083.24 3,592.71
Total other financial liabilities 4,090.12 3,597.86

* Includes unbilled dues, having ageing of less than one year.

19. Details of gnarantee given covered U/S 186(4) of the Companies Act, 2013

Corporate guarantees given by the Company in respect of borrowings taken by subsidiaries:
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Tech SIS Limited 70.00 70.00
SIS Alarm Monitoring and Response Services Private Limited 517.50 500.00
SLV Sccurity Scrvices Private Limited 770.00 770.00
Rare Hospitality and Services Private Limited 275.00 295.26
Total 1,632.50 1,635.26

Loans given and investments made are given under the respective heads.

(This space is intentionally left blank)
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20. Financial instruments by category

—— March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised cost | FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised cost
Financial assets:
Investments
-Equity instruments 21.85 - - 0.18
-Preference shares 150.21 - - 63.27 - -
-Bonds and debentures 95.86 - 195.00 92.64 - 245.00
Trade receivables - = 6,849.70 - - 7,959.26
Cash and cash equivalents - - 1,348.22 | - - 1,132.08
Other bank balances - - 3,745.17 - - 289.64
Loans - - 31.56 - - 123.46
Other financial assets - - 3,633.65 - - 3,573.04
Total financial assets 267.92 - 15,803.30 156.09 - 13,322.48
Financial liabilities:
Trade payables - - 333.00 - - 266.09
Borrowings - - 8,584.00 - - 8,545.45
Lease liabilities . - 718.63 - - 663.75
Other financial liabilities - - 4,090.12 - - 3,597.86
Total financial liabilities - - 13,725.75 - - 13,073.15
Fair value hierarchy
The assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis and the basis for that measurement is as below:
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Level 1 inputs | Level 2 inputs | Level 3 inputs | Level 1 inputs | Level 2 inputs | Level 3 inputs
Financial Assets:
Investments carried at FVTPL - . 267.92 - - 156.09
Total Financial Asscts - - 267.92 - - 156.09
Valuation methodologies:

Investment in cquity / prefercnce instruments: The Company’s investments consist primarily of investment in equity / preference shares of unquoted
companics. Management has considered cost to be approximating to the fair value of certain investments and valucd other investments using fair valuation
techniques as mentioned below.

All of the resulting fair value estimates are included in Level 3 as the fair values have been determined based on present values and discount rates used
are adjusted for counter party or own credit risk.

The following table presents the change in Level 3 items for the periods ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024

Investments

Particulars carried at
FVTPL

As at April 1,2023 119.91
Changes during the ycar 36.18
As at March 31, 2024 156.09
Changes during the year 111.83
As at March 31, 2025 267.92
Unrealised fair value (gains) / losses recognized in statement of profit and loss related to assets and liabilities held at the end of the
reporting period:
March 31, 2025 -
March 31, 2024 =
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Fair value of assets and liabilities carried at amortised costs are as follows:

A F?ir value March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

hierarchy Carrying Value Fair Value Carrying Value Fair Value
Financial assets:
Investments Level 2 195.00 195.74 245.00 244.54
Trade receivables 6,849.70 6,849.70 7,959.26 7,959.26
Cash and cash equivalents 1,348.22 1,348.22 1,132.08 1,132.08
Other bank balanccs 3,745.17 3,745.17 289.64 289.64
Loans Level 2 31.56 31.42 123.46 125.82
Other financial assets 3,633.65 3,633.65 3,573.04 3,573.04
Total financial assets 15,803.30 15,803.90 13,322.48 13,324.38
Financial liabilities:
Trade payables 333.00 333.00 266.09 266.09
Borrowings - floating rate 4,983.79 4,983.79 7,446.08 7,446.08
Borrowings - fixed rate Level 2 3,600.21 3,414.42 1,099.37 1,059.66
Lease liabilities 718.63 718.63 663.75 663.75
Other financial liabilities 4,090.12 4,090.12 3,597.86 3,597.86
Total financial liabilitics 13,725.75 13,539.96 13,073.15 13,033.44

The Company has assessed that the fair value of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, other financial assets, trade payables, bank overdrafts,
lease liabilities and other financial liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

The fair value of investments, loans given and fixed rate borrowings are calculated based on fixed cash flows discounted using weighted average cost of
debt as on balance sheet date and accordingly classified under level 2 fair values in the fair value hierarchy due to the use of significant observable inputs.

Valuation inputs and relationships to fair value
The following table summarises the quantitative information about the significant unobservable inputs used in Level 3 fair value measurements:

Particulars Fair value as at Significant
unobservable Sensitivity
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 inputs
Management has considered fair value / cost
Unquoted investments 267.92) 156.09 | Fair value / Cost (o be approximaling to fair valuc of such
investments.
Valuation processes

The finance department of the Company includes the team that performs the valuations of financial assets and liabilities required for financial reporting
purposes, including level 3 fair valucs. The team reports dircctly to the chief financial officer (CFO). Discussions of valuation processes and results arc
held between the CFO and the team at least once every 3 months, in line with the Company’s quarterly reporting period. Extemal valuer’s assistance is
also taken for valuation purposcs where required.

The main level 3 inputs used by the Company are derived and evaluated as follows:

o Discounts rates are determined using a capital asset pricing model to calculate a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risk specific to the asset.

o Risk adjustments specific to the counter parties (including assumptions about credit default rates) are derived from credit risk grading determined
by the Company’s internal credit risk management group.

e Volatility used for option pricing model is based on historical volatility of comparable companics.

e Contingent consideration — estimated based on expected cash outflows arising from the forecasted sales and the entities; knowledge of the business
and how the current cconomic cnvironment is likely to impact it.

21. Provisions

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Provision for employee benefits (refer note 27) : Non-current Current Non-current Current
Gratuity 1,075.38 175.09 942.90 133.11
Compensated absences - 116.56 - 122.86
Total 1,075.38 291.65 942.90 255.97

e
o

ccou®
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22. Other liabilities

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Other non-current liabilities - -

Other current liabilities

Statutory dues payable 1,415.48 1,309.92

Total other current liabilities 1,415.48 1,309.92

Total other liabilities 1,415.48 1,309.92
23. Revenue from operations

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Sale of products (traded goods)

Revenue from sale of electronic security devices 224.92 473.59
Total (A) 224.92 473.59
Rendering of services

Security services

From guarding and other security scrvices 48,242.05 44.125.28

Other services

From training fees 114.86 123.85
Total rendering of services 48,356.91 44,249.13
Other operating revenues® 728.56 689.86
Total (B) 49,085.47 44,938.99
Revenue from operations (A+B) 49,310.39 45,412.58
*Includes revenue from the sale of uniforms to employees.
Disaggregated revenue information
The following table presents the disaggregated revenue from contracts with customers.
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Revenue by time of recognition
At a point in time 564.61 473.59
Over the period of time 48,745.78 44,938.99
Total 49,310.39 45,412.58
Contract Balances
The following table provides information about unbilled revenue and unearned income from contract with customers:
barticulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Unbilled revenue | Unearned Income | Unbilled revenue | Unearned Income
Opening balance 2,903.29 - 2,561.39 0.72
Revenue recognised that was included 1n uneamed ncome at the
beginning of the ycar - - - (0.72)
Tncrease due to cash received, excluding amounts recognised as revenue
during the year - - e =
Transters from unbilled revenue, recognised at the beginning of the year,
to receivables (2,903.29) - (2,561.39) -
Tncrease due fo revenue recognised during the year, excluding amounts
billed during the year 3,069.68 A 2,903.29 =
Closing balance 3,069.68 - 2,903.29 -
Cost to obtain or fulfil a contract with a customer
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Opening balance - 0.72
Costs incurred and deferred -
Less: Cost amortised (0.72)

Closing balance
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24, Other income

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Intcrest income® 357.84 174.96
Dividend income from subsidiaries 7.17 662.37
Total 365.01 837.33
*Includes interest income on income tax refund
25. Other gain / (loss)
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Net gain/(loss) on sale of property, plant and equipment* 3.34 1.72
Foreign cxchange gain/(loss) (0.03) 0.43
Othcr items** 20.85 0.79
Total 24.16 2.94

*Includes gain/(loss) on derecognition of Right-of-Use assets
**Includes gain on fair valuation of financial guarantee contracts

26. Changes in inventory

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Inventory at the beginning of the year 180.33 150.57
Inventory at the end of the year 154.69 180.33
Changes in inventory - (increase)/decrease 25.64 (29.76)

27. Employee Cost

(a) Employee benefits expense include:
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Salaries, wages and bonus 39,105.64 35,700.44
Contribution to provident and other funds 3,920.12 3,714.60
Employce share-bascd payment cxpcnse 24.99 45.66
Gratuity expense 224.16 271.87
Leave compensation (3.80) 52.31
Staff welfare expenses (35.24) (69.11)
Total 43,235.87 39,715.77

(b) Unfunded Scheme — Leave obligations

Leave obligations cover the Company’s liability for sick and earned leave.

The provision for leave obligations is presented as current, since the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of any of these

obligations.

Unfunded Schemes:
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Present value of unfunded obligations 116.56 122.86
Expenscs to be recognized in the statement of profit and loss (3.80) 52.31
Discount rate (per annum) 6.55% 7.15%

Indian Assured Lives

Indian Assured Lives|

Mortality Mortality (2012-14)] Mortality (2012-14)
Ult. Ult.
Salary escalation rate (per annum) 8.00% 8.00%

The liability for earned and sick leave is recognised and measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows to be made in respect of non-
billing employces at the reporting date. In determining the present value of the liability, attrition rates and pay increascs through promotion and inflation

have been taken into account.
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(c) Defined contribution plans

The Company has certain defined contribution plans. Contributions arc made to provident fund for employces at the rate of 12% of the salary (subject to
a limit of TNR 15,000 salary per month) as per regulations. The contributions are made to a statutory provident fund administered by the Government.
The obligation of the Company is limited to the amount contributed and it has no further contractual or constructive obligations in this regard.

Further, contributions are made in respect of Employees’ State Insurance Scheme, for specified employees, at the rate of 3.25% of the gross pay as per
regulations. The contributions are towards medical benefits provided by the Govemment to the employees. The contributions are made to employees’
state insurance authorities administered by the Government. The obligation of the Company is limited to the amount contributed and it has no further
contractual or constructive obligations in this regard.

Contributions to provident fund and employees state insurance scheme are recognised as an expense as they become payable which coincides with the
period during which relevant cmployee services arc received. Prepaid contributions arc recogniscd as an assct to the extent that a cash refund or 2
reduction in the future payments is availablc.

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Expensc recognised during the period towards defined contribution plans 3.920.12 3,714.60

(d) Defined benefits plans
In accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, the Company provides for a lump sum payment to eligible employees, at retirement or termination
of employment based on the last drawn salary, years of employment with the Company subject to completion of five years of service and other conditions.
The gratuity plan is a partly funded plan and the Company makes contributions to a fund administered and operated by a reputed insurance company.
The Company does not fully fund the liability and maintains a target level of funding to be maintained over a period of time based on estimations of
cxpected gratuity payments.

The Company has invested the 100% plan assets in the funds managed by insurance companies.

The following tables summarises the components of net benefit expense recognised in the standalone statement of profit or loss and the funded status
and amounts recognised in the standalone balance sheet for the respective plans:

Expenditure to be recognized during the year:

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Current service cost 236.39 207.99
Interest cost 65.45 63.88
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 224.16 271.87
Remeasurements
Return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in interest income 7.26 (7.56)
Loss / (gain) from changes in financial assumptions 32.03 2.38
Expericnce loss / (gain) 146.16 L.71
Total loss / (gain) recognised in other comprehensive income 185.45 3.47)
Change in present value of defined benefit obligation is summarized below:
Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of Defined Benefit Obligation March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Defined benefit obligation at the beginning of year 1,264.33 1,092.39
Current service cost 236.39 207.99
Past service cost (77.68) -
Interest cost 78.91 68.61
Remcasurements 178.19 4.08
Bencfits paid (236.13)] (108.56)
Liabilities assumed / (settled) 0.98 (0.18)
Defined benefit obligation at the end of year 1,444.99 1,264.33
Reconciliation of fair value of Plan Assets:
Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of fair value of plan assets March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year 188.32 175.24
Interest income 13.46 4.73
Remeasurements (7.26) 7.56
Contribution by employer 236.13 109.35
Benefits paid (236.13) (108.56)
Fair value of plan assets at the closing of the year 194.52 188.32
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Reconciliation of fair value of Assets and obligations:

Reconciliation of fair value of assets and obligations March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Fair value of plan assets 194.52 188.32
Present value of obligation (1,444.99) (1,264.33)
Asset / (liability) recognized in balance Sheet (1,250.47) (1,076.01)

The present value of defined benefit obligation relates to active employees only.

The Company has no legal obligation to settle the deficit in the funded plans with an immediate contribution or additional one-off contributions. The
Company intends to continue to contribute to the defined benefit plans to achieve a target levet of funding to be maintained over a period of time based

on estimations of expected gratuity payments.

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity and post-employment benefit obligations for the Company’s plans are shown below:

Principal assumptions
Principal actuarial assumptions March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Discount rate 6.55% 7.15%)
Indian Assured Lives| Indian Assured Lives
Mortality Mortality (2012-14)]  Mortalily (2012-14),
Ult. Ult,
Future salary increasc
- Non-billing / indirect employees 8.00% 8.00%
- Billing /direct employees 7.00% 7.00%
Aftrition rate
Billing employees
- Age from 21-30 years 39.00% 39.00%)
- 31 & above 28.00% 28.00%)|
Non billing employeces
- Age from 21-30 years 27.00% 27.00%)|
- 31-40 16.00% 16.00%
- 41-50 12.00% 12.00%
- 51 & above 16.00%| 16.00%
A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption is as shown below:
Assumptions March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Discount rate
0.5% incrcase (1.85%))| (1.84%)
0.5% decrease 1.93% 1.91%
Future salary increases
).5% increase 1.84% 1.84%
0.5% decrease (1.80%) (1.79%)

The above sensitivity analysis is based on a change in assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur,
and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial
assumptions, the same method (present value of the defined bencfit obligation calculated with the projected credit unit method at the end of the
reporting period) has been applied as when calculating the defined benefit liability recognised in the standalone balance sheet.

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the previous year.

Risk Exposure
Through its defined benefit plans, the Company is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are market volatility, changes in inflation,
changes in interest rates, rising longevity, changing economic environment and regulatory changes.

The Company has sclected a suitable insurer to manage the funds in such a manner as to ensure that the investment positions arc managed with an assct-
liability matching framework that has been developed to achicve investments which arc in line with the obligations under the cmployee benefit plans.
Within this framework, the asset-liability matching objective is to match assets to the obligations by investing in securities to match the benefit payments
as they fall due.

The insurer, on behalf of the Company, actively monitors how the duration and the expected yield of the investments are matching the expected cash
outflows arising from employee benefit obligations. The Company has not changed the processes used to manage its risks from previous periods.
Investments are well diversified, such that failure of any single investment should not have a material impact on the overall level of assets.
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Defined benefit liability and employer contributi
The weighted average duration of the post-cmployment benefit p.
follows:

'
lan obligations and expected maturity analysis of undiscounted gratuity benefits is as

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
The weighted average duration of the post-cmployment benefit plan obligations (in years) 3.78 3.74
Expected contribution to the fund during next year 369.61 321.42
Maturity profile: March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Less than a year 369.61 321.42
Between 1-2 years 297.37 271.85
Between 2-5 years 630.35 564.55
Over 5 Years 621.63 567.98
Total 1,918.96 1,725.80

(e) The Code on Wages, 2019 and the Code on Social Security, 2020 have been notified through Gazette of India after assent of Hon’ble President of
India which govern, and are likely to impact, the contributions by the Company towards certain employee’s benefits. Notification of the rules of these
codes are pending. The effective date of implementation of these Codes has not yet been notified and the Company will assess the impact of these codes
as and when they come into effect and will provide for the appropriate impact in its financial statements in the period in which, the Code becomes

effective.

28. Share-based payments
The Company has Employec Stock Option plan namely ESOP 2016 as on March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024.

a) During the year ended March 31, 2022, the Company issued 1,421,973 options to eligible employees which will vest over next four financial
years and be eligible for exercise, subject to certain conditions, after June 1, 2025, except as approved otherwise. Out of such options:
(i) - 243,741 options have been forfeited/lapsed till March 31, 2025
@ii) 275,581 options have been exercised up till March 31, 2025
(iii) 571,365 options have been vested and exercisable but not exercised / allotted as on March 31, 2025

b) During the year ended March 31, 2023, the Company issued a further 35,700 options to eligible employees which will vest over next three
financial years and be eligible for exercise, subject to certain conditions, after June 1, 2025, except as approved otherwise. Out of such
options:

1) 21,800 options have been forfeited/lapsed on account of the respective employees no longer in employment till March 31, 2025.
(ii) 10,000 options have been exercised up till March 31, 2025.
(ii1) 2,600 options have been vested and exercisable but not exercised as on March 31, 2025.

c) During the year ended March 31, 2024, the Company issued a further 10,000 options to eligible employees which will vest over next two
financial years and be eligible for exercise, subject to certain conditions, after June 1, 2025, except as approved otherwise. Out of such
options:

(i) No options have been forfeited/lapsed till March 31,2024.
(ii) 5,000 options have been vested and exercisable but not excrcised as on March 31, 2025.

d)  During the year ended March 31, 2025, the Company issued a further 1,000 options to eligible employees which will vest over next financial
year and be eligible for exercise, subject to certain conditions, on or after October 5, 2025, except as approved otherwise. Out of such options:
) No options havc been forfeited/lapsed till March 31,2025,

(i) No options have been vested and not exerciscd/cxercisable as on March 31, 2025

€) During the year ended March 31, 2025, Nomination and Remuneration Committee has approved the option of early exercise of vested option
as on date.

f) There were no cancellation to the awards during the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024

Options granted under the aforesaid plans carry no dividend or voting rights.

Movement during the year
Year ended March 31, 2025

ESOP 2016
Particulars ESOPs granted in Total
2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25

Outstanding stock options as on April 1, 2024 11,96,083 13,900 10,000 - 12,19,983
Exercise Price INR 5/- INR 5/- INR 5/- INR 5/- INR 5/-
Options granted during the year - - 1,000 1,000
Options exercised during the year* 2,57,070 10,000 - - 2,67,070
Options forfeited/lapsed during the year 36,362 - - - 36,362
Outstanding stock options as at March 31, 2025 9,02,651 3,900 10,000 1,000 9,17,551
Exercisable stock options as at March 31, 2025 » 5,71,365 2,600 5,000 - 5,78,965
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Year ended March 31, 2024

ESOP 2016
Particulars ESOPs granted in Total
2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25

OQutstanding stock options as on April 1, 2023 12,94,288 33,900 - - 13,28,188
Exercise Price INR 5/- INR 5/- INR 5/- - INR 5/-
Options granted during the year - - 10,000 - 10,000
Options exercised during the year* 7312 - - - 7,312
Options forfeited/lapsed during the year 90,893 20,000 - - 1.10,893
Outstanding stock options as at March 31, 2024 11,96,083 13,900 10,000 - 12,19,983
Exercisable stock options as at March 31, 2024 - - - - -

*The weighted average share price at the date of exercise of options during the year ended March 31, 2025 was INR 348.03 (March 31, 2024: INR
440.23).

Ancludes 120,146 options exercised but not allotted during the ycar ecnded March 31, 2025.

There were no cancellations or modifications to the awards in March 31, 2025 or March 31, 2024.

Stock options outstanding at the end of the year have the following details:

Exercise Fair value Stock options Stock options
Grant Tranche | Grant date | Vesting date | Expiry date price (INR) outstanding outstanding

(INR) @ March 31,2025 | March 31,2024
Plan I (ESOP 2016): Grant V I 20-Apr-21 01-Jun-22|  Ol1-Jun-27 5.00 357.19 1,61,258 2,39,217
Plan LI (ESOP 2016): Grant V I 20-Apr-21 01-Jun-23|  01-Jun-27 5.00 357.19 1,63,758 2,39,216
Plan Il (ESOP 2016): Grant V m 20-Apr-21 01-Jun-24|  Ol-Jun-27 5.00 357.19 2,42,749 3,58,825
Plan II (ESOP 2016): Grant V [\% 20-Apr-21 01-Jun-25|  01-Jun-27 5.00 357.19 3,34,886 3,58,825
Plan II (ESOP 2016): Grant V [ 20-Oct-22|  21-Oct-23|  0l-Jun-27 5.00 411.65 1,300 4,633
Plan I[ (ESOP 2016): Grant V 1 20-Oct-22|  O1-Jun-24|  Ol-Jun-27 5.00 411.65 1,300 4,633
Plan I (ESOP 2016): Grant V m 20-Oct-22|  01-Jun-25| Ol-Jun-27 5.00 411.65 1,300 4,634
Plan II (ESOP 2016): Grant V I 12-Dec-23|  12-Dec-24|  0l1-Jun-27 5.00 450.98 5,000 5,000
Plan IT (ESOP 2016): Grant V I 12-Dec-23 01-Jun-25|  01-Jun-27 5.00 450.98 5,000 5,000
Plan I (ESOP 2016): Grant V I 04-Oct-24|  05-Oct-25|  01-Jun-27 5.00 398.62 1,000 -
Total 9,17,551 12,19,983

The weighted average remaining contractual life for the options outstanding as on March 31, 2025 is 2.17 ycars (March 31, 2024: 3.17 ycars)

Fair value of options granted
The fair value at grant date is determined using the Black Scholes Model which takes into account the exercise price, the term of the option, the market
price being the latest available closing price prior to the date of the grant and expected price volatility of the underlying share, the expected dividend

yield and the risk-free interest rate for the term of the option as detailed below:
Grant date Volatility Market price (INR) :;:i::lg:(::;‘li:: Risk-free interest rate Dividend yield
20-Apr-21 46.02% 360.95 5.12 5.55% 0.00%
20-Oct-22 39.02% 415.60 3.62 7.39% 0.00%
12-Dec-23 34.06% 455.35 221 7.28% 0.00%
04-Oct-24 33.99% 403.05 1.83 6.66% 0.00%

Total expenses arising from share-based payment transactions recognised in profit or loss as part of employee benefit expense were as follows:

Particulars March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024
Employee stock option plan 24.99 45.66
Total employee share-based payment expense 24.99 45.66

The Company has issued/granted stock options to employees of its certain subsidiaries for which cost of INR 6.94 million (March 31, 2024: INR 25.03
million) is charged to respective subsidiary and reimbursed to the Company.
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29. Finance costs

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Intercst cxpenscs 794.01 797.88
Intcrest on lease liability 80.93 74.29
Other finance costs* 13.44 5.18
Total 888.38 877.35

* Includes commitment charges, loan processing charges, guarantee charges, loan facilitation charges, other ancillary costs incurred in connection with

borrowings other than finance costs that do not meet the definition of transaction costs.

30. Depreciation and amortization expenses

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment including ROU (Note 4) 637.54 660.21
Amortization of intangible assets (Note 5) 52.59 76.70
Total 690.13 736.91
31. Other expenses

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Training expenses 104.66 29.92
Uniform and kil items 63.07 45.44
Selling expenses 47.69 51.11
Administrative expenses:
Travelling and conveyance 307.50 307.61
Postage and telephone 23.49 20.88
Stationary and printing 15.69 20.60
Rent * 409.23 289.98
Rates & taxes 26.88 44.39
[nsurance 148.14 138.68
Repairs and maintenance:

- Buildings 1.37 3.84

- Machinery 5.61 17.09

- Others 218.76 195.67
Vehicle hire charges 144.54 125.88
Payments to auditors (Refer details below) 5.31 4.38
Legal and professional fees 192.23 138.29
Allowanee for expected credit loss 143.12 129.60
Expense towards corporate social responsibility (Refer details below) 25.34 22.36
Dircct operating cost 477.51 406.69
Other administration and general expenses 492.42 364.70
Total 2,852.56 2,357.11

* Refer notc 16

Payment to Auditors

Particulars

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

As auditor:

Audit fee (including fees for limited review) 4.45 3.78
In other capacity:

Other services (certification fees)* 0.86 0.60
Total payment to auditors 5.31 4.38

* [ncludes reimbursement of expenses
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Details of CSR expenditure

(vi) disaster management, mnchuding relief, rehabilitation and reconstruction activities.

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 25.34 22.36
(b) Amount spent during the year:

(i) Construction/acquisition of any asset - -

(i)) On purposes other than (i) above 24.25 42.22
(c) The excess/(shortfall) amount at the end of the year over and above the amount required to be spent by (1.09) 19.86
the company during the year i i
(d) Total previous years excess/(shortfall) adjusted during the year 1.09 4.43
(¢) The excess/(shortfall) amount at the end of the year (including excess/(shortfall) of previous years) 23.21 24.29
(f) The nature of CSR activities undertaken by the company
(i) Promoting education to children ncluding primary, secondary and university education, building schools, colleges and
training nstitutions including provision for full time residential institutions and full student sponsorship, promoting and 19.90 23.88
sponsoring girl education at all levels, women education and self-cmployment training, other educational projects
(ii) Local commumity health check camps, building hospitals, clinics, diagnostic centres and associated infrastructure, 0.65 6.20
blood donation camps and other specific ailment camps. ' i
(iif) protection of national heritage, art and culture including restoration of buildings and sites of historical importance and . 314
works of art; setting up public lbraries; promotion and development of traditional arts and handicrafts. .
(iv) Promotion of sports, art, culture and research activities 3.70 -
(v) Ensuring environmental sustanability, ccological balance, protection of flora and fauna, animal welfare, agroforestry,
conservation of nanural resources and maintaining quality of soil, air and water ncluding contribution to the Clean Ganga - 2.50
Fund set-up by the Central Government for rejuvenation of river Ganga.

- 1.50

32. Earnings per share (EPS)

A reconciliation of profit for the year and cquity shares used in the computation of basic and diluted eamings per cquity share is sct out below:

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company :

Continuing operations 1,287.50 1,870.89
Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company for basic earnings 1,287.50 1,870.89
Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company adjusted for the effect of dilution 1,287.50 1,870.89
Weighted average number of equity shares for basic EPS (Numbers) 14,41,50,826 14,53,44,093
Effect of dilution:

Stock options (Numbers) 9,05,952 12,05,991
Weighted average number of equity shares adjusted for the cffect of dilution 14,50,56,778 14,65,50,084
Nominal value of equity shares (INR) 5.00 5.00)]
Earnings per share

- Basic (INR) 8.93 12.87
- Diluted (INR) 8.88 12.77

33. Distributions made and proposed

Particulars

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Cash dividends on equity shares declared and paid:

Final dividend @ INR Nil per share (March 31, 2024: INR Nil per share)

Dividend distribution tax on proposed dividend

Proposed dividends on equity shares are subject to approval at the annual general meeting and are not recognised as a liability as at the reporting date.




SIS LIMITED (formerly known as ‘Security and Intelligence Services (India) Limited’)

All amounts in INR million, unless stated otherwise

34, Commitments and contingencies
(a) Capital commitment

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account (net of capital advances) and nol 1903 5.7
provided for ) )

(b)Contingent liabilities
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Claims against the Cotrpany not acknowledged as debt:

- Litigation matters with respect to direct taxes 148.53 382,17
- Litigation matters with respect indirect taxcs 134.09 103.36
Other money for which the Cormpany is contingently liable 8.44 10.11
Total 291.06 495.64

The Company is subject to various income tax proceedings arising from assessments for multiple assessment years. These primarily relate to disallowances
of expenses including belated remittances of employees’ share of Provident Fund (PF) and Employees’ State Insurance (ESI) under Section 36(1)(va),
disallowance w/s 14A, ESOP expenses, differences between the Return of Income and Tax Audit Report, and other disallowances under Sections 37 and 43B
of the Income-tax Act, [961. Appeals have been filed before appropriate appellate authorities including the Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals) and
Income Tax Appellate Tribunal (ITAT) as applicable. Rectification applications have also been submitted in relevant cases. The Company believes that it has
a valid position in these matters and the likelihood of an outflow of resources is not considered probable at this stage. Accordingly, selected provision has
been made in the financial statements, and the matters have been disclosed as contingent liabilities.

The Company is subject to various indirect proceedings under Service Tax, Finance Act, 1994 and Goods and Service Tax 2017 in various states. The
litigation is due to assessments and audit conducted by GST Authorities, including the cases which have been filed under appeals at different Appellate
Authorities i.e. Commissioner Appeals and CESTAT. The various issues involved are due to taxability of reimbursement of expenditure, excess claim of
input credit as per authorities, pre-GST credit notes issued, GST payable on SEZ locations, GST liability due to incorrect computation of GSTR1 vs GSTR3B,
GSTR3B vs GSTRS.

The Company records a liability when it is both probable that a loss has been incurred and the amount can be reasonably estimated. Significant judgment
is required to determine both probability and the estimated amount. The Company reviews these provisions periodically and adjusts these provisions
accordingly to reflect the impact of negotiations, scttlements, rulings, advice of legal counsel, and updated information. The Company believes that the amount
or estimable range of reasonably possiblc loss, will not, cither individually or in the aggregate, have a material adverse effect on its business, financial position,
results of the Company, or cash flows with respect to loss contingencies for legal and other contingencies as at March 31, 2025.

Disputed claims against the Company, including claims raised by the tax authorities and which are pending in appeal /court and for which no reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation, are not provided for in the accounts. However, the present obligation, if any, as a result of past
events with a possibility of outflow of resources, when reliably estimable, is recognised in the accounts as an expense as and when such obligation
crystallises.

35. Events occurring after the balance sheet date
There were no significant events that occurred after the Balance Shect date.

36. Operating segment

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Revemxe from operations 49,310.39 45,412.58
Eamning before mterest, tax, depreciation and armortisation (EBITDA)Y* 2,780.81 2,670.16

*Excluding other income, other gain/(loss) and impairment in value of investment

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Customers exceeding 10% of total revenue

No of customers exceeding 10% of total revenue - -

Total revenue of such customers - -

The Company is required to disclose segment information based on the ‘management approach’ as defined in Ind AS 108- Operating Segments, which
in how the Chicf Operating Decision Maker (CODM) evaluates the Company’s performance and allocates resources based on the analysis of the various
performance indicators. In the case of the Company, the CODM reviews the results of the Company as a whole as the Company is primarily engaged in
the business of rendering security services in India. Accordingly, the Company is a single CGU, hence single segment Company. The information as
required under Ind AS 108 is available directly from the financial statements, hence no separate disclosures have been made.

37. Business combinations and acquisition of non-controlling interests
During the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024, the Company has not entered into any business combination or acquisition.
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SIS LIMITED (formerly known as ‘Security and Intelligence Services (India) Limited’)
#

All amounts in INR million, unless stated otherwise

Information regarding significant transactions:

SNo |Particulars Relationship March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Property, plant and equipment purchased/
a) Intangible assets acquired
SIS Alarm Monitoring and Response Service Private Limited Subsidiary 10.11 89.02
RSYA Dhanbad Auto Private Limited Others* 33.35 60.30
RSYA Durgapur Private Limited Others* 9,98 42.08
Purchase of goods / receiving of services / expenses reimbursed to
b) related parties
Tech SIS Limited Subsidiary 20.65 74.40
SMC Intcgrated Facility Management Solutions Limited Subsidiary 88.61 80.10
Duster Total Solution Scrvices Private Limited Subsidiary 49.89 65.84
SIS Alarm Monitoring and Response Scrvice Private Limited Subsidiary 387.28 289.33
Sale of goods / rendering of services / expenses reimbursed by related
<) parties
Duster Total Solution Scrvices Private Limited Subsidiary 108.54 98.57
SMC Intcgrated Facility Management Solutions Limited Subsidiary 94.61 80.60
Rare Hospitality and Services Private Limited Subsidiary 13.77 11.03
Uniq Security Solutions Private Limited Subsidiary 21.25 25.57
Onc SIS Solutions Private Limited Subsidiary 126.17 80.42
Security Skills Council [ndia Limited Others* 90.34 95.27
d) Investments made
Tech SIS Limitcd Subsidiary - 30.00
c) Repayment of loans given
SMC Integrated Facility Management Solutions Limited Subsidiary 91.90 -
f) Interest expense on bonds or debentures or loans received
SIS Australia Group Pty Ltd Subsidiary 60.00 60.16
g) Interest income on bonds or debentures or loans given
SMC Integrated Facility Management Solutions Limited Subsidiary 9.24 12.77
SIS Alarm Monitoring and Response Service Pt ltd Subsidiary 13.20 13.20
SIS Cash Services Limited Joint Ventures 12.13 17.63
h) Dividend income
SIS Australia Group Pty Limited Subsidiary 7.17 6.16
SIS Security International Holdings Pte. Ltd. Subsidiary - 57.85
Duster Total Solution Services Private Limited Subsidiary - 336.20
UNIQ Security Solutions Private Limited Subsidiary = 162.00
SMC Integrated Facility Management Solutions Limited Subsidiary - 100.16
1) Salary & remuneration
Ravindra Kishore Sinha KMP ** 33.00 25.27
Devesh Desai KMP ** 15.09 15.13
Rituraj Kishore Sinha KMP ** 15.73 12.77
Arvind Kumar Prasad KMP ** 7.60 7.03
Brajesh Kumar’ KMP ** 10.16 8.97
Pushpalatha Katkuri KMP ** 5.36 467
Director sitting fees KMP ** 10.60 8.90
1) Rent paid
SIS Asset Management Limited Others* 105.06 79.31
k) Contribution to CSR Expenditure
Annapurna S.P, Sinha Welfare Activitics & Social Awarcness Reforms
Charitable Trust Others* 4.80 12.38
)] Redemption of bonds, debentures and notes
SIS Cash Services Limited Joint Venture 50.00 50.00

* Others represents Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by group of individuals or their relatives who have control or significant
influence over the Company

** Key Management personnel and their relatives
# Includes an amount of INR 0.89 million (March 31, 2024: Nil) towards share based payments for the options exercised during the year.




SIS LIMITED (formerly known as ‘Security and Intelligence Services (India) Limited’)
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The details of loans and advances as required by Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure requirements) regulation,
2015 are given in the table below:

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Maximum amount Maximum amount
tstanding during the outstanding during the
Outstanding balance year Outstanding balance year
Service Masters Clcan Limited - - 91.90 91.90
Tech SIS Limited 31.56 31.56 31.56 31.56
Total 31.56 31.56 123.46 123.46

40. Financial risk management

The Company’s principal financial liabilities, comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables, and financial guarantee contracts. The
main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations and to provide guarantees to support the financing of the
operations of its subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates. The Company’s principal financial assets include trade and other receivables, cash
and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations, loans, security and other deposits.

The Company’s operations expose it to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s focus is to reduce volatility in financial
statements whilc maintaining balance between providing predictability in the Company’s business plan along with rcasonable participation in
market movement. It is the Company’s policy that no trading in derivatives for spcculative purposes may be undertaken.

Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices.

Market risk mainly comprises currency risk and interest rate risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings,
loans and deposits given, FVTOCI investments and derivative financial instruments.

Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange

rates which arises from assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of the respective entities and foreign
currency revenuc and cash flows. The Company’s cxposure to the risk of changes in foreign currency exchange rates relates primarily to the
Company’s operating activitics (when revenue or expensc is denominated in a foreign currency) and the Company’s net investments in foreign
subsidiaries. The Company has limited foreign currency transactions and has limited exposure to foreign currency assets and liabilities
resulting in the foreign currency risk being low.

The exchange rate between the Indian Rupee and foreign currencies has fluctuated in recent years and may continue to do so in the future.
Consequently, the results of the Company’s operations may be affected as the Indian Rupee appreciates/depreciates against these currencies.

The Company’s exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period expressed in INR are as follows:

Particulars Financial asscts Financial Liabilitics

As at March 31, 2025
SGD - -
AUD 231 0.82

Net exposure to foreign currency risk as at March 31, 2025 231 0.82
As at March 31, 2024
SGD - -
AUD 1.90 -
Net cxposure to foreign currency risk as at March 31, 2024 1.90

Sensitivity
The sensitivity of profit or loss to change in the exchange rates arises mainly from foreign exchange denominated financial instruments are as
follows:

Particulars Impact on profit after tax

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Sensitivity
Ingrease by 5% (0.07) (0.10)
Decrease by 5% 0.07 0.10
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Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk primarily arises from floating rate borrowing, including various revolving and other lines of credit. Interest rate risk is the
risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

The exposure of the Company's borrowing to interest rate changes at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Particulars March 31, 2025 Mareh 31, 2024
Variable rate borrowings:

- Loan repayable on demand 3,389.65 5.042.16
- Others 1,594.14 2,403.92
Fixed rate borrowings

- Bonds/ Debentures 3,222.48 748.88
- Vehicle loan 377.73 350.49
Total 8,584.00 8,545.45

The Company’s fixed-rate borrowings are carried at amortised cost. They are, therefore, not subject to interest rate risk as defined in Ind-AS

107, since neither the carrying amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because of a change in market interest rates.

Profit or loss is sensitivc to higher/lower intercst expense from variable rate borrowings as a result of changes in interest rates.

Particulars

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Interest rates - increase by 25 basis points *

12.46

18.62

Interest rates - decrease by 25 basis points *

(12.46)

(18.62)

*Holding all other variables constant

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from the possibility that counterparties may not be able to settle their obligations as agreed resulting in a financial loss. The
primary exposure to credit risk arises from Trade receivables and Unbilled revenue (refer note 11 & 7 respectively). These are unsecured and
are managed by the Company through a system of periodically assessing the financial reliability of customers, taking into account the financial
condition, current economic trends, and analysis of historical bad debts and ageing of accounts receivables. There is no customer accounted
for more than 10% of the accounts receivable as of March 31, 2025 (March 31, 2024: single customer). There is no significant concentration
of credit risk. The Company uses the expected credit loss (‘ECL’) method to assess the loss allowance for Trade receivables and Unbilled
revenue taking into account primarily the historical trends and analysis of bad debts. The Company does not expect any credit risk or
impairment in respect of amounts lent to its subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, if any.

The credit risk for financial assets other than bank balances and trade reccivablcs are considered low.

Significant estimates and judgements

Impairment of financial assets

The impairment provision for financial assets disclosed above are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates. The
Company uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the Company’s past
history and existing market conditions. The Company estimates loss arising on trade receivables as a percentage of sales based on past trends
and such loss is directly debited to revenue instead of creating a provision for impairment of receivables.

Financial instruments and cash deposits

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company’s treasury department in accordance with the
Company’s policy. Surplus funds are invested in bank fixed deposits or uscd to temporarily reduce the balance of cash credit accounts to
optimize interest costs.

Ligquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting its obligations associated with financial liabilities. The Company
consistently generates sufficient cash flows from operations and has access to multiple sources of funding to meet its financial obligations and
maintain adequate liquidity for use.

The Company’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank overdrafts, bank loans,
debentures, shareholder equity, and finance leases.

The below table summarises the Company’s long-term debt that will mature in less than one year based on the carrying value of borrowings
reflected in the financial statements.

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Company's long-term debt 5,194.35 3,503.29

Company’s long-term debt that will mature in less than one year from reporting period 1,828.85 964.19
35.21% 27.52%

The Company has assessed the concentration of risk with respect to refinancing its debt and concluded it to be low. The Company has access
to a sufficient variety of sources of funding and significant portion of short-term debt maturing within 12 months can be rolled over with
existing lenders. The Company believes that it has sufficient working capital and cash accruals to meet its business requirements and other

obligations.




SIS LIMITED (formerly known as ‘Security and Intelligence Services (India) Limited’)
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The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments.

Year ended March 31, 2025

Particulars On demand Less than 3 3 to 12 months 1 to 5 years > 5 years Total
months
Borrowings 3,389.65 290.40 1,936.66 3,944.59 - 9,561.30
Lease liabilities - 55.62 166.78 606.70 208.05 1,037.15
Other financial liabilities - 4,045.89 - 2.05 . 4,047.94
Trade payables - 333.00 - - 333.00
Financial guarantee contracts - 345 7.31 4.84 - 15.60
Year ended March 31, 2024
Particulars On demand Less thanl3 _3 to 12 months| 1 to 5 years| > 5 years| Total
Borrowings 5,042.16 282.56 970.61 2,788.19 0.05 9,083.57
Lease liabilities - 48.87 144.39 628.88 145.50 967.64
Other financial liabilities - 3,551.59 - 4.51 - 3,556.10
Trade payables - 266.09 - - - 266.09
Financial guarantee contracts - 341 6.24 0.64 - 10.29

As a matter of policy, the Company does not carry out any hedging activities.

There has been no default in servicing borrowings.

The company has the following financial assets which are subject to the impairment requircments of Ind AS 109. On assessment of the future
cash flows arising from these assets, the Company believes that there is no provision required to be made for impairment losses on these

assets.
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Financial Assets:
Investments 195.00 245.00
Loans 31.56 123.46
Other financial assets 3,633.65 3.573.04
Total 3,860.21 3,941.50

Reconciliation of liabilities whose cash flow movements are disclosed as part of financing activities in the standalone statement of cash

flows:
Year ended March 31, 2025
Finance /
. As at April 1, . | As at Mareh 31,
Balance sheet caption 2024 Cash flow Transaction 2025
cost
Borrowings * 3,503.29 1,708.57 (17.51) 5,19435
Interest accrued 31.47 (811.75) 806.86 26.58
Year ended March 31, 2024
Finance /
. As at April 1, . | As at Mareh 31,
Balance sheet caption 2023 Cash flow Transaction| 2024
cost
Borrowings * 3,194.26 299.81 9.22 3,503.29
Interest accrued 32.79 (793.88) 792.56 31.47

* Excluding borrowings considered as cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of standalone statement of cash flows.
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41. Additional capital disclosures .

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium, all other equity reserves
attributable to the equity holders of the Company. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximise shareholder
value and support its strategies and operating requirements. The key objective of the Company’s capital management is to ensure that it
maintains a stable capital structure with a focus on total equity to uphold investor, creditor, and customer confidence and to ensure future
development of its business. The Company determines the capital requirement based on annual operating plans and long-term and other
strategic investment plans. The funding requirements for the Company’s operations are generally met through operating cash flows generated
and supplemented by long-term and working capital borrowings from banks.

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to:

a) safeguard its ability to continuc as a going concern, so that it can continuc to provide returns for sharcholders and benefits for other
stakeholders, and

b) Maintain an optimal capital structure to optimise the cost of capital.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the
financial covenants to which it is subject. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to sharcholders or issue new shares. The Company monitors capital using a ratio, which is Net Debt divided by
EBITDA. The Company defincs Net Debt as borrowings and Iease liabilitics less cash and cash equivalents including bank balances and
deposits irrespective of their duration / maturity.

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Borrowmgs (Note 15) 8,584.00 8,545.45
Lease liabilitics (Note 16) 718.63 663.75
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 12), other bank balances and deposits (including margin money) (5,142,33)) (1,542.53)
Net Debt 4,160.30 7,666.67
EBITDA 2,780.81 2,670.16
Net debt to EBITDA ratio 1.50 2.87

In order to achieve this overall objcetive, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to cnsure that it simultancously
meets financial covenants attached to its borrowings. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call
loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any borrowing in the current period.

42. Additional Regulatory Information
A) Financial ratios:

Ratio Numerator Denominator March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 % variance
Current ratio Current asset Current liabilities 1.44 1.20 20.51%
Debt-cquity ratio Total debt Sharcholders' equity 0.75 0.83 -9.90%
Debt service coverage ratio’ &2 Earning before mterest, taxes, Debt service * 1.06 1.52 -30.26%|
depreciation and amortisation”
Return on cquity ratio” Net profits after taxes Average shareholders' equity 11.83%) 18.94% -37.53%
Tradc reccivables tumover ralio Revenue ffom operations Avcrage Lrade receivables 6.66 6.13 8.68%
Inventory tumover ratio® Cost of goods sold Average mventory 2.63 4.05 -34.92%
Trade payables tumover ratio® Cost of goods sold Average trade payables 1.47 2.73 -46.08%
Net capital tumover ratio Revenue from operations Working capital 13.32 18.28 -27.15%
Net profit ratio” Net profits after taxes Revenue from operations 2.61% 4.12% -36.62%)
Relum on capital emmployed Earning before interest and taxes N Average Capilal ciiployed ** 12.26% 11.43% 7.25%
Return on nvestment The Company has not invested in other than investments in subsidiaries and - - -
associalces, hence Retun on Investment ratio has not been disclosed

#Excluding other income, other gain/(loss) and impairment in value of investment
* Debt service = Intercst cxpensc + Current maturitics of long-term debt
**Capital cmployed = Total cquity + Net debt

Notes to Financial Ratios
1. Primarily due to INR 750.00 million as current maturity of long-term debts in March 2025.
2. Primarily on account of business growth in terms of revenue, profit and working capital management
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B) Relationship with Struck off Companies:

Security and Intellige

nce Services (India) Limited’]

Private Limited; Neel Industries P- Ltd; Protectron
Electromech Pvt Ltd; Rudra Alloys Privite Limited: Sky
Automobiles; CG Foods India Privatc Limitcd; Panacca
Bioter Limited

Relationship with LASHUFELOF Name of Struck off Companies March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
struck off companies | transactions

Companies with out: ding balance
| Bateshwarnath Construction and Developers (Opc)
Private Limited; Brij Packaging; Knorr-Bremse India
Privatc Limited; MGF Developers Private Limited; K M
Memorial Hospital and Research Centre Private Limited;

Customers Receivables B. P. Food Products Private Limited; Koppal Stecls 0.64 6.13

C) The disclosures required under Division II of Schedule I1I have been given to the extent applicable to the Company.

As per our report of even date
For S S Kothari Mehta & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration. No. 000756A2

avfen Agparwal
(Partner)
Membership No. 0943%

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 1, 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chief Financial Officer

Pushpalar

)

Arvind Kumar Prasad
Director — Finance
(DIN: 02865273)

Dala

Company Secretary
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of SIS Limited (formerly known as ‘Security and Intelligence Services (India)
Limited’)

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of SIS Limited (formerly
known as ‘Security and Intelligence Services (India) Limited’) (the “Parent Company”), its
subsidiaries (the Parent Company and its subsidiaries/ step down subsidiaries together referred to as
the “Group”) and its Joint Ventures/ jointly controlled entities (JVs) which comprise the Consolidated
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, and the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date and notes to the financial statements, including
a summary of Material accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to
as the “consolidated financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and
based on the consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements and on the
other financial information of the subsidiaries and its JVs the aforesaid consolidated financial
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed
under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated
state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2025, of consolidated profit & total comprehensive income,
consolidated changes in equity and its consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (“SAs”) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“the ICAI”) together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the
audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on
the consolidated financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in
our report.

SIS | Auditor’s Report- F'Y 24-25 (Consolidated) Pagel | 11
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Key Audit Matter

Auditor’s Response

Uncertain tax positions and deferred tax
assets

The Parent Company operates in a complex tax
environment and is subject to a range of tax
risks during the normal course of business.
Where the amount of tax payable is uncertain,
the Parent Company establishes provisions
based on management's judgment of the
probable amount of the future tax liability. The
Parent Company has material certain tax
positions including matters under disputes
which involves significant judgement to
determine the possible outcome of these
disputes.

In addition, the Parent Company has
recognized INR 1,454.47 million of deferred tax
assets on March 31, 2025. The recognition of
deferred tax assets involves judgment by
management regarding the likelihood of the
realization of these assets. The expectation that
these assets will be realized is dependent on a
number of factors, including whether there will
be sufficient taxable profits in future periods to
support the utilization of these assets.

For details: - Refer to Note No 8 to the
Standalone Financial Statements.

Audit Procedures

Our audit procedures in relation to the recognition of
Uncertain tax position and deferred tax
assets/liabilities included, but were not limited to the
following:

* Discussion with the management on the
development of tax litigations during the year ended
March 31, 2025.

 Verification that the accounting and/or disclosures
as the case may be in the standalone financial
statements is by the assessment of management/ tax
practitioners.

* Obtaining a representation letter from the
management on the assessment of those matters as
per SA 580 (revised) - written representations.

* Evaluated the design and tested the operating
effectiveness of key controls implemented by the
Parent Company over recognition of deferred tax
assets based on the assessment of the Parent
Company’s ability to generate sufficient taxable
profits in the foreseeable future allowing the use of
deferred tax assets.

» Tested the arithmetical accuracy of the calculations
performed by the management.

* Evaluated management’s assessment for adjustment
of such deferred tax assets as per provisions of the
Income-tax Act, 1961 and appropriateness of the
accounting treatment with respect to the recognition
of deferred tax assets as per requirements of Ind AS
12, Income Taxes.

* Evaluated the appropriateness of the disclosures
made in the financial statements in respect of
deferred tax assets.

Impairment Testing of Goodwill & Other
Acquisition related intangible Assets

Goodwill and other acquisition related
intangible assets, including  customer
relationships, customer contracts comprise a
significant portion in the consolidated balance
sheet as on March 31, 2025. The Group annually
reviews/ identifies Cash generating unit (CGU)

Audit Procedures

Our audit procedures in relation to the Impairment
Testing of Goodwill & Other Acquisition related
intangible Assets included, but were not limited to the
following:

e Evaluation of ©process followed in
i ification of cash generating unit (CGU);

SIS | Auditor’s Report- FY 24-25 (Consolidated)
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Key Audit Mattey

Auditor’s Response

and performs a test to assess the value of
goodwill. The Parent Company has defined
process for impairment testing which involves
preparation of impairment testing model based
on business plan & assumptions Other
acquisition related intangible assets are
subject to depreciations/amortization
according to plan. For these assets, an
impairment test is performed if there is any
indicator for the same.

Obtain the impairment testing models based
on forecasts and assumptions;

Evaluation of the assumptions and data used
in the model;

Evaluation of the methodology used in
impairment testing;

Besides above, we also evaluated the
Company’s process regarding impairment
assessment carried out by the management
expert and basis the materiality auditor’s
expertis being involved, to assist in assessing
the appropriateness of the valuation model
including the independent assessment of the
underlying assumptions relating to discount
rate, terminal value etc.

Evaluation of Assessment that the accounting
and disclosures provided in the financial

impairment test performed.

statements are corxrect based on the

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Parent Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis,
Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate
Governance and Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements, standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Annual Report is
expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the other information identified above, if we conclude that there is a material
misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The Parent Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation and presentation of these consolidated financial statements that

give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial po ME n, consolidated financial performance
\MEH
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including other comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows
of the Group and its joint ventures in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India. The respective Boards of Directors of the companies included in the
Group and its joint venture are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of
preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Boards of Directors of the companies
included in the Group and its joint ventures are responsible for assessing the ability of the respective
entities to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the respective Boards of Directors either intend to
liquidate their respective entities or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Boards of Directors of the companies included in the Group and its joint ventures are
also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group and its joint ventures.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or exrror, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional ormissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company, its subsidiary companies
and its JVs, which are companies incorporated in India, has adequate internal financial controls
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

® Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group and its joint
ventures to continue as a going concern.
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If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group and its joint ventures to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

® Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
within the Group and its joint ventures to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of
the financial statements of the company included in the consolidated financial statements of
which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated
financial statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them.
We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that, individually
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user
of the consolidated financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and
qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work;
and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the consolidated financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Parent Company and such other entities
included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Other Matters

We did not audit the financial statements/ financial information of 35 subsidiaries/ step down
subsidiaries, whose financial statements/ financial information reflect total assets of INR 38,639.40
million as at March 31, 2025, total revenues of INR 84,010.54 million, total net profit/ (loss) after tax of
INR (245.92) million and total comprehensive income/ (loss) of INR (134.21) million and net cash inflow
(net) of INR 670.25 million, for the year ended on that date, as considered in the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

The Statement also includes the Group’s share of net profit/(loss) after tax of Rs. 258.28 million and
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considered in the Statement, in respect of 5 jointly controlled entities, whose financial results have not
been audited by us.

These financial statements have been audited by their respective independent auditors, whose reports
have been furnished to us by the management and our opinion on the Statement, in so far as it relates
to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries/step down subsidiaries, and
joint ventures is based solely on the reports of such auditors.

- The financial results of 2 foreign subsidiaries (including one step down subsidiary) whose financial
results reflect total assets of INR 427.56 million, revenues of INR Nil, total net profit/ (loss) after tax of
INR Nil million and total comprehensive income/ (loss) of INR Nil million for the year ended March 31,
2025, and cash inflow (net) of INR Nil million for the year ended March 31, 2025, included in the
Statement which have been prepared by the management of respective subsidiaries/ step down
subsidiaries and furnished to us by the management. In our opinion and according to the information
and explanations given to us by the Management, these financial statements/ information are not
material to the Group.

Certain of these subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities are located outside India whose financial
statements and other financial information have been prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in their respective countries and which have been audited by other
auditors under generally accepted auditing standards applicable in their respective countries. The
Parent Company’s management has converted the financial statements of such subsidiaries and jointly
controlled entities from accounting principles generally accepted in their respective countries to
accounting principles generally accepted in India. We have audited these conversion adjustments
made by the Parent Company’s management. Our opinion in so far as it relates to the balances and
affairs of such subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities is based on the report of other auditors and
the conversion adjustments prepared by the Parent’s management and audited by us.

Our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our
reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors and the financial statements certified
by the Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our
examination of those books.

c. The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including
Other Comprehensive Income, Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Ind AS
specified under section 133 of the Act.
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On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Parent
Company as on March 31, 20258 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Parent
Company and the reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies, [Vs
incorporated in India, none of the directors of the Group companies including JVs
incorporated in India is disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting and
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure
A” which is based on the auditors’ reports of the Parent Company, its subsidiary
companies and its Vs, incorporated in India, wherever applicable. Our report expresses
an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of internal financial
controls over financial reporting of those companies.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the remuneration paid by the Parent Company, its subsidiaries companies and its
JVs, incorporated in India to its directors during the year is in accordance with the
provisions of section 197 of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i) The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on
the consolidated financial position of the Group. (Refer Note 34 to the consolidated
financial statements);

il)  The Group did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii) There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund (“IEPF?”) by the subsidiary companies and
JVs of the Parent company, incorporated in India. However, there is a delay of 54
days in transferring the amount worth Rs. 0.22 million required to be transferred to
IEPF by the Parent company. (Refer Note 12 to the consolidated financial
statements). V

iv)  (a) The respective Managements of the Parent Company and its subsidiaries & JVs
which are companies incorporated in India, whose financial statements have been
audited under the Act, have represented to us that, to the best of their knowledge
and belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate)
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company, any of such
subsidiary companies or its JVs to or in any other person or entity, including foreign
entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company, any of such subsidiaries or such JVs (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on b f the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Page7 | 11




55 KOTHART MEHTA

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

(b) The respective Managements of the Parent Company, its subsidiary companies
and its JVs, which are companies incorporated in India, whose financial statements
have been audited under the Act, have represented to us that, to the best of their
knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the
aggregate) have been received by the Company or any of such subsidiaries and
such JVs from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company,
any of such subsidiaries or such JVs shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances performed by us on the Company, its subsidiary
companies and its JVs which are companies incorporated in India whose financial
statements have been audited under the Act, nothing has come to our notice that has
caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule
l11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

v) The interim dividend proposed in the current year, declared and paid by the
subsidiaries which are companies incorporated in India, whose financial statements
have been audited under the Act, where applicable, during the year is in
accordance with Section 173 of the Act, as applicable. Further there is no final
dividend declared or paid by the Parent Company, its subsidiary companies and
its JVs during the year.

vi) Based on our examination which included test checks, performed by us on the
Parent Company, along with test checks performed by the respective auditors of
its subsidiary companies and its J[Vs incorporated in India, the Parent Company,
its subsidiary companies and its JVs, incorporated in India have used accounting
software for maintaining their books of account which has a feature of recording
audit trail (edit log) facility. The Audit trail feature has operated throughout the
year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software and has not been
tampered with. Further, the audit trail has been preserved by the Parent
Company and the above referred subsidiary companies & JVs incorporated in
India as per the statutory requirements for records retention.

However, with respect to one of the [Vs i.e. SIS Cash Services Limited, its auditor's
vide their independent auditors report dated April 28, 2025 has reported the
following exceptions w.r.t enabling audit trail & preservation of logs at database
level.

Nature of exception noted Details of Exception
Instances of accounting software for | The audit trail feature was enabled at
maintaining books of account for | the database level for Oracle
which the feature of recording audit | accounting software to log any direct
trail (edit log) facility was not | data changes, however, it was not
operated throughout the year for the | enabled at database level to log any
relevant transactions recorded in the | direct changes used for billing and
software
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audit trail

Instances of non-preservation of the

a)

b)

With respect to Oracle accounting
software , the audit trail pertaining
to period November 30, 2023 to
March 31, 2028 has Dbeen
preserved as per the statutory
requirements for record retention,
however , with respect to billing
and payroll records, the audit trail
at the database level pertaining to
period April 1, 2023 to March 31,
2028 has not been preserved as
per the statutory requirements for
record retention.

With respect to accounting
software wused for maintaining
records other than the billing and
payroll records, the audit trail at
the database level pertaining to
financial year April 1, 2023 to
November 30, 2023 have not been
preserved as per the statutory
requirements for record retention.

2. With respect to the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) and 4 of the Companies (Auditor’s
Report) Order, 2020 (the “Order”/ “CARQO") issued by the Central Government in terms of
Section 143(11) of the Act, to be included in the Auditor’s report, according to the information
and explanations given to us, and further to the comments in “Annexure A” to Independent
Auditor’s Report on Standalone Financial Statements issued by us and auditors of its subsidiary
companies and its JVs included in the consolidated financial statements of the Parent Company,
we report that there are no qualifications or adverse remarks in these CARO reports.

For S S Kothari Mehta & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 000756N/ N500441

Naveen Aggarwal

Partner

Membership No.094380
UDIN: 25094380BMKXHI9554
Place: New Delhi

Date: May 01, 2025
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report to the Members of SIS Limited (formerly known as ‘Security and Intelligence
Services (India) Limited’) of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for the
year ended March 31, 2025, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
SIS Limited (formerly known as ‘Security and Intelligence Services (India) Limited®) (hereinafter
referred to as the “Company”) its subsidiary companies and its JVs, which are companies incorporated
in India, wherever applicable, as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Boards of Directors of the Company its subsidiary companies and its Vs, which are
companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the
respective Companies considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (the “ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the
respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal control with reference to financial statements
of the Company its subsidiary companies and its JVs which are companies incorporated in India, based
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the ICAI and the
Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal control with reference to financial statements was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Qur
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. \
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements of
the Company its subsidiary companies and its JVs which are companies incorporated in India.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to the financial statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management
and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to the financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to the financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to the financial statements may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company its subsidiary companies and its JVs, which are companies incorporated in India, wherever
applicable, have, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system with reference
to the financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements
were operating effectively as at March 31, 2028, based on the criteria for internal financial control with
reference to the financial statements established by the respective companies considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAI

For S § Kothari Mehta & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 000756N/ N50044 ]

Naveen Aggarwal

Partner

Membership No.094380
UDIN: 25094380BMKXHI9554
Place: New Delhi

Date: May 01, 2025
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SIS Limited (Formerly known as ‘S

t 1 figures in INR million except per share data)
Consolidated Balance Sheet

s (INDIA) LIMITE

. . As at As at
Particulars Note No. March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
A |ASSETS ‘
Non — current assets
Property, plant and equipment 4 3.745.59 3,734.96
Capital work-in-progress 4 56.48 2217
Goodwill 5 7,515.94 10,678.81
Other intangible assets 5 1,674.02 1,636.57
Intangible assets under development 5 307.93 328.60
Investments in joint ventures 6 1,009.54 757.01
Financial assets
(i) Investments [ 384.87 351.26
(if) Other financial assets 7 775.26 611.81
Deferred tax assets (net) 8 3,139.10 3,269.46
Income tax asscts (net) 8 2,264 .35 2,651.92
Other non — current assets 9 194.52 43.15
Total non — current assets 21,067.60 24,085.72
Current assets
Inventories 10 283.76 309.03
Financial assets
(1) Invesunents 6 80.90 55.35
(11) Trade receivables 11 18.640.26 18,858 .46
(iti) Cash and cash equivalents 12 7,169.19 6,514.82
(iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above 12 4.556.38 890.41
(v) Loans Ta - 17.00
(vi) Other financial assets 7 7,775.86 7,513.04
Other current assets 9 1,539.01 1,484 .81
Assets classified as held for distribution to shareholders of subsidiary 37a 222 2.22
Total current assets 40,047.58 35,645.34
Total assets 61,115.18 59,731.06
B |EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 13 721.84 720.50
Other equity 14 23,357.08 23414.87
Equity attributable to owners of the Parent 24,078.92 24,135.37
Non-controlling interests - -
Total equity 24,078.92 24,135.37
Liabilities
Non — current liabilitics
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 15 8,569.53 2,300.50
(ia) Lease liabilities 16 1.025.30 1,101.12
(ii) Other financial liabilities 18 0.08 4.48
Provisions 20 2,171.08 1,971.33
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 8 300.63 351.16
Total non- current liabilities 12,066.62 5,728.59
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SIS Limited (Formerly known as ‘SECURITY AND INTELLIGENCE SERVICES (INDIA) LIMITEDY)

(All figures in INR million except per share data)

Current liabilities

Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings 15 6,446.50 12,785.52
(ia) Lease lLiabilities 16 413.09 39321
(ii) Trade payables
(a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 17 144.98 97.02
(b) ']'()1.61 oulstanding dues ol creditors other than micro enterprises and small 7 67593 749 87
enterprises
(iti) Other financial liabilities 18 10,493 33 9.776.88
Other current liabilities 21 2,250.02 1.967.50
Provisions 20 4,186.72 4.091.03
Current tax habilities (net) 8 35625 325
Liabilities classified as held for distribution to shareholders of subsidiary 37a 2.82 2.82
Total current liabilities 24,969.64 29,867.10
Total liabilities’ 37,036.26 35,595.69
Total equity and liabilitics 61,115.18 59,731.06
The accompanying notes 1 to 43 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
As per our report of even date
For §§ Kothari Mehta & Co. LLP 'orjand on behalf of the Board of Directors -
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. no. — 000756N/N50044 1 x
™ [ Q o
/ éﬁ\ W }
Naveen Aggarwal . uraj Kishore Sinha Arvind Kumar Prasad
Partner B Managing Director Director — Finance
Membership No. — 094380 2 (DIN: 00477256) (DIN: 02865273)

—
Place: New Delhi Brajesh Kumar Pushpalatha Katkui .

Date: May 01, 2025 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary



SIS Limited (Formerly known as ‘SECURITY AND INTELLIGENC

(INBIA)Y LIMITED)

(All figures in INR million except per share data)

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss

. : Year ended
S No |Particulars Note No.
March 31, 2025 Muar-ch 31, 2024
Income
. a) Revenue from operations 23 131,890.37 122,614.25
b}  Other income 24 586.64 399.50
c) Other gain / (loss) 25 94.06 27.17
Total income (a+ b+ ¢) 132,571.07 123,040.92
Expenses
a) Cost of materials consumed 26 644.37 612.13
b)  Purchases of inventories 540.68 831.00
¢) Changes in inventories 27 2527 525
2 d)  Employee benefits expense 28 109,093.46 100,495 49
¢) Finance costs 29 1,606.47 1,481.59
)  Depreciation and amortization expenses 30 1,637.84 1,663.28
g)  Impairment of goodwill 5 3,058.34 656.05
h)  Other expenses 31 15,549.54 14,825.85
Total expenses (a+b+c+d+c+f+g+h) 132,155,97 120,570.64
3 [Share of profit/loss) of associates / joint ventures 39 258.28 248.87
4 |Profit before exceptional items and tax (1-2+3) 673.38 2,719.15
5 {Exceptional items - .
6 {Profit before tax (4-5) 673.38 2,719.15
‘Tax expense /(credit)
a) Current tax 8 451,11 314.76
b)  Deferred tax 8 104.39 503.99
Total tax expense/(credit) 555.50 818.73
8 IProfit for the year (6-7) 117.88 1,900.40
9 |Other comprehensive income
Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss:
:f) FQrelgn exchangc gain/(loss) on monetary items included in net investment in a 14 (30.23) (98.16)
foreign subsidiary
b) Income tax relating to these items 8 - -
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
a)  Re-measurement of defined benefits plan 28 {167.66) 69.07
b) Income (ax relating to these items 8 42.36 (17.39)
<)  Share of other comprehensive income of associates / joint 19 2.70) (1.29)
ventures
Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year (net of taxes) (208.23) (47.77)
10 {Total comprehensive income for the year (8+9) (90.35) 1,852.63
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(Al figures in INR million except per share data)

DIA) LIMITED")

11 {Profit attributable to:
Owners of the Parent 117.88 1,900.40
Non-controlling interests - -
117.88 1,900.40
12 |Other comprehensive income attributable to:
Owners of the Parent (208.23) A7.77)
Non-Controlling intcrests - -
(208.23) (47.77)
13 |Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Owners of the Parent (90.35) 1,852.63
Non-controlling interests - -
(90.35) 1,852.63
14 |Earnings per share (EPS) (face value INR 5/- per share) 32
(a) Basic (INR) 0.82 13.08
(b)  Diluted (INR) 0.81 12,97
15 Weighted average equity shares used in compuling earnings per equity share 32
(a) Basic (Nos.) 144,150,826 145,344 093
(b)  Diluted (Nos.) 145,056,778 146,550,084

The accompanying | to 43 notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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SIS Limited (Formerly known as ‘SECURITY AND INTELLIGENCE SERVICES (INDIA) LIMITED")

(All figures in INR million unl

stated otherwise,

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

R Year ended
S No|Particulars
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
A. {CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax 673.38 2.719.15
Adjusted for:
Depreciation and amortisation cxpenses 1.637.84 1.663.28
Unrealised foreign exchange (gain) / loss (7.57) 461
Nect (gain) / loss on sale of property, plant and cquipment {58.75) (36.37)
Finance costs 1,606.47 1481.59
Interest income (612.19) (399.50)
Allowance for expected credit loss 220.55 244.82
Employee stock option compensation expense 24,99 435.66
Impairment of goodwill 3.058.34 656.05
Other non-cash items (258.28) (248.87)
Operating profit/(loss) before changes in working capital 6,284.78 6,130.42
Changes in working capital:
Decrease / (increase) in trade receivables (253.46), (2,856.37)
Decrease / (increase) in inventories 25.37 4.94
Decrease / (increase) in other current assets 3931 (365.08)
Decrease / (increase) in other current financial assets (284.48). (1,170.61)
(Decrease) / increase in trade payablcs 120.08 670.95
(Decrease) / increase in provisions 209.67 472,78
(Decrease) / increase in other current liabilities 205.79 3.80
{Decrease) / increase in other current {inancial liabilities 836.29 1,472.87
Decereasc / (increase) in other non-current financial asscts (1.01) 25.08
(Decrease) / increase in other non-current financial liabilities (7.62) (7.37)
Cash (used in) /generated from operations 7,174.72 4,381.41
Direct tax (paid), net of refunds 248.17 (437.24)
Net cash inflow / (outflow) from operating activitics 7.422.89 3.944.17
B. |CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchasc.of Prn}pcny, plant & equipment and intangible assets (including Capital work in (1.53041) (1.636.08)
progress/intangible assets under development)
Proceeds from sale/disposal of property, plant and equipment 128.68 77.54
Acquisition of Subsidiary's non-controlling interest (32.19) -
Other investment made (108.61) (34.99)
Redemption of non convertible debentures issued 50.00 100.00
Investment in fixed deposits (6.514.97) {1,381.28)
Redemption of fixed deposits 2.683.18 1.476.98
Changes in restricted balances - (65.70)
Interest received 578.63 415.35
Dividend received 2.94 4.04
Net cash inflow / (sutflow) from investing activities (4,742.75) (1,044.14)

(This space has been intentionally left blank)




SIS Limited (Formerly known as ‘SE

es in INR million unless stated otherwi

CURITY AND INTELLIGENCE SERVICES (INDIA) LIMITED")

C. |CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issuc of sharc capital (net of share issuc cxpenses) 1.34 0.03
Buyback of equity shares including transaction cost and tax - (1,120.90)
Application money received on pending allotment 0.64 -
Foreign exchange gain ¢ (loss) realized 4.75)]. (3.80)
Proceeds from term loans 805.06 1,020.61
Repayment of term loans (1,364.30) (1,401.24)
Bonds/debenturcs issued 2,500.00 -
Interest paid (1,468.91) (1.405.02)
Payment of lease liabilities (614.08) (491.64)
Net cash inflaw / (outflow) from financing activities (145.00) (3,401.96)
D. |Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 2,535.14 (501.93)
E. |Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (522.58) 1.94
F. |Translation adjustments (15.94) (22.59)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (D+E+F) 1,996.62 {522.58)
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per the statement of the cash flows
Cash and cash cquivalents as per above comprisc of the following: March 31, 2625 March 31, 2024
Cash and cash equivalents 7,169.19 6,514.82
Cash credit (5,172.57) (7.037.40)
Balances as per statement of cash flows 1,996.62 (522.58)

o

gl

o

Refer note 41 for reconciliation of liabilities whose cash flow movements are disclosed as part of financing activitics in the statement of cash flows.
The accompanying notes 1 to 43 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For S S Kothari Mehta & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg, no. — 000756N/N300441

N

Naveen Aggarwal
Partuer
Membership No. - 094380

nd on behalf of the Board of Directors
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] Managing Director Director - Finance
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; \ W 2
Pushpalatha Katkuri Q{g_/;—i,-

Company Secretary

Arvind Kumar Prasad
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SIS Limited (Formerly known as ‘SECURITY AND INTELLIGENCE SERVICES (INDIA) LIMITED?)

(All figures in INR million unless stated otherwise)

Notes to the financial statements
f. Group overview

SIS Limited (“the Company”, “the Parent” or “the Holding Company™) is a company limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled in India. The
Company is listed on the BSE Limited (“BSE™) and The National Stock Exchange of India Limited (“NSE”). Its registered office is situated at
Annapurna Bhawan, Telephone Exchange Road, Kurji, Patna, Bihar — 800010, India, and its principal place of business is situated at A-28 & 29, Okhla
Industrial Area, Phase I, New Delhi — 110020

The name of the Parent has been changed to “SIS Limited” from “Security and Intelligence Services (India) Limited’ and a fresh certificate of
incorporation in the name of SIS Limited” was issued by the Registrar of Companies on January 13, 2021.

SIS Limited (“the Parent”) and its subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures (“Group” or “SIS Group™) is engaged in rendering security and related
services consisting of manned guarding, training, paramedic and emergency response services; loss prevention, asset protection and mobile patrols;
facility management services consisting of cleaning, house-keeping and pest control management services in the areas of facility management; cash
logistics services consisting of cash-in-transit, ATM cash replenishment activities and secure transportation of precious items and bullion; and alarm
monitoring and response services consisting of trading and installation of electronic security devices and systems.

Thesc financial statements are the consolidated financial statements of the Group consisting of SIS Limited and its subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures in accordance with applicable accounting standards. A list of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures is included in note 38.

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the directors on May 01, 2025.

2. Basis of preparation / measurement and Material accounting policies
This note provides a list of material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements.

2.1 Basis of preparation

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind-AS) and other applicable provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Companies Act”) and guidelines issued by Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI). The Ind-AS are notified under Section 133
of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) and are rounded off to the nearest millions (‘Mn’) except per share data, unless stated
otherwise. Due to rounding off, the numbers presented throughout the document may not add up precisely to the totals and percentages may not
precisely reflect the absolute figures. The figures which are appearing as ‘0’are result of rounding off,

2.2 Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on an accrual and going concern basis, except for the items where the
relevant Ind AS requires the financial instruments to be classified as fair value through profit or loss (‘FVTPL’) and are measured at fair value, including
the following material items:

a. Certain financial assets and financial liabilities (including derivative financial instruments) and contingent consideration that are measured at
fair value;

b. Assets held for distribution to owners upon demerger that are held at lower of carrying cost and fair value less cost to distribute;

c. Share based payments; and

d. The defined benefit asset/(liability) which is recognised as the present value of defined benefit obligation less fair value of plan assets.

e. Liability in respect of forward contract/ call and put options for acquisition of Non-controlling interests are measured at fair value.

f Contingent liability and indemnification of asset acquired in a business combination are measured at fair value.

Accounting policies have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these financial statements.

The financial statements are based on the classification provisions contained in Ind AS 1, ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ and division II of
schedule I of the Companies Act 2013. For the purpose of clarity, various items arc aggregated in the statements of profit and loss and balance sheet.
These items are disaggregated separately in the notes to the financial statements, where applicable or required.

Fuir value measurement

The Group records certain financial assets and liabilities at fair value on a recurring basis. The Group determines fair value based on the price it would
receive to sell an asset or pay to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date and either in the
principal market or in the absence of a principal market, most advantageous market for that asset or liability.

Fair value hierarchy

Level I - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using
quoted prices. This includes listed equity instruments, bonds and debentures and mutual funds that have quoted price. The fair value of all financial
instruments which are traded in the stock exchanges is valued using the closing price as at the reporting period.

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly
(i.e. derived from prices). The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques which
maximize the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an
instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). If one or more of the significant inputs
is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity / preference securities included in level
3.

In accordance with Ind-AS 113, Fair Value Measurement, assets and liabilities are to be measured based on the following valuation techniques:

a) Market approach — Prices and other relevant information generated by market transactions involving identical or comparable assets or liabilities.
b) Income approach — Converting the future amounts based on market expectations to its present value using the diseounting method.

c) Cost approach — Replacement cost method. SRR B




SIS Limited (Formerly known as ‘SECURITY AND INTELLIGENCE SERVICES (INDIA) LIMITED")

Al figures in INR million unless stated otherwise)

2.3 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Parent, its subsidiaries and share in net assets of associates and joint
ventures as at, and for the year then ended. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee and has the ability to affect those retums through its power over the investee. Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and only if the
Group has: ;

° Power over the investee (i.¢. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activitics of the investee),
® Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and
° The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. To support this presumption and when the Group has less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over
an investee, including:

e The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee,

Rights arising from other contractual arrangements,

The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

Size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of other investees with voting rights.

Any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the Group has, or does not has, the current ability to direct the relevant activities at
the time that decisions need to be made, including voting patterns at previous shareholders’ meetings.

e o o o

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control
over the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated
financial statements from the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for business combinations by the Group.

Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policics for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances, If a
member of the Group uses accounting policies other than those adopted in the consolidated financial statements for like transactions and events in
similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments are made to that Group member’s financial statements in preparing the consolidated financial statements
to ensure conformity with the Group’s accounting policies.

The financial statements of all entities used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to the same reporting date as that of the Parent, i.c., year
ended on March 31.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Group has used the following key consolidation procedures:

(a) Combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the Parent with those of its subsidiaries. For this purpose, income
and expenses of the subsidiary are based on the amounts of assets and liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial statements at the acquisition
date.

(b) Offset (climinate) the carrying amount of the Parent’s investment in each subsidiary and the Parent’s portion of equity of each subsidiary. The policy
for accounting for Business combinations explains the accounting for any related goodwill.

(c) Eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between entities of the Group.
Profits or losses resulting from intragroup transactions that are recognised in assets, such as inventory and property, plant and equipment, are eliminated
in full. However, intragroup losses may indicate an impairment that requires recognition in the consolidated financial statements. Ind-AS 12 on Income
Taxes applies to temporary differences that arise from the elimination of profits and losses resulting from intragroup transactions

(d) Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to the equity holders of the Parent and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

(e) A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction. A change in ownership interest
results in an adjustment between the carrying amounts of the controlling and non-controlling interests to reflect their relative interests in the subsidiary
Any difference between the amount of adjustment to non-controlling interests and any consideration paid or received is recognised within equity.

() 1f the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it.

Derecognises the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,

Derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests,

Derecognises the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity,

Recognises the fair value of the consideration received,

Recognises the fair value of any investment retained,

Recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or loss,

Reclassifies the Parent’s share of components previously recognised in OCI to profit or loss or retained earnings, as appropriate, as would be
required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

Non-controlling interest

Non-controlling interests in the net assets (excluding goodwill) of consolidated subsidiaries are identified separately from the Parent’s equity. The
interest of non-controlling shareholders may be initially measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the fair
value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement basis is made on an acquisition to acquisition basis. Subsequent to acquisition,
the carrying amount of non-controlling interest is the amount of those interests at initial recognition plus the non-controlling interest’s share of
subsequent changes in equity. Total comprehensive income is attributed to non-controlling interests even if it results in the non-controlling interest
having a deficit balance.

2.4 Summary of material accounting policies
a) Current versus non-current classification
The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non-current classification. An asset is classified as current when it is:

. Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle
. Held primarily for the purpose of trading
. Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

. Cash or cash equivalent unless the asset is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for-at least twelve months after the
reporting period
All other assets are classified as non-current.




SIS Limited (Formerly known as ‘SECURITY AND INTELLIGENCE SERVICES (INDIA) LIMITED)

(All figures in INR million unless stated otherwise,

A liability is current when it is:

° Expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle
° held primarily for the purpose of trading
° Due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period. Terms of a liability that could,
at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification.

The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of asscts for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Group has
identified twelve months as its operating cycle. -

b) Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and measurement

An item is recognised as an asset, if and only if; it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and its
cost can be measured reliably. Property, plant and equipment under construction and cost of assets not ready for use at the year-end are disclosed as
capital work- in- progress (‘CWIP).

Items of property, plant and equipment (‘PPE’) and CWIP are initially recognised at cost. Frechold land is carried at historical cost. Al items of property,
plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises the purchase price, asset
retirement obligation and cost directly attributable towards bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use. Any trade discounts and
rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. General and specific borrowing costs dircctly attributable to the construction of a qualifying
asset are capitalised as part of the cost.

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of property, plant and equipment is added to its carrying value or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits attributable to such subsequent cost associated with the item, will flow to the Group.
The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is de-recognised when replaced. All other expenses on existing
items of property, plant and equipment, including day-to-day repairs, maintenance expenditure and cost of replacing parts, are recognised in the
statement of profit and loss in the year during which such expenses are incurred.

Advances given towards purchase of an item of property, plant and equipment or CWIP outstanding as at each balance sheet date are disclosed under
other non-current assets.

Depreciation
The Group depreciates property, plant and equipment over the estimated useful lives using the written down value method (and straight-line method in
respect of certain subsidiaries) from the date the assets are available for use.

Category Useful life .
Buildings . 60 years

Plant and machinery 3-15 years

Leasehold improvement Shorter of useful life or lease period
Computer equipment 2-6 years

Furniture and fixtures 2.5-13 years

Office Equipment 3-11 years

Vehicles 3-8 years

Based on technical assessment, the useful lives as given above best represent the period over which the management expects to use these assets. The
estimated useful lives for these assets may therefore be different from the useful lives prescribed under Part C of Schedule 11 of the Companies Act
2013.

The residual values are generally not more than 5% of the original cost of the asset.

The assets residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year-end and
adjusted prospectively, if appropriate

Where, during any financial year, any addition has been made to any asset, or where any asset has been sold, discarded, demol ished or destroyed, or
significant components replaced, depreciation on such assets is calculated on a pro rata basis as individual assets with specific useful life from the month
of such addition or, as the case may be, up to the month on which such asset has been sold, discarded, demolished or destroyed or replaced

Derecognition

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part, initially recognised, is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

¢) Intangible assets

Recognition and measurement

Intangible assets are recognised when the Group controls the asset, and it is probable that future economic benefits attributed to the asset will flow to
the Group and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at historical cost.
The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible
assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises the purchase price and any
attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use. Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalised sofiware
development costs, are not capitalised and the related expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the-expenditure is incurred.

wh

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the probable future economic benefits from the specific asset
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite. Lol

ieh it relates.
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Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life on straight line method effective from the Financial Year 2024-25 (written
down value method till Financial Year 2023-24 in respect of certain subsidiaries) and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at
least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattem of consumption of future economic benefits
embodied in the asset are accounted by modifying the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates
and adjusted accordingly. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

The estimated useful fives of intangible assets are as follows:

Category Useful life

Goodwill Indefinite

Computer sofiware 3 - 10 years

Brand name Indefinite

Customer contracts Expected contract duration

Customer relationship Expected relationship duration

License & franchise fees 20 years

Non-competition agreements  The term of the respective non-compete agreements

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually, either individually or at the cash-generating unit
level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in
useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Goodwill

Goodwill is initially recorded at the amount by which the purchase price for a business or for an ownership interest in a controlled entity exceeds the
fair value attributed to its net assets at date of acquisition. Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is included in intangible assets. Goodwill is allocated
to cash generating units, and is tested annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that it might be
impaired, and is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of
goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made to those cash generating units or groups of
cash generating units that arc expected to benefit from the business combination in which the goodwill arose. The units or the groups of units are
identified at the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes, which in our case are the respective entities carrying
out business.

Brand name
Brand name is not amortised and tested annually for impairment.

Customer contracts, customer relationship and non-competifion agreements

Customer contracts, customer relationship and non-competition agreements acquired on an acquisition of business are recorded at the fair value of
respective assets on the date of acquisition. Customer contracts, customer relationship and non-competition agreements are amortised based on their
useful tife.

Software

Costs incurred in developing products or systems and costs incurred in acquiring soflware and licenses that will contribute to probable future economic
benefits through revenue generation and/or cost reduction are capitalised to software and systems. Costs capitalised include external direct costs of
materials, services, and direct payroll and related costs of employees' time spent on the project.

License & franchise
Licenses & franchise fees are amortised commencing from the date when license & franchise fees are available for intended use.

d) Investment in subsidiaries, associates, and joint ventures
A subsidiary is an entity over which the Group has control. The Group controls an investee entity when it is exposed to or has rights to variable retums
from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity.

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control of those policies. This is generally the case where the Group holds between 20% to
50% of the voting rights.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint
venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The considerations made in determining whether significant influence or joint control exist are similar to those necessary to determine control over the
subsidiaries.

The Group’s investments in its associates and joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method. Under the equity method, the investment in
associate or a joint venture is initially recognised at cost. The carrying amount of the investment is adjusted to recognise changes in the Group’s shdns
of net assets of the associate or joint venture since the acquisition date. Goodwill relating to the associate or joint venture is included in the carryrig 52
amount of the investment and is not tested for impairment individually.

The cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted against the carrying amount of the investment. The statement of profit and loss reflects th
Group’s share of the results of operations of the associate or joint venture. In addition, when there has been a change recognised directlyifi the-equity
of the associate or joint venture, the Group recognises its share of any changes, when applicable, in the statement of changes m cquxly Divide; ds.
receivable from associates and joint ventures reduce the carrying amount of the investment.
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behalf of the associate or joint venture. If the associate or joint venture subsequently reports profits, the entity resumes recognising its share of those
profits only after its share of the profits equals the share of losses not recognised.

The financial statements of the associate or joint venture, for the purpose of reflecting the Group’s share of the results of operations of the associate or
joint venture, are prepared for the same reporting period as the Group. When necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies in line
with those of the Group.

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise an impairment loss on its investment in its associate
or joint venture. At each reporting date, the Group determines whether there is objective evidence that the investment in the associate or joint venture
is impaired. If there is such evidence, the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the associate
or joint venture and its carrying value, and then recognises the loss as “Share of profit of associates /joint ventures” in the statement of profit or loss.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint control over the joint venture, the Group measures and recognises any retained investment
at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint control and the
fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

e) Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Trade reccivables that do not contain a significant financing component are measured
at transaction price. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in
the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.c., the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in below categories:

o Financial assets at amortised cost

o Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCT)

e Financial assets, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets at amortised cost

A ‘financial asset’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

(@) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

(b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal
amount outstanding,

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. EIR is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset.
When calculating EIR, the Group estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example,
prepayments, extensions call and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The interest income based on EIR is included as interest
income as a part of other income in the statement of profit and loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in profit or loss. A gain or loss
on such financial assets which is not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised. This category generally
applies to trade and other receivables.

Financial assets at FVTOCI

A ‘“financial assets’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

(a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets, and
(b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPIL.

Financial assets included within the FVTOCI category are measured as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognised in the
other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Group recognizes interest income calculated using the EIR method, impairment losses & reversals
and foreign exchange gain or loss in the profit or loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL
FVTPL is a residual category for financial asset. Any financial asset, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortised cost or as
FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Group may elect to designate a financial asset, which otherwise meets amortised cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such
election is made only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’).

Financial asset included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognised in the profit or loss in respect of such assets
that are not part of a hedging relationship. The gain /loss on assets measured at FVTPL are presented in the statement of profit and loss within other
gains/losses in the period in which it arises. Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income.

Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind-AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading and contingent consideration
recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind-AS 103 applies are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Group
may make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Group makes such election on
an Instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Group decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognised

in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to pri § Mt cumulative
gain or loss within equity. :
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Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with gain/loss presented in the statement of profit and loss within
other gains/losses in the period in which it arises.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed
from the Group's consolidated balance sheet) when:

e The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

o The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay (o a third party under a “pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognised.
Similarly, where the Group retains control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing involvement in the
financial asset.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognizes loss allowances on a forward-looking basis using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets which are not fair
valued through profit or loss. Lifetime ECL allowance is recognised for trade receivables with no significant financing component. For all other
financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk
from initial recognition in which case they are measured at lifetime ECL. How the Group determines whether there has been a significant increase in the
credit risk has been detailed in the notes to the financial statements. The amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss
allowance at the reporting date is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, borrowings, payables, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and
derivative financial instruments

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments, if any entered into by the Group that are not designated
as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind-AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading
unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the initial date of recognition, and only
if the criteria in Ind-AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are
recognised in OCI. These gains/losses are not subsequently transferred to profit or loss. However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or
loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss

Financial liability at fair value through profit or loss also include liabilities arising from forward contract/ call and put options for the purpose of non-
controlling interests in subsidiaries and contingent liability acquired in a business combination. The fair value gain/loss arising on such liabilities is
recognised in profit or loss.

Borrowings

After initial recognition, borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and
the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowing using the EIR method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan
facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the
fee is deferred until the draw down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the
fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Preference shares which are mandatorily redeemable are classified as liabilities. The dividends on these preference shares, to the extent such dividends
are mandatorily payable, are recognised in profit or loss as finance costs.

The fair value of the liability portion of an optionally convertible debenture/ bond/ preference share or a zero-coupon debenture/ bond/ preference share
or compulsorily convertible debenture/preference shares where the price of conversion of the debenture/preference shares into equity share is not fixed,
is determined using a market rate of interest for an equivalent non-convertible bond. This amount is recorded as a liability on an amortised cost basis
until extinguished on conversion or redemption of the bonds. The remainder of the proceeds is attributable to the equity portion of the compound
financial instrument. This is recognised and included in shareholders’ equity, net of income tax effects, and not subsequently remeasured.

When the terms of a financial liability are renegotiated and the entity issues equity instrument to a creditor to extinguish all or part of a liability (debt
for equity swap), a gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss, which is measured as the difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
and the fair value of the equity instrument issued.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability forat least-12 months after
- porting period. Where there is a breach of a material provision of a long-term loan arrangement on or before the end of the reporting period with
t hat the liability becomes payable on demand on the reporting date, the entity does not classify the liability as currént, if the lender agreed,

porting period and before the approval of the financial statements for issue, not to demand payment as a consequence of tic/préach. "
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Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. The difference between the carrying
amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets
transferred or Habilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as other gains/ losses. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is
treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss as other gains/losses.

Reclassification of financial instruments

The Group determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition, no reclassification is made for
financial assets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if
there is a change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The Group’s senior
management determines changes in the business model as a result of external or internal changes which are significant to the Group’s operations. Such
changes are evident to external parties. A change in the business model occurs when the Group either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is
significant to its operations. If the Group reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is
the first day of the immediately next reporting period following the change in business model. The Group does not restate any previously recognised
gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the consolidated balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable
legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of
default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Group of the counterparty.

f) Trade receivables
Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component are recognised initially at transaction price and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment (allowance for expected credit loss).

g) Current and deferved tax
Income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the applicable tax rate adjusted by changes
in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Current tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It established
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to tax authorities.

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or payables in the balance sheet.

Deferred tax
Dc{:rred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
in the financial statements at the reporting date.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:
. When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination that, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss
e Inrespect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures, when the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred
tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

o When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss

. In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred
tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date
and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. The effect of changes in tax rates on deferred
income tax assets and liabilities is recognised as income or expense in the period that includes the enactment or the substantive enactment date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities.
The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or payables in the balance sheet.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.
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Pillar Two model rules

The Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development (OECD) has published the model rules for global minimum tax (Pillar Two model
rules). Pillar Two legislation has been enacted, or substantively enacted, in certain jurisdictions where the Group operates. The Group is within the
scope of the OECD Pillar Two model rules and has evaluated the potential exposure to global minimum tax for the respective applicable jurisdiction
and does not expect any material financial impact for the year ended March 31, 2025.

) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash on hand, balance with bank and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three
months or less, which are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and cash equivalents and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash {lows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, balance with bank and short-term
deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts (including cash credit facilities) as they are considered an integral part of the Group’s
cash management. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilitics in the balance sheet.

i) Equity share capital
Equity shares are classified as equity.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

j)  Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Group prior to the end of the financial year which are unpaid. The amounts
are unsecured and are usually paid within 30-90 days of recognition. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not
due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

k) Provisions and contingencies

Provisions

A provision is recognised when the Group has a present fegal or a constructive obligation as a result of past event and it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are recognised for legal claims and
service warranties. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the class of
obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of
obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required Lo settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the present value is the pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in provision due to the passage of time is recognised as an interest expense.

These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. In respect of losses that are covered by insurance, such
losses are recognised as an expense when there is clear evidence or determination or probability that any portion of the loss is not expected to be settled
through insurance or other forms of recovery.

Asset retirement obligations (ARO)

ARO are recognised for those operating lease arrangements where the Group has an obligation at the end of the lease period to restore the leased
premises in a condition similar to inception of lease. ARO are provided at the present value of expected costs to settle the obligation and are recognised
as part of the cost of that particular asset and amortised or depreciated in the same manner as the asset to which it pertains. The estimated future costs
of decommissioning are reviewed annually and any changes in the estimated future costs or in the discount rate applied are adjusted from the cost of
the asset.

Contingent liabilities and Contingent assets

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group or a present obligation that arises from
past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle, or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.
Contingent asset is not recognised and is disclosed only where an inflow of economic benefits are probable.

Liabilities recognised in a business combination

A contingent liability recognised in a business combination is initially measured at its fair value. Subsequently, it is measured at the higher of the amount
that would be recognised in accordance with the requirements for provisions above or the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative
amortisation recognised in accordance with the requirements for revenue recognition,

1) Revenue recognition

Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured at the amount of transaction price (net of variable consideration) allocated to that
performance obligation. The transaction price of goods sold and services rendered is net of variable consideration on account of various discounts and
schemes offered by the Group as part of the contract. Revenue is recognised when the control is transferred to the customer and when the Group has
completed its performance obligations under the contracts.

At the inception of the new contractual arrangement with the customer, the Group identifies the performance obligations inherent in the agreement. The
terms of the contracts are such that the services to be rendered represent a series of services that are substantially the same with the same pattemn of the
transfer to the customer.

Revenue is recognised as follows:
(i) Revenue from services represents the amounts receivable for services rendered.

(i1) For contract-based business (Expressed or implied), revenue represents the sales value of work carried out for customers during the period. Such
revenues are recognised in the period in which the service is rendered. e

(i1i) Unbilled revenue (contract assets) net of expected deductions is recognised at the end of each period. Such unbilled revenue is reversed in the
subsequent period when actual invoice is raised. o
(iv) Uneamed income (contract liabilities) represents revenue billed but for
statement of profit and loss as and when the services are rendered.

s have not yet been performed. The same s 1 leased to the
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(v) Revenue from the use of assets such as rent for using property, plant and equipment is recognised on a straight-line basis over the terms of the
related leases unless payments are structured to increase in line with the expected general inflation to compensate for the lessors” expected inflationary
cost Increase.

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the control of goods has been transferred, being when the products are delivered to the buyer, the
buyer having the full discretion over the use of the goods and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the buyer’s acceptance of the product.
Delivery occurs when the products have been shipped to the specific location, the risks of obsolescence and loss have been transferred to the buyer, and
either the buyer has accepted the products in accordance with the sales contract, the acceptance provisions have lapsed, or the Group has objective
evidence that all criteria for acceptance have been satisfied. Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable, net of returns and allowances, trade discounts and volume rebales. Discounts and rebates are estimated based on accumulated experience.
Certain subsidiaries of the Group provide normal warranty provisions for general repairs for one year on all its products sold, in line with the industry
practice. A hability is recognised at the time the product is sold. Revenue is deferred and recognised on a straight line basis over the extended warranty
period in case warranty is provided to customer for a period beyond one year.

Rendering of services

In contracts involving the rendering of services, revenue is measured using the proportionate completion method when no significant uncertainty exists
regarding the amount of the consideration that will be derived from rendering the service. When the contract outcome cannot be measured reliably,
revenue is recognised only to the extent that the expenses incurred are eligible to be recovered.

Estimates of revenue, costs or extent of progress towards completion are revised if circumstances change. Any resulting increases or decreases in
estimated revenue or costs are reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the circumstances that give rise to the revision become known to the
management.

M u lo-pl, t arrangement

thn a sales arrangement contains multiple elements, such as services, material and maintenance, revenue for each element is determined based on
each element’s fair value.

Revenue recognition for delivered elements is limited to the amount that is not contingent on the future delivery of products or services, future
performance obligations or subject to customer-specified return or refund privileges.

The undiscounted cash flows from the arrangement are periodically estimated and compared with the unamortised costs. If the unamortised costs
exceed the undiscounted cash flow, a loss is recognised.

Interest income

For all financial asset measured either at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income, interest income is recorded using the
effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability.
When calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial
instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included
in other income in the statement of profit and loss.

Dividends
Dividend income from investments is recognised in profit or loss as other income when the Group’s right to receive payments is established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Group, and amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Rental income

Rental income arising from operating leases on investment properties is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease term unless payments are
structured to increase in line with the expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increase and is included in
revenue in the statement of profit or loss due to its operating nature.

m) Employee Benefits

The Group’s employee benefits mainly include wages, salaries, bonuses, compensated absences, defined contribution to plans, defined benefit plans
and share-based payments. The employec benefits are recognised in the year in which the associated services are rendered by the employees of the
Group.

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits and compensated absences that are expected to be settled within twelve months after
the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect of employees' services up to reporting date and are
measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liability for compensated absences is recognised in the provision for
employee benefits. All other short-term employee benefit obligations are presented as employee benefits payable under other {inancial liabilities, current

Bonus
The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses. The Group recognises a provision where contractually or legally obliged or where there
is a past practice that has created a constructive obligation.

Compensated absences/Leave obligations

The employees of the Group are entitled to compensated absences which are both accumulating and non-accumulating in nature. The employees
can carry forward up to aspecified portion of the unutilised accumulated compensated absences and utilize it in future periods or receive cash at
retirement or termination of employment. The expected cost of accumulating compensated absences is determined by actuarial valuation (using the
projected unit credit method) based on the additional amount expected to be paid as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the
balance sheet date. The expense of non-accumulating compensated abserices is recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the year in which
the absences occur. Re-measurements arising out of actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken into the statement of profit and loss and are not
deferred.

In rcspcct of those employees who are entitled to an encashment of the leave at the end of every calendar year, a provision is created to account for the
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Post-employment obligations

The Group operates the following post-employment schemes:

(a) Defined contribution plans such as provident fund, employees’ state insurance, superannuation funds and central provident fund; and
(b) Defined benefit plans such as gratuity.

Defined contribution plan

The Group’s policy is to contribute on a defined contribution basis for eligible employees, to Employces’ Provident Fund, Employees’ Pension Scheme
and Employees’ State Insurance Scheme towards post-employment benefits, all of which are administered by the respective Government authoritics,
and has no further obligation beyond making its contribution which is expected in the year in which it pertains. The contributions are accounted for as
defined contribution plans and the contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised
as an asset (o the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.

In respect of entities of the Group not incorporated in India, contributions to superannuation funds are recognised as an employee benefit expense as
they become payable. The Group pays fixed contributions into independent entities in relation to several state plans and insurance for individual
employees. The central provident fund is an employment based savings scheme with employers and employees contributing a mandated amount to the
Fund. The Group has no further obligation beyond making its contribution which is expected in the year in which it pertains. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.

Defined Benefit Plan

In India, the Group has a defined benefit plan, viz., Gratuity, for all its employees, and the Group’s policy is to determine the liability for this benefit
and to accrue and provide for the same as determined by an independent actuarial valuation. A portion of this liability for gratuity is contributed by
some subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures to Group’s gratuity policies administered and operated by reputed insurance companies. The liability or
asset is recognised in the balance sheet in respect of gratuity plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period
less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit is actuarially determined (using the projected unit credit method) at the end of each year.

Present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields on
government bonds at the end of the reporting periods, that have approximately similar terms to the related obligation.

The Group recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the consolidated statement of profit and loss:
e Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine settlements; and
e Net interest expense or income

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:
@ The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
e The date that the Group recognises related restructuring costs.

The net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost
is included in the employee benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined
benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately
in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur.
Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Equity settled stock-based compensation
Employees (including senior executives) of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments, whereby employees render services
as consideration for equity instruments (equity-settled transactions).

The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is made using an appropriate valuation model. The fair
value of options granted under various Employee stock option plans is recognised as an employee benefits expense with a corresponding increase in
equity (stock option outstanding account).

The total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which is the period over which all of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At the
end of each period, the entity revises its estimates of the number of options that are expected to vest based on the non-market vesting and service
conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision to original estimates in the period of change, if any, in the profit or loss, with corresponding
adjustment to equity.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into account when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but the likelihood of
the conditions being met is assessed as part of the Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market performance
conditions, if any, are reflected within the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without an associated service requirement,
are considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of
an award unless there are also service and/or performance conditions.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance and/or service conditions have not been met. Where
awards include a market or non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vested imrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of diluted eamnings per share.

n) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs include interest calculated on the effective interest rate method, other costs incurred in connection with borrowing and exchange
differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost. General and specific
borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of the assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale (‘qualifying assets’), are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are expensed in statement of profit and loss within finance costs in the period in-which they are
incurred. o
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o) Leases

Group as a lessee

The Group’s lease assct classes primarily consist of leases for buildings, vehicles and equipments. For any new contracts, the Group assesses whether
a contract is, or contains a lease. A lease is defined as “a contract, or part of a contract, that conveys the right to use an asset (the underlying asset) for a
period in exchange for consideration”. To apply this definition the Group assesses whether the contract meets three key evaluations which are whether:
(i) the contract contains an identified asset, which is either explicitly identified in the contract or implicitly specified by being identified at the time the
asset is made available to the Group

(i) The Group has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the identified asset throughout the period of use. corzsidering
its rights within the defined scope of the contract

(iit} The Group has the right to direct the use of the identified asset throughout the period of use.

The Group assesses whether it has the right to direct *how and for what purpose’ the asset is used throughout the period of use.

Measurement and recognition of leases as a lessee

At lease commencement date, the Group recognises a right-of-use asset (‘'ROU’) and a corresponding lease liability on the balance sheet. The right-of-
use asset is measured at cost, which comprises of the initial measurement of the lease liability, any initial direct costs incurred by the Group, an estimate
of any costs to dismantle and remove the asset at the end of the lease, and any lease payments made in advance of the lease commencement date (net
of any incentives received).

The Group depreciates the right-of-use assets using the straight line method cffective from the Financial Year 2024-25 (written down value method till
Financial Year 2023-24 in respect of certain subsidiaries) from the lease commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-
use asset or the end of the [ease term. The Group also assesses the right-of-use asset for impairment when such indicators exist.

IndAS116 requires lessees to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease adjusted with an option to extend or terminate the lease,
if the use of such option is reasonably certain. The lease term in future periods is reassessed to ensure that the lease term reflects the current economic
circumstances.

Extension and termination options are included in a number of leases across the Group. These are used to maximise operational flexibility in terms of
managing the assets used in the Group’s operations. The majority of extension and termination options held are exercisable only by the Group and not
by the respective lessor.

At the commencement date, the Group measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments unpaid at that date, discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease if that rate is readily available or the Group’s incremental borrowing rate. Lease payments included in the measurement
of the lease liability are comprises of fixed payments (including in substance fixed), variable payments based on an index or rate, amounts expected to
be payable under a residual value guarantee and payments arising from options reasonably certain to be exercised.

Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability will be reduced for payments made and increased for interest. It is remeasured to reflect any reassessment
or modification, or if there are changes in in-substance fixed payments. When the lease liability is remeasured, the corresponding adjustment is reflected
in the right-of-use asset, or profit and loss if the right-of-use asset is already reduced to zero.

The Group has elected to account for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets using the practical expedients. Instead of recognising a right-of-
use asset and lease liability, the payments in relation to these are recognised as an expense in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Lease liability and right-of-use assets have been separately presented in the notes to the financial statements under ‘Other financial liability’ and
‘Property, plant and equipment’ (except those meeting the definition of investment property) respectively. Lease payments have been classified as ‘cash
flows from financing activities’.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets:
The Group has elected not to recognise ROU and lease liabilities for short term leases that have a lease term of twelve months or less and leases of
low value assets. The Group recognises lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental
income from operating lease is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease unless payments are structured to increase in line
with the expected general inflation to compensate for the expected inflationary cost increase under “Other Income” in the statement of Profit and Loss.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the
lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned. The respective leased
assets are included in the balance sheet based on their nature.

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership transfer from the Group to the lessee. Amounts due
from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the Group’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting
periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment outstanding in respect of the lease.

p) Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment, or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred
tax assets, are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount is the higher of its fair value less cost of disposal and its value-in-use. Value-in-use is the present value of future cash flows
expected to be derived from the asset. For the purposes of impairment testing, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or group of assets (cash-generating units or CGU). Impairment
occurs when the carrying amount ofa CGU including the goodwill, exceeds the estimated recoverable amount of the CGU. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated to the Group’s CGUs expected to benefit from the synergies arising from the
busincss combination Total impairment loss ofa CGU is allocatcd first to reduce the carrying amount of c700dwi]1 all ocated to the CGU and Lhen to the
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q) Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit for the period attributable to equity sharcholders of the Parent (after deducting
preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

Partly paid cquity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity share to the extent that they were entitled to participate in dividends relative to a fully
paid equity share during the reporting period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events of
bonus issue; bonus element in a rights issue to existing sharcholders; share split; and reverse share split (consolidation of shares).

Diluted Earnings per share amounts are computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders of the Parent (after deducting pre ference
dividends and attributable taxes but after adjusting the after income tax effect of interest and other financing cost associated with dilutive potential
cquity shares) by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and also the weighted average
number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. The diluted potential equity shares are adjusted
for the proceeds receivable had the shares been actually issued at fair value (i.e. the average market value of the outstanding shares). Dilutive potential
equity shares are deemed converted as at the beginning of the year, unless issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined
independently for each year presented.

r) Segment Reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker.

The Board of Directors of SIS Limited have appointed a Group management committee which assesses the financial performance and position of the
Group and makes strategic decisions.

The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for the Group. Further, inter-segment
revenue is accounted for based on the transaction price agreed to between segments which is primarily market based. Revenue and expenses are
identified to segments on the basis of their relationship to the operating activities of the segment. Revenue and expenses, which relate to the Group as
a whole and are not allocable to segments on a reasonable basis, are included under “Unallocated corporate expenses/income”.

s}  Statement of cash flows

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any
deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash
flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Group are segregated.

t)  Business combination

Business combinations have been accounted for using the acquisition method under the provisions of Ind AS 103, Business Combinations.

The cost of an acquisition is measured at the fair value of the assets transferred, equity instruments issued, and liabilities incurred or assumed at the date
of acquisition, which is the date on which control is transferred to the Group. The cost of acquisition also includes the fair value of any contingent
consideration. [dentifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair
value on the date of acquisition.

The interest of non-controlling shareholders is initially measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement basis is made on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Subsequent to acquisition, the
carrying amount of non-controlling interests is the amount of those interests at initial recognition plus the non-controlling interests” share of subsequent
changes in equity of subsidiaries.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value and included as part of the consideration transferred in a business
combination. Changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively,
with corresponding adjustments against goodwill or capital reserve, as the case may be.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of contingent consideration that do not qualify as measurement period adjustments depends on
how the contingent consideration is classitied. Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability is measured at fair value at subsequent
reporting dates with the corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent settlement is accounted within equity.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group’s previousty held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to its acquisition date fair
value, and the resulting gain, if any, is recognised in profit or loss.

Transaction costs that the Group incurs in connection with a business combination such as finder’s fees, legal fees, due diligence fees, and other
professional and consulting fees are expensed as incurred.

2.5 Other accounting policies

a) Investment properties
Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Group, is classified as investment
property.

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if any. .

The cost includes borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. Subsequent expenditure is capitalised to the
asset’s carrying amount only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Group and cost of such
expcndnure can be measured rchably All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. When part of an mvcstment
property is replaced, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised
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[nvestment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of or when they are permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefit is expected from their disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognised
in profit or loss in the period of derecognition.

by Financial instruments

Derivatives

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at
the end of each reporting period. The accounting for subsequent changes in fair value depends upon whether the derivative is designated as a hedging
instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged, and the type of hedge relationship designated.

Derivatives which are not designated as hedges are accounted for at fair value through profit or loss and are included in other gains/ losses.

Embedded derivatives

An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid (combined) instrument that also includes a non-derivative host contract — with the effect that some
of the cash flows of the combined instrument vary in a way similar to a stand-alone derivative. An embedded derivative causes some or all of the cash
flows that otherwise would be required by the contract to be modified according to a specified interest rate, financial instrument price, commodity price,
foreign exchange rate, index of prices or rates, credit rating or credit index, or other variable, provided in the case of a non-financial variable that the
variable is not specific to a party to the contract.

If the hybrid contract contains a host that is a financial asset within the scope of Ind-AS 109, the Group does not separate embedded derivatives. Rather,
it applies the classification requirements contained in Ind-AS 109 to the entire hybrid contract. Derivatives embedded in all other host contracts are
accounted for as separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if their economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the host
contracts and the host contracts are not held for trading or designated at fair value though profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss, unless designated as effective hedging instruments. Reassessment only occurs if there
is either a change in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a
financial asset out of the fair value through profit or loss.

¢) Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of the cost or net realizable value. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on first in,
first out basis.

d) Non-current assets held for sale/distribution to owners and discontinued operations

The Group classifies non-current assets and disposal groups as held for sale/distribution to owners if their carrying amounts will be recovered principally
through a sale/distribution rather than through continuing use and where a sale is considered highly probable. Actions required to complete the
sale/distribution should indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes to the sale/distribution will be made or that the decision to sell/distribute will
be withdrawn and Management must be committed to the sale/distribution being completed within one year from the date of classification.
Non-current assets held for sale/for distribution to owners and disposal groups are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and the fair value less
costs to sell/distribute except for assets such as deferred tax assets, assets arising from employee benefits, financial assets and contractual rights under
nsurance contracts, which are specifically exempt from this requirement. Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale/distribution are presented
separately in the balance sheet.

An impairment loss is recognised for any initial or subsequent write-down of the asset (or disposal group) to fair value less costs to sell/distribute. A
gain is recognised for any subsequent increases in fair value less costs to sell/ distribute an asset (or a disposal group), but not in excess of any cumulative
impairment loss previously recognised. A gain or loss not previously recognised by the date of sale/ distribution of the non-current asset (or disposal
group) is recognised on the date of derecognition.

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets once classified as held for sale/distribution to owners are not depreciated or amortised.
A disposal group qualifies as discontinued operation if it is a component of an entity that either has been disposed of, or is classified as held for sale,
and:

« Represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations,

« [s part of a single coordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations, or

o Is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale

Discontinued operations are excluded from the results of continuing operations and are presented as a single amount as profit or loss after tax from
discontinued operations in the statement of profit and loss.

All other notes to the financial statements mainly include amounts for continuing operations, unless otherwise mentioned.

¢) Government grants
Grants from the Government are recognised at their transaction cost where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be reccived, and the Group
will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to income or expenditure / expense are deferred and recognised in the profit or loss over the period necessary to match them
with the costs that they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and equipment are included in non-current liabilities as deferred income and are recognised
on a straight-line basis over the expected lives of related assets and presented within other income.

f) Foreign currency transaction and balances
Items included in the financial statements of each entity of the Group are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in - v.h]ch
the entity operates (“the functional currency”).
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Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the entities of the Group at their respective functional currency spot rates prevailing at the
date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates prevailing at the reporting date.

Subscquently, differences arising on restatement or settiement of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss with the exception of monetary items
that are designated as part of the hedge of the Group’s net investment of a foreign operation or a monetary item for which settlement is neither planned
nor likely to occur in foreseeable future is considered as part of the entity’s net investment in that foreign operation. These are recognised in OCI until
the net investment is disposed of, at which time, the cumulative amount is reclassified to profit or loss. Tax charges and credits attributable to exchange
differences on those monetary items are also recorded in OCL

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions and translation differences are recognised in OCI with the accumulation in other equity as foreign currency translation reserve. Non-
monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The
gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change
in fair value of the item (i.e., translation ditferences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in
OCI or profit or loss, respectively).

The equity items denominated in foreign currencies are translated at historical cost.

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into INR at the rate of exchange prevailing at the reporting date and their
statements of profit or loss are translated at average exchange rates (unless this is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are translated at the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions).
The exchange differences arising on translation for consolidation are recognised in OCL On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of QOCI
relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in profit or loss.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of any net investment in foreign entities, and of borrowings and other financial
instruments designated as hedge of such investments, are recognised in other comprehensive income. When a foreign operation is sold, the associated
exchange differences are reclassified to profit or loss, as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities arising on
the acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the spot rate of exchange at the reporting date.

g) Cash dividend and non-cash distribution to equity holders of the Parent
The Group recognises a liability to make cash or non-cash distributions to equity holders of the Group when the distribution is authorised and the
distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Group. A corfesponding amount is recognised directly in equity.

Non-cash distributions are measured at the carrying value of the assets to be distributed in case of distributions in which all owners of the same class of
equity instruments are treated equally or the distributed asset is ultimately controlled by the same party or parties both before and afier the distribution,
and at fair value of the assets to be distributed in other cases, with such value recognised directly in equity. For this purpose, a group of individuals shall
be regarded as controlling an entity when, as a result of contractual arrangements, they collectively have the power to govern its financial and operating
policies so as to obtain benefits from its activities, and that ultimate collective power is not transitory. Upon distribution of non-cash assets, any difference
between the carrying amount of the liability and the carrying amount of the assets distributed is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

h) Exceptional items

Exceptional items refer to items of income or expense within the statement of profit and loss from ordinary activities which are non-recurring and are
of such size, nature or incidence that their separate disclosure is considered necessary to explain the performance of the Group.

2.6 Recent Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifics new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules as issued from time to time. MCA has notified Ind AS 117 ‘Insurance Contracts’ and amendments to Ind AS 116 ‘Leases’, relating to sale and
leaseback transactions, w.e.f. April 1, 2024 applicable to the Group. The Group has reviewed the new pronouncements and based on its evaluation has
determined that it does not have any significant impact on its financial statements.

3. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

Use of estimates and judgment

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses and other comprehensive income (OCI) that
are reported and disclosed in the financial statements and accompanying notes.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. They are based on historical experience and other factors including
expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the Group and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

Judgements
In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management has made various judgements, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity, and of items which are more likely to be materially
adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed. Detailed information about each of these estimates
and judgements is included in relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected line item in the financial
statements.

Critical estimates and judg 1s
The areas involving critical estimates or judgements are:
e  Estimation of current tax expense and payable — Notc 8
«  Estimated useful life of intangible assets — Note 2.4.c
e  Estimation of defined benefit obligation — Note 28
e  Estimation of provision for warranty claims — Note 20
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e Estimation of fair value of contingent liabilities and liability towards forward contract or call and put options to purchase non-controlling
interests in a business combination — Note 34

e Whether forward contract or call and put options to purchase non-controlling interests result in transter of risks and rewards of ownership by
non-controlling interests— Note 34

o  Recognition of deferred tax assets for carried forward of tax losses — Note 8

e  Consolidation decisions and classification of joint arrangements —~ Note 39

e Impairment of trade receivables— Note 11

e Whether assets held for distribution to owners meet the definition of discontinued operations— Note 2.5.d
Impairment

The Group assess impairment at cach reporting date by cvaluating conditions specific to the Group that may lead to impairment of assets. Where an
impairment trigger exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is determined. Value-in-use calculations performed in assessing recoverable amounts
incorporate a number of key estimates. During the year ended March 31, 2023, the Group has recognised an impairment loss of INR 1,108.78 million
relating to its security business, INR 4.44 million relating to its facility management business and INR 1,945.12 million relating to Singapore security
business by writing down goodwill in its statement of profit and loss. This was the result of a revaluation of the business carried out by the management
based on changes in the economic conditions post covid, revised projections and growth outlook for these businesses. Refer note 5 for further
information.

Share-based payments

Estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions requires determination of the most appropriate valuation model, which is dependent on the
terms and conditions of the grant. This estimate also requires determination of the most appropriate inputs to the valuation model including the expected
life of the stock option, volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions about them. The assumptions and models used for estimating fair value
for share-based payment transactions are disclosed in note 28.

Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can
be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely
timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. [refer note 8]

Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment benefits and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using
actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include
the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term
nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. Al assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval in response to demographic
changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates for the respective countries. {refer note 28]

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active
markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the Discounted Cash Flows model. The inputs to these models are taken from
observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include
considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value
of financial instruments. [refer note 19]

Leases

Ind AS 116 requires lessees to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease adjusted with any option to extend or terminate the
lease, if the use of such option is reasonably certain. The Group makes an assessment on the expected lease tern on a lease-by-lease basis and there by
assesses whether it is reasonably certain that any options to extend or terminate the contract will be exercised. In evaluating the lease term, the Group
considers factors such as any significant leasehold improvements undertaken over the lease term, costs relating to the termination of the lease, the
importance of the underlying asset to SIS’s operations taking into account the location of the underlying asset and the availability of suitable alternatives.
The lease term in future periods is reassessed to ensure that the lease term reflects the current economic circumstances. [refer note 4 and 16]

Provisions
At each balance sheet date basis the management judgement, changes in facts and legal aspects, the Group assesses the requirement of provisions against
the outstanding contingent liabilitics. However, the actual future outcome may be different from this judgement.

Contingencies

Contingent liabilities may arise from the ordinary course of business in relation to claims against the Group, including legal, contractual and other
claims. By their nature, contingencies will be resolved only when one or more uncertain future events occur or fail to occur. The assessment of the
existence, and potential quantum, of contingencies inherently involves the exercise of significant judgements and the use of estimates regarding the
outcome of future events.

Useful lives of tangible/intangible assets
The Group reviews its estimate of the useful lives of tangible/intangible assets at each reporting date, based on the expected utility of the assets.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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SIS Limited (Formerly known as ‘SECURITY AND INTELL E{“E\Iti« SERVICES (INDIA) LIMITED?)

(All figures in INR million unless stated otherwise)

(iii) Impairment testing of goodwill and brands with indefinite lives
A summary of changes in the carrying amount of goodwill is as follows:

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Carrying value at the beginning of the year 10,678.81 11,395.11
Goodwill on acquisition of Safety Direct Solutions Pty Limited” = 38.59
Impairment loss recognised on Goodwill attributable to Singapore Security Business (1,945.12) (656.05)
Impairment loss recognised on Goodwill attributable to ADIS Enterprises Private Limited” (4.44) -
Impairment loss recognised on Goodwill attributable to SLV Security Services Private Limited” (653.30) -
Impairment loss recognised on Goodwill attributable to Uniq Security Solutions Private Limited (formerly _

known as Uniq Detective and Security Services Private Limited)” (433.48) .
Translation differences (104.53) (98.84)
Carrying value at the end of the year 7,515.94 10,678.81

# Refer Note 37
* The Group has recognised an impairment loss of INR 1,108.78 million relating to Security Services - India, INR 4.44 million relating to facility
management and INR 1,945.12 million relating to Security Services ~ International by writing down goodwill in its statement of profit and loss.

The break-up of allocation of goodwill to operating segments is as follows:

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Security Services — India 1,065.54 2,174.32
Security Services - Intemational 541009 7,459.74
Facilities Management 1,040.31 1,044.75

7,513.94 10,678.81

The entire goodwill relating to acquisition of SLV Security Services Private Limited, Uniq Security Solutions Private Limited and SIS Alarm
Monitoring and Response Services Private Limited has been allocated to the groups of CGUs which are represented by the Security Services — India
segment.

The entire goodwill relating to acquisition of Southern Cross Protection Pty Ltd, SIS Henderson Holdings Pte Ltd, Platform 4 Group Ltd, Triton
Security Limited, Safety Direct Solutions Pty Ltd and acquisition of business assets of BAS Securities Limited, Redfrog Security, Conroy Security
Limited, Guardforce Security Limited, Protection Plus Security and Protective Services Limited has been allocated to the group of CGUs which are
represented by the Security Services - International segment.

The entire goodwill relating to acquisition of Dusters Total Solutions Services Private Limited, Rare Hospitality and Services Private Limited and
ADIS Enterprises Private Limited has been allocated to the group of CGUs which are represented by the Facilities Management segment.

A summary of changes in the carrying amounts of brands with indefinite life as follows:

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Carrying value at the beginning of the year 834.70 834.89
Change during the year - -
Translation differences (0.29) (0.19)
Carrying value at the end of the year 834.41 834.70

The break-up of allocation of brands to operating segments is as follows:

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Facilities management 820.99 820.99
International 13.42 13.71

Impairment testing

The Group tests whether goodwill has suffered any impairment on an annual basis. The recoverable amount of a cash generating unit (CGU) is
determined based on value-inuse calculations which require the use of assumptions. Cash flow projections are based on financial budgets/plans
approved by management covering a period of five years. Cash flows beyond the period of five years are extrapolated using the estimated growth
rates stated below. These growth rates are consistent with forecasts in line with industry standards.

The recoverable amount of a CGU is the higher of its fair value less cost to sell and its value-in-use. These calculations use pre-tax cash flow
projections for a CGU / group of CGUs over a period of five years. An average of the range of each assumption used is mentioned below. As of
March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024, the estimated recoverable amount of the CGU exceeded its carrying amount. The recoverable amount was
computed based on the value-in-use. The carrying amount of the CGU was computed by allocating the net assets to operating segments for the purpose
of impairment testing,




SIS Limited (Formerly known as ‘SECURITY AND INTELLIGENCE SERVICES (INDIA) LIMITED")
(Al figures in INR million un stated otherwise)

Key assumptions used for testing impairment of goodwiil:
Year ended March 31, 2025

Particulars Sales (% anuual EBITDA/ Long term growth Pre-tax discount
growth rate) EBIT (%) rate (%) rate (%)
Dusters Total Solutions Services Private Limited 10.00% 4.20%-5.10% 5.00% 10.90%
SLV Security Services Private Limited 5.00% - 6.00% 3.70% - 3.90% 5.00% 10.90%
Rare Hospitality and Services Private Limited 10.00% 7.70% - 8.90% 5.00% 10.90%
Uniq Security Solutions Private Limited 5.00% - 6.00% 2.50% 5.00% 10.90%
ADIS Enterprises Private Limited -18.5% - -44.4% -0.6% - 5% 5.00% 10.90%
MSS Security Pty Limited* 2.44% 3.13% 2.00% 9.90%
Southern Cross Protection Pty Ltd* 2.44% 4.05% - 6.00% 2.00% 9.90%
SIS Henderson Holdings Pte Ltd* 7.00% - 8.40% -1.01% - 1.40% 2.00% 9.02%
Plattorm 4 Group Ltd* 2.40% 5.00% 2.00% 11.90%
Safety Direct Soluations Pty Ltd* 2.44% 3.38%-5.38% 2.00% 9.90%

Year ended March 31, 2024

Particulars Sales (% annual EBITDA/ Long term growth Pre-tax discount
growth rate) EBIT (%) rate (%) rate (%a)
Dusters Total Solutions Services Private Limited 10.00% - 12.00% 4.20% - 5.10% 5.00% 11.16%
SLV Security Services Private Limited 8.00% 4.30% - 5.00% 5.00% 11.16%
Rare Hospitality and Services Private Limited 10.00% - 16.00% 4,70% - 6.10% 5.00% 11.16%
Uniq Security Solutions Private Limited 10.00% 4.00% - 4.90% 5.00% 11.16%
MSS Security Pty Limited* 2.30% 4.03% 2.00% 9.83%
Southern Cross Protection Pty Ltd* 2.00% 4.05% - 6.00% 2.00% 9.83%
SIS Henderson Holdings Pte Ltd* 12.00% - 32.00% 3.24% - 6.36% 2.00% 9.61%
Platform 4 Group Ltd* 2.00% 1.00% - 5.20% 2.00% 11.58%
Safety Direct Soluations Pty Ltd* 2.00% 1.00% - 4.00% 2.00% 9.83%

*EBIT (%) has been used as key assumptions.

The assumptions used for the current reporting period may differ from the assumptions in the next reporting period as internal and external
circumstances and expectations change. The management believes that with regard to the assessment of value in use other than the impairment
recorded above, no reasonably possible change in any of the above key assumptions would cause the carrying amount of the CGUs to exceed their
recoverable amount. The management will continue to monitor the operating segments for these changes and may make further adjustments as the
case may be.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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(All figures in INR million unless stated otherwise)

6. Investments

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Non-current investments
Investments in equity Instruments (Unquoted fully paid)
Investment in joint ventures (at cost unless stated otherwise)
9,708,696 (March 31, 2024: 9,708,696) equity shares in SIS Cash Services Limited (Formerly known as 1.005.63 253 88
SIS Cash Services Private Limited) of INR 10/- each fully paid up T 2
49 (March 31, 2024: 49) equity shares in Habitat Security Pty Ltd of AUD 1/- each fully paid up 3.91 313
Total investment in joint ventures (A) 1,009.54 757.01
Investments in others (at FVTPL)
30 (March 31, 2024: 30) equity shares in Staqu Technologies Private Limited of INR 10/- each 0.18 0.18
1,96,962 (March 31, 2024: Nil) compulsory convertible preference shares in Agarsha Senior Care Private

] 21.67 -
Limited of INR 10/- each
5,000 (March 31, 2024: 5,000) equity shares in Saraswat Cooperative Bank Limited of INR 10/- each fully 0.05 0.05
paid up ) >
Total investments (B) 21.90 0.23
Total investment in equity instruments {A+B} (C) . 1,031.44 757.24
Investments in preference shares (Unquoted fully paid)
Investments in others (at FVTPL)
17,658,153 (March 31, 2024: 17,658,153) compulsory convertible preference shares in SIS Asset 17777 17777
Management Limited of INR 10/- each '
5,49,141 (March 31, 2024: Nil) Pre Series B compulsory convertible preference shares in Agarsha Senior 26,94
Care Private Limited of INR 158.33/- each ) )
7,773 (March 31, 2024: 7,773) Class-2 compulsory convertible cumulative preference shares in Staqu 50.01 50.01
Technologies Private Limited of INR 10/- each . .
2,169 (March 31, 2024: 2,169) compulsory convertible preference shares in Staqu Technologies Private 13.26 1326
Limited of INR 542/- each - =
Total investment in preference shares (D) 327.98 241.04
Investments in debentures or bonds (Unquoted fully paid)
Investments in joint ventures (at amortised cost)
75 (March 31, 2024: 125) Non-convertible debentures in SIS Cash Services Limited of INR 1,000,000/- 75.00
each fully paid up* .
Total investment in joint ventures (E) - 75.00
Investments in others (at FVTPL)
3,077 (March 31, 2024: 3,077) compulsory convertible debentures in Entitled Solutions Private Limited of

X 34.99 34.99

INR 11,373/- each .
Total investments in others (F) 34.99 34,99
Total investments in debentures or bonds {E+F} (G) 3499 109.99
Total non-current investments {C+D+G) (H) 1,394.41 1,108.27
Current investments
Investments in mutual funds (at FVTPL) 5.90 555
Total investments in mutual funds (I) 5.90 5.55
Investments in debentures or bonds (Unquoted fully paid)
Investments in joint ventures (at amortised cost)
Non-convertible debentures in SIS Cash Services Limited of INR 1,000,000/~ each fully paid up* 75.00 50.00
Total investments in debentures or bonds (J) 75.00 50.00
Total current investments {I+J} (K) 80.90 55.55
Total investments {H+K} 1,475.31 1,163.82
Aggregate value of quoted investments and market value thercof 5.90 5.55
Aggregate value of unquoted investments 1,469.41 1,158.27
Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments - -

*During the year ended March 31, 2025, the parent has redeemed the non-convertible debentures amounting to INR 50 million and the current maturity
of non-convertible debentures amounting to INR 75 million (March 31, 2024: INR 50 mitlion) has been disclosed under current in’\f_f‘:»s\_t»mems,
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7. Other financial assets

Particulars

March 31, 2025

March 31,2024

Other non-current financial assets

Security deposits (unsecured, considered good) 293,98 29594
Margin money in the form of fixed deposits * 131.07 191.14
Fixed deposit maturing after 12 months 31044 90.78
Other non-current financial assets 39.77 3395
Total other non-current financial assets 775.26 611.81
Other current financial assets

Unbilled revenue 7,381.88 7,060.57
Less: Provision 13.81 -
Unbilled revenue net off provision ** (refer note 23) 7,368.07 7,060.57
Security deposits (unsecured, considered good) 190.83 237.68
Interest accrued on deposits / investments/ loans 75.16 71.05
Other receivables 141.80 143.74
Total other current financial asscts 7,775.86 7,513.04
Total financial assets 8,551.12 8,124.85

* Fixed deposits have been pledged as margin money against bank guarantees.

** All unbilled dues are undisputed and falling under the ageing of less than six months from the date of completion of delivery of goods/services.
Further, unbilled revenues are classified as financial assets as right to consideration is unconditional and is due only after passage of time.

No other advances are due from directors or other officers of the Group either severally or jointly with any otheér person and from firms or private
companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member, except as disclosed in note 40.

Refer note 41 for the Group’s policy regarding impairment allowance on other financial assets and Group’s credit risk management processes.

7a. Loans
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024
Total non-current loans - .
Current loans
Loans to related parties - 17.00
Total current loans - 17.00
Total Loans - 17.60

Break-up of security details:

Particulars

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Loan Reccivables considered good - Secured

Loan Receivables considered good - Unsecured

17.00

Total

17.00

No loans are due {rom directors or other officers of the Group either severally or jointly with any other person and from firms or private companies

respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member except as disclosed in note 40

8. Income tax

The major components of income tax expense for the years ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 are:

Statement of profit and loss:

Profit or loss section:
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Current income tax:
Current income tax charge 460.14 29845
Adjustments in respect of current income tax expense / (reversal) of previous years (5.03) 16.31
Deferred tax:
Decrease /(increase) in deferred tax assets (net) 104.39 503.9%
Income tax expense/(credit) reported in the statement of profit and loss 555.50 818.75
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All figures in INR million unless stated otherwise

OCI section:
Tax related to items recognised in OCI during the year:

Particulars March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Tax expense/(credit) on re-measurements of defined benefit plans (42.36) 17.39
Income tax charged/(credited) to OCI (42.36) 17.39
Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by the tax rate for March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024:
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Accounting profit before tax from continuing operations 673.38 2.719.15
Accounting profit beforc income tax 673.38 2,719.15
Income tax expense at statutory rate @ 25.17% (March 31, 2024: 25.17%) 169.48 684,36
Adjustments in respect of income tax of previous years (9.03) 16.31
Additional temporary tax deductible in respect of certain benefits under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (376.16) (289.29)
Non- Deductible expenses for tax purposes
Corporate social responsibility expenditure 9.30 8.05
Donation 0.82 0.66
Other non-deductible expenses® 794.39 375.17
Deferred tax assets not recognized on losses® 3.80 -
Income taxed at differential rates
Entities taxed at different rates (37.10) 23.49
Tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 555.50 818.75

*The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets on carried forward losses of certain subsidiaries, in the absence of virtual certainty supported by
convincing evidence that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such losses can be utilised.

Mncludes tax effect on impairment on goodwill.

The effective tax rate applicable to the Parent for the financial year 2025-26 would be 25.17% (including surcharge and cess) based on the law as it

exists on the date of these financial statements.

The balance in deferred tax assets (liabilities) comprises temporary differences attributable to:

Particulars March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Property, plant and equipment / Intangibic assets (248.52) (343.18)
Defined benefit obligations 1,984.82 1,874.57
Deductions in respect of certain benefits under the Income Tax Act, 1961 630.00 1,001.37
Accruals and others (4.86) (43.56)
Allowance for expected credit loss — trade receivables 326.22 276.95
Unused tax losses 147.81 152.15
Total deferred tax assets/(liabilities) 2,838.47 2,918.30

Reflected in the balance sheet as follows:

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Deferred tax assets (net) 3,139.10 3,269.46
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 300.63 351.16
Total deferred tax assets/(liabilities) (net) 2,838.47 2,918.30

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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i

Reconciliation of deferred tax assets (liabilities), net:

(All figures in INR million unless stated otherwise)

Property, Dig:c:c‘:‘:;_m Allowance
plant and Defined Sp . for expected
. . certain Accruals . Unused
Particulars equipment / benefit credit loss — Total
. o benefits under | and others tax losses
Intangible | obligations trade
assots the Income ivabl
Tax Act, 1961 receivables
As at April 1, 2023 (322.17) 1,772.30 1,541.53 73.25 225.50 18591 3,476.32
Tax income/(expense) during the period 5 < 1 e
R 23. 33 . 9l . 503.

recognised in profit o loss (23.48) 133.67 (540.16) (91.79) 51.53 (33.76) (503.99)
Tax income/(expense) during the period .
recognised in OCI )} (17.39) ) ) (17.39)
Other adjustments - - - (28.70) - (28.70)
Exchange translation 247 (14.01) - 3.68 (0.08) (7.94)
As at March 31, 2024 (343.18) 1,874.57 1,001.37 (43.56) 276.95 152.15 2,918.30
Tax income/(expense) during the period 93.24 93.00 (371.37) 3224 52.84 (4.34) (104.39)
recognised in profit or loss
Tax m@me{(expensc) during the period A 42.36 ) A ) 42.36
recognised in OCI
Exchange translation 1.42 {25.11) - 6.46 (0.57) (17.80)
As at March 31, 2025 (248.52) 1,984.82 630.00 (4.86) 329.22 147.81 2,838.47

Deferred tax assets and liabilities above have been determined by applying the income tax rates applicable to respective entities in the Group.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities in relation to taxes payable by various entities/ under different tax basis have not been offset in the financial statements.

Unrecognised temporary differences:

Certain subsidiaries of the Group have undistributed earnings which, if paid out as dividends would be subject to tax in the hand of the recipient. An
assessable temporary difference exists but no deferred tax liability has been recognised as the Parent is able to control the timing of distribution from
the substidiaries and the eamings are expected to be utilised for their business expansion.

Income tax assets:

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Opening balance 2,651.92 2,397.41
Taxes paid 1,237.37 1.309.92
Refund received (1,618.90) (1,033.77),
Current tax payable for the year (6.04) (21.64))
Income tax assets 2,264.35 2,651.92
Current tax liabilities:
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024
Opening balance 3.25 (101.10)
Current tax payable for the year 385.04 293.75
Taxes paid (net of refund) (22.34) (195.80)
Exchange translation (9.70) 6.40
Total tax liabilities/(assets) 356.25 3.25
T

The Group offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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/s d otherwise)

9. Other Assets

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Other non-current assets
Capital advances 194.50 43.15
Other advances 0.02 -
Total other non-current assets 194.52 43.15
Other current assets
Prepaid expenses 742.83 784.72
Security deposits 306.07 253.87
Other advances ~ 490.11 446.22
Total other current assets 1,539.01 1,484.81
Total other assets 1,733.53 1,527.96
* Includes balance with revenue authorities.
10. Inventories
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Stock-in-trade - 16.36
Uniforms’ 175.16 202.09
Consumables 108.60 90.58
Total inventories at the lower of cost and net realisable value 283.76 309.03

* Includes uniform in transit of INR 0.02 million (March 31, 2024: Nil).

1. Trade receivables

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Trade receivables 19,964.91 19,989.83

Less: Allowance for expected credit loss 1,324.65 1,131.37

Total trade receivables 18,640.26 18,858.46
Break-up of security details:

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Secured, considered good - .
Unsecured, considered good 18.640.26 18,858.46
Total 18,640.26 18,858.46

The amount of loss allowance (lifetime expected credit loss) has been recognised under the simplified approach for trade receivable and hence break-

up of trade receivable into 'significant increase in credit risk' and ‘credit

Ageing of trade receivables:

impaired' has not been disclosed separately.

As at March 31, 2025
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date Total
Not due Less than 6 |6 months - 1| 1-2 years | 2-3 years | More than 3
months year years
(i) Undisputed trade receivables 7,836.16 8,863.24 983.03 645.83 337.55 926.62 19,592.44
(ii) Disputed trade receivables 5.09 2.26 127.54 50.06 15.50 172.02 372.47
As at March 31, 2024
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date Tatal
Not due Less than 6 |6 months - 1|1 - 2 years |2 - 3 years| More than 3
months year years
(i) Undisputed trade receivables 10,131.25 6,747.39 870.42 763.96 486.69 775.02 19,774.73
(ii) Disputed trade receivables - 32.12 3.64 14.73 20.96 143.65 215.10

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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(All figures in INR million unless stated otherwise)

Movement in Expected credit loss:

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 38,2024
Opening balance 1,131.37 966.91
Additions 220.55 244.82
Write off (net of recovery) (15.86) (79.70)
Exchange differences (11.41) (0.66)
Closing balance 1,324.65 1,131.37

No trade reccivable are due from directors or other officers of the entities of the Group cither severally or jointly with any other person and from firms
or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member, except as disclosed in note 40.

Refer Note 41 for the Group’s policy regarding impairment allowance on trade receivables and Group’s credit risk management processes.
For outstanding balances, terms and conditions relating to related party receivables, refer note 40.

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30 to 90 days.

12. Cash and bank balances
Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Balances with banks:

- On current and other accounts 6,06].57 4,698.42
- Drafts on hand 1.17 -

- Bank deposits with original maturity of three months or less 1,105.73 1,815.66
Cash on hand 0.72 0.74
Total 7,169.19 6,514.82

Bank balances lying in various current accounts bear no interest.
There are no repatriation restrictions with regard to cash and cash equivalents as at the end of reporting period and prior periods.

Other bank balances

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Unclaimed dividend accounts” 0.94 0.94
Deposits with original maturity of more than three months and having remaining maturity of less than twelve 3295.80 433,29
months from reporting date T i

Restricted balances - 151.01
Margin money * 1,259.64 305.17
Total 4,556.38 890.41

* Pledged as security/margin money against guarantees issued by banks on behalf of the Group

~ During the year ended March 31, 2025, an amount of INR 0.22 million pertaining to unclaimed dividends became due for transfer to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The said amount was transferred to
the IEPF before the approval of the financial statements.

13. Equity Share capital
Authorised share capital

Particulars ’ (Nos. in million) (INR million)

As at April 1, 2023 (Equity shares of INR 5 each) 270.00 1,350.00

Increase / (decrease) during the year - -

As at March 31, 2024 (Equity shares of INR 5 each) : 270.00 1,350.00

Increase / (decrease) during the year - -
As at March 31, 2025 (Equity shares of INR 5 each) 270.00 1,350.00

Issued, subscribed and paid up equity capital

Particulars (Nos. in million) (INR million)
As at April 1, 2023 (Equity shares of INR 5 each) 145.73 728.65
[ssued on exercise of stock options 0.01 0.03
Buyback of equity shares (1.64) (8.18)
As at March 31, 2024 (Equity shares of INR 5 each) 144.10 720.50
Issued on exercise of stock options 0.27 1.34

As at March 31, 2025 (Equity shares of INR 5 each) 144.37 721.84
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(All figures in INR million unless stated otherwise,

During the year ended March 31, 2025, the Board of Directors of the Parent, at its meeting held on March 25, 2025, has approved the proposal for buy-
back of fully paid up equity shares up to 37,12,871 equity shares of face value of INR 5/- each of the Parent for an aggregate amount not ex ceeding
INR 1,500 million, being 2.57% of the total paid up equity share capital of the Parent as on March 21, 2025, at INR 404 per equity share in accordance
with the provisions of the Securitics and Exchange Board of India (Buy-back of Securities) chulz\lions, 2018, as amended and the Companies Act,
2013, as amended. The Buyback is subject to the approval of the sharcholders by means of a special resolution through a postal ballot.

During the year ended March 31, 2024, pursuant to the approval of the Board of Directors of the Parent at its meeting held on November 30, 2023, the
Parent offered 1,636,363 equity shares of face value of INR 5 each for buyback to all eligible shareholders, through the tender offer process, for an
aggregate amount not exceeding INR 900 million, equivalent to 1.12% of the total paid up equity share capital of the Parent as on November 24, 2023,
at INR 550 per equity share, in accordance with the provisions of the Sccurity and Exchange Board of India (Buy-back of Securities) Regulations, 2018,
as amended and the Companies Act, 2013, as amended. The said shares bought buyback through the tender offer process were extinguished on January
05, 2024. The Parent funded the buyback from its free reserves as required under the said regulations. Consequently, 1,636,363 equity shares of face
value of INR 5 each were extinguished by appropriating a sum of INR 891.82 million from the securities premium and an amount of INR 8.18 million,
cquivalent to the nominal value of the equity shares bought back through the buyback, have been transferred to the capital redemption reserve account.

During the year ended March 31, 2023, pursuant to the approval of the Board of Directors of the Parent, at its meeting held on June 29, 2022, and the
sharcholders, by way of a special resolution through postal ballot, on August 12, 2022, 1,454,545 equity shares of face value of INR 5 each of the Parent
were offered for buyback by the Parent to all eligible shareholders of the Parent, through the tender offer process, for an aggregate amount not exceeding
800 million, being 0.99% of the total paid up equity share capital of the Parent as on March 31, 2022, at INR 550 per equity share, as per the provisions
of the Security and Exchange Board of India (Buy-back of Securities) Regulations 2018, as amended and the Companies Act, as amended. The said
buyback through the tender ofter process was completed on November 11, 2022. The Parent has funded the buyback from its free reserves as required
under the said regulations. As a result of the buyback, 1,454,545 equity shares of face value of INR 5 each of the Parent were extinguished by
appropriating a sum of INR 792.73 million from the securities premium and an amount of INR 7.27 million, being a sum equal to the nominal value of
the Equity Shares bought back through the buyback have been transferred to the capital redemption reserve account.

During the year ended March 31, 2022, pursuant to the approval of the Board of Directors of the Parent, at its meeting held on February 15, 2021, and
the shareholders, by way of a special resolution through postal ballot, on March 20, 2021, 1,818,181 equity shares of face value of INR 5 each of the
Parent were offered for buyback by the Parent to all eligible shareholders of the Parent, through the tender offer process, for an aggregate amount not
exceeding 1,000 million, being 1.24% of the total paid up equity share capital of the Parent as on March 31, 2020, at INR 550 per equity share, per the
provisions of the Security and Exchange Board of India (Buy-back of Securities) Regulations 2018, as amended and the Companics Act, as amended.
The said buyback through the tender offer process was completed on June 21, 2021. The Parent has funded the buyback from its free reserves as required
under the said regulations. As a result of the buyback, 1,818,181 equity shares of face value of INR 5 each of the Parent were extinguished by
appropriating a sum of INR 990.91 million from the securities premium and an amount of INR 9.09 million, being a sum equal to the nominal value of
the Equity Shares bought back through the buyback have been transferred to the capital redemption reserve account.

Notes (pre share sub-division effect i.e. face value of INR 10 per share):

a. 2,210,500 and 62,457,240 equity shares were allotted as fully paid Bonus Shares by capitalization of general reserve during the year ended March
31,2006 and March 31, 2017 respectively.

b, Mr. Uday Singh was the holder of 79,000 unpaid shares in SIS Intemational Holdings Ltd., a wholly owned subsidiary. In terms of a letter dated
December 1, 2009, Mr. Singh had the option to exchange these shares for shares of the Company in a manner reflecting the fair value of these
shares, reduced by the amounts unpaid on them. Subsequently, in lieu of these shares and suitably adjusted for amounts unpaid thereon, Mr. Singh
was allotted 40,565 Equity Shares during the year ended March 31,2017, at a ratio as determined in accordance with a valuation report prepared
by a SEBI registered merchant banker.

¢ During the year ended March 31,2018, the Parent completed an Initial Public Offering (IPO) of its shares consisting of a fresh offer of 4,444,785
equity shares of INR 10 each at a premium of INR 805 per share and an offer for sale of 5,120,619 equity shares of INR 10 each by the selling
shareholders. The proceeds of the fresh offer component from the IPO amounted to INR 3,410.47 (million) (net of issuc expenses). The equity
shares of the Parent were listed on NSE and BSE eftective August 10, 2017.

Dividends

The Parent declares and pays dividends in Indian Rupees. According to the Companies Act, 2013 any dividend should be declared only out of
accumulated distributable profits. A company may, before the declaration of any dividend, transfer a percentage of its profits for that financial year,
as it may consider appropriate, to the reserves.

The Parent’s Board, at its meeting dated May 01, 2025, has not proposed final dividend for the year ended March 31, 2025 (March 31, 2024: INR Nil
per share).

Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The Parent has only one class of equity shares having par value of INR 3 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share and to
participate in dividends in proportion to the number of and amounts paid on the shares held. The Parent declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees.
In the event of liquidation of the Parent, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the remaining assets of the Parent, after distribution of

all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Parent

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Name of the shareholder
No. in million % holding in the class No. in million % holding in the class
Ravindra Kishore Sinha 56.62 39.22% 36.62| 39.29%!
Rita Kishore Sinha 23.09 15.99% 23.09 16 02%
Rituraj Kishore Sinha 16.10 11.15%) 1551 10.76%

Aggregate number of equity shares issued as bonus, shares issued for consideration other than cash and shares bought back during the period of five
years immediately preceding the reporting date:

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31,2021
No. Ne. No. No. © " Ne

Particulars
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Details of promoter shareholding in the parent

Year ended March 31,2025

All figures in INR million unless stated othenvise

S. No. Name of the Promoter Equity shares as on Equity shares as on % Change
March 31, 2025} % holding in March 31, 2024} % holding in during the
(in Nos.)|  the class (in Nos.)]  the class year
I Ravindra Kishore Sinha 56,618,087 39.22% 56,618,087 39.29% -0.07%
2 Rituraj Kishore Sinha 16,103,533 11.15%) 15,509,033 10.76% 0.39%
Total 72,721,620 72,127,120
Year ended March 31, 2024
S. No. Name of the Promoter Equity shares as on Equity shares as on % Change
March 31, 2024} % holding in March 21, 2023 % holding in during the
(in Nos.)|  the class (in Nos.){ the class year|
1 Ravindra Kishore Sinha 56,618,087 39.29% 57,163,671 39.23% 0.06%
2 Rituraj Kishore Sinha 15,509,033 10.76% 15,658,482 10.74% 0.02%
Total 72,127,120 72,822,153
Shares reserved for issue under options : Refer note 28 for details regarding employee stock options issued by the Group.
4. Other equity
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Reserves and surplus
Securities premium 1,132.35 1,036.41
General reserve 57793 574.96
Retained earnings 20,755.13 20,765.25
Total reserves and surplus (A) 22,465.41 22,376.62
Other reserves
Stock options outstanding account 324,47 391.45
Capital reserve 181.24 181.24
Capital redemption reserve 2454 24.54
Total other reserves (B) 530.25 597.23
Foreign currency translation reserve (C) 360.79 441.02
Share application money pending allotment (D) 0.63 -
Total other equity (A+B+C+D) 23,357.08 23,414.87
Securities Premium
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Balance at the beginning of year 1,036.41 1,946.94
Exercise of stock options 95.94 261
Buyback of equity shares - {900.00)
Transaction cost related to buyback of equity shares (net of taxes) - (13.14)
Balance at the end of year 1,132.35 1,036.41
General Reserve
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Balance at the beginning of year 574.96 563.47
Transferred from stock options outstanding on account of stock options forfeited/lapsed 297 11.49
Balance at the end of year 577.93 574.96

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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Retained earnings

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 3%, 2024
Balance at the beginning of year 20,765.25 19,022.22
Net Profit/ (loss) for the year 117.88 1,900.40
Other comprehensive income recognised directly in retained carnings (net of taxes) (128.00) 50.39
Appropriations-

- Tax on buyback of equity shares - (207.76)
Balance at the end of year 20,755.13 20,765.25

Stock Options Outstanding Account

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Balance at the beginning of year 391.45 334.87
Stock option compensation expense 31.93 70.68
Transferred to securities premium on exercise of stock options (95.94) (2.61)
Transferred to general reserve on stock options forfeited/lapsed (2.97) (11.49)
Balance at the end of year 324.47 391.45

Capital reserve

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Balance at the beginning of year 181.24 181.24
Increase/ (decrease) during the year - -

Balance at the end of year 181.24 181.24

Capital redemption reserve

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Balance at the beginning of year 24.54 16.36
Created on buyback of equity shares - 8.18
Balance at the end of year 24.54 24.54

Foreign currency translation Reserve

Particulars

March 31, 2025

Marceh 31, 2024

Balance at the beginning of year 441.02 539.18
Translation reserve (80.23) (98.16)
Balance at the end of year 360.79 441.02
Share application money pending allotment

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Balance at the beginning of year - -
Share application money received during the year 1.80 0.02
Issued on exercise of stock options (1.17) (0.02)
Balance at the end of year 0.63 -

Nature and purpose of Reserves
Securities Premium

Security premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares or other securities such as debentures or bonds. The reserve is utilised in accordance

with the Companies Act, 2013,

General Reserve

The general reserve is the result of a Group’s transferring a certain amount of profit from the account of retained eamings to the general reserve account.
The purpose of setting up a general reserve account is to meet potential future unknown liabilities. In other words, the general reserve is a free reserve
which can be utilised for any purpose after fulfilling certain conditions.

Retained earnings
Retained earnings represents the amount of accumulated eamings of the Group and re-measurement differences on defined benefit plans.

Stock Options outstanding Account

The stock options outstanding account is used to recognize the grant date fair value of options issued to employees under the Parent’s employee stock
option plan. The share-based payment reserve is used to recognise the value of equity-settled share-based payments provided to employees including
key management personnel, as part of their remuneration. Refer note 28 for further details. .
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Capital redemption reserve

As per the Companies Act, 2013, Capital redemption reserve is created when a company purchases its own shares out of free reserves or securities
premium. A sum equal to the nominal value of the shares so purchased is transferred to capital redemption reserve. This reserve can be utilised un
accordance with the provisions of section 69 of the Companies Act, 2013. Refer note 13 for further details.

Capital reserve
It pertains (o capital reserve created pursuant to the scheme of arrangement under the Act accounted under demerger and excess of purchase
consideration over fair value of net assets.

Foreign currency translation Reserve

Translation differences included in the foreign currency translation reserve arise as a result of translating the financial statement items from the
functional currency into the presentational currency using the exchange rate at the balance sheet date, which differs from the rate in effect at the last
measurement date of the respective item.

Share application money pending allotment

Share application money pending allotment represents the exercise price received from employees of the Group against stock options on which allotment
is not yet made.

(This space has been intentionally lefi blank)




SIS Limited (Formerly known as ‘SECURITY AND INTELLIGENCE SERVICES (INDIA) LIMITED")

All figures in INR million unless stated otherwise)

15, Borrowings

Particulars Note March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Non-current borrowings

Secured

Bonds/ debentures

- Non convertible debentures a 2,472.87 -
Term loans

From banks

- HDFC Bank Limited b 191.28 251.90
- National Australia Bank ¢ 4,529.75 4.607.76
- Yes Bank Limited d 144.18 77.48
- Standard Chartered Bank € - 108.95
- DBS Bank f 186.35 175.33
- Axis Bank Limited g 201.84 127.06
- Vehicle Loan from banks h 643.77 578.71
From other partics

- Axis Finance Limited i 756.01 942.21
- Bajaj Finance Limited j 473.38 944.14
- Vehicle Loan from others k 244.03 235.08
Total non-current borrowings 9,843.46 8,048.62
Current maturity of long term borrowings (1,273.93) (5,748.12)
Non-current borrowings (as per balance sheet) 8,569.53 2,300.50
Current borrowings

Secured

Loans repayable on demand

From banks

- RBL Bank Ltd 1 113.46 96.77
- Axis Bank Limited m 540.00 740.00
- HDFC Bank Limited m 2,301.87 2,370.34
- ICICI Bank Limited m 222 838.28
- Standard Chartered Bank m 936.51 950.54
- Yes Bank Limited m 728.86 1,230.59
- DBS Bank m 549.65 451.23
- CTBC Bank Co Ltd. n - 350.00
Total secured borrowings 5,172.57 7,027.75
Unsecured

Loans repayable on demand

From Others

- Borrowings from others [ ) - 9.65
Total unsecured borrowings - 9.65
Current maturity of long term borrowings 1,273.93 5,748.12
Current borrowings (as per balance sheet) 6,446.50 12,785.52
Aggregate secured borrowings 15,016.03 15,076.37
Aggregate unsecured borrowings - 9.65

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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Break up of current Maturities of long-term borrowings:

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Secured
Term loans
From banks 280.12 4,950.36
From other partics 993.81 797.76
Total current maturities of long term borrowings 1,273.93 5,748.12
Notes:

Long Term Borrowings - Secured:

Bonds/ debentures:

a. On March 26, 2025, the Parent issued 25,000 Listed, Rated, Secured, Redeemable, Non-Convertible Debentures (“NCDs”) having a face value of
INR 1,00,000/- (Indian Rupees One Lakh only) each, aggregating to INR 2,500 million, The NCDs carry interest @ 8.50% per annum, payable
Quarterly. The NCDs are secured by a pledge over a portion of the Parent’s shareholding in one of its subsidiary companies, Dusters Total Solutions
Services Private Limited. The debentures are redeemable 3 years afier the date of issue. i.e. March 25, 2028.

Term loans:
From Banks:
b. HDFC Bank Limited:

(i) Secured by way of exclusive charge on the equipment/assets finance by lender to the Parent. The foan is repayable in 18 equal quarterly
instalments commenced in the 4th quarter of FY 2023-24 and last installment repayment is scheduled in first quarter of FY 2028-29.

(11} Secured against an exclusive charge over the fixed assets and current assets of the SMC Integrated Facility Management Solutions Limited. The
term loans are repayable in 54 equal monthly instalments from the date of respective draw down, totaling INR 1.70 million per month with
repayment commencing from January 2020 and has been fully repaid during FY 2024-25.

(iii) Secured against the fixed assets of Rare Hospitality and Services Private Limited purchased out of the loan and a corporate guarantee from
Parent. The loan carries various repayment schedules ranging from 21 to 55 equal monthly instalments.

c. National Australia Bank:
Secured by all assets of SIS Australia Group Pty Ltd and its subsidiaries, The loan is scheduled for repayment on its maturity (i.c., November 29,
2027). The loan carries interest @ 3.75% per annum plus margin based on Leverage ratio (1.75%).

d. Yes Bank Limited:

() Secured by way of first pari-passu charge over the entire movable fixed assets (both present and future) of the SMC Integrated Facility
Management Solutions Limited. The term loans are repayable in 54 equal monthly instalments after a moratorium period of 6 months from the
date of first disbursement, totaling INR 2.59 million per month with repayment commencing from April 2022 and is schedule to be repaid by FY
2026-27.

(i1) Secured by way of exclusive charge on hypothecation over Plant & Machinery (Capex assets financed by Yes Bank) of the Dusters Total Solutions
Services Private Limited (both present and future). The loan is repayable in 18 equal quarterly payments post initial moratorium period of 6
months from the date of initial disbursement. The instalments commenced in the 2nd quarter of FY 2025-26 and last instalment repayment is
scheduled in 3rd quarter of FY 2029-30. The loan carry interest rate of 3M T-Bill + 2.01%.

. Standard Chartered Bank:
Secured by way of exclusive charge over the Monitoring equipment/assets of Parent purchased out of the term loan proceeds. The loan is repayable
in 12 equal quarterly instalments commenced from the end of the fourth quarter of F'Y 2021-22 and has been fully repaid during FY 2024-25.

o

f. DBS Bank:
Secured by way of exclusive charge on the Monitoring equipment/assets of Parent purchased out of the term loan proceeds. The loan was repayable
in 18 equal quarterly instalments commenced from the end of the 4th quarter of FY 2023-24 and last installment repayment is scheduled in first
quarter of FY 2028-29.

g. Axis Bank Limited:
Secured by way of first pari-passu charge over the entire movable fixed assets (both present and future) of the SMC Integrated Facility Management
Solutions Limited. The loan is repayable in 18 equal quarterly instalments after a moratorium period of 6 months from the date of first disbursement,
totaling INR 15.50 million per quarter with repayment commencing from June 2024 and is schedule to be repaid by FY 2027-28.

. Vehicle loans from banks are secured by hypothecation of vehicles purchased against the loan taken from that Bank. The loans have various repayment
schedules and last instalment repayment is scheduled in FY 2029-30.

The term loans mentioned above except vehicle loans and loan from National Australia Bank (‘NAB’), carry interest at quarterly/half-yearly/yearly
MCLR/MIBOR/Repo/T-Bill plus spread margin ranging from 1035 bps to 235 bps (March 31, 2024: 75 bps to 315 bps). The vehicle loans carry
interest from 7.10% to 10.50% per annum for India business and 6.00% to 8.00% for intemational business.

From other parties:

i. Axis Finance Limited:
Secured by way of first pari-passu charge on current and non-current assets of Dusters Total Solution Services Private Limited & Uniq Security
Solutions Private Limited and pledge over portion of the Parent Sharcholding in Dusters Total Solutions Services Private Limited. The loan has been
fully prepaid during first quarter of F.Y .2025-26.

j. Bajaj Finance Limited:
Secured by way of first pari-passu charge on current and movable fixed assets of Dusters Total Solutions Services Private Limited & UNIQ Security
Solutions Private Limited and pledge over portion of the Parent Sharcholding in Dusters Total Solutions Services Private Limited. The loan has been
fully prepaid during first quarter-of F:¥.2025-26.
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k. Vehicle Loan from others are secured by hypothecation of the respective vehicle(s) purchased against the loan taken from that respective financer(s).
The loans carry interest from 7.50% to 9.50% per annum for India business and 6.00% to 8.00% for international business. The loans have various
repayment schedules and the last instalment repayment is scheduled in FY 2028-29.

Short Term Borrowings - Secured Loans repayable on demand:

Cash Credit facility from RBL Bank Limited is secured by the pari passu charge on the entire assets of SIS Alarm Monitoring and
Response Services Pvt. Ltd., both present and future; and an unconditional and irrevocable corporate guarantee of the Parent.
(it)  Secured by first pari passu charge on current assets of Dusters Total Solutions Services Private Limited.

L (1)

(iii)  Secured by first pari passu charge on current assets of ADIS enterprises Private Limited both present and future.
m. (i)  Secured by first pari passu charges over the current assets and second pari passu charge over movable fixed assets of the Parent.

(i1)  Secured by first charge over all current assets and fixed assets of SMC Integrated Facility Management Solutions Limited.

(iti)  Secured by first pari passu charges over the current assets and second pari passu charge over movable fixed assets of the SLV Security Services
Private Limited and corporate guarantee from the Parent.
(iv)  Secured by first pari passu charge on current assets of Dusters Total Solutions Services Private Limited.

(v)  Secured against stocks and book debts (both present and future) of Rare Hospitality and Services Private Limited and Corporate Guarantee
from Parent.

(vi)  Secured by an exclusive charge on current assets and movable fixed assets of Tech SIS Limited and corporate guarantee from the Parent.
(vii) Secured by an exclusive charge on entire current assets and movable fixed assets of Terminix SIS India Private Limited both present and future.
(viii) Secured by the pari passu charge on the entire assets of SIS Alarm Monitoring and Response Services Pvt. Ltd., both present and future; and

an unconditional and irrevocable corporate guarantee of the Parent.
n. Secured by pari passu charge over the current assets of the Parent both present and future and has been fully repaid during FY 2024-25.

The short-term borrowings charges are excluding assets specifically charged to term lenders, if any.

The loans repayable on demand mentioned above except loan from Commonwealth bank of Australia, carry interest at quarterly/half yearly/yearly
MCLR/MIBOR/Repo/ T-Bill plus spread margin ranging from 30 bps to 151 bps (March 31, 2024: 15 bps to 209 bps) for cash credit facility and
ranging from 8.40% p.a. to 10.50% p.a. for WCDL facilities.

0. The loan represents an invoice discounting facility with a non-banking lender. This carries Interest at BBSY plus 4% spread plus 1.2% margin. The
loan has been fully repaid during FY 2024-25.

There has been no default in the payment of interest or repayment of principal in respect of the above loans/borrowings.
Quarterly/monthly retums or statements of current assets filed by the Group with the Banks/Financial Institutions are in agreement with the books of
accounts as per the approach agreed with the lenders, as applicable.

16. Lease Liabilities

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Non-current lease liabilities 1,025.30 1,101.12
Current lease liabilitics 413.09 393.21
Total lease liabilities 1,438.39 1,494.33

Movement of lease liabilities during the year:

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Opening balance 1,494.33 1,251.92

Additions 421.95 632.92

Deletions / adjustments during the year (6.49) (5.61)
Finance cost accrued during the year 150.37 114.05

Payment of lease liability (614.08) (491.64)
Translation differences (7.69) (731
Closing balance 1,438.39 1,494.33

Other disclsure rleated to leases:

Rent expenses related to short-term leases and low value assets 728.64 l 616.65

Refer note 4# for disclosure of related Right of Use Assets.

The Group does not expect potential exposure to variable lease payments, extension / termination options, guaranteed residual value and lease

commitments.

17. Trade payables

Particulars

March 31,2025

Mareh 31, 2024

Non-current

There are no disputed dues during the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 20 g‘“
&
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Current
Trade payables
- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (MSME) 14498 97.02
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 67593 749.87
Total current trade payables 82091 | 7. 846,89
Total trade payables m 820.91 :
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The terms and conditions of the above financial liabilities are as follows:
a.  Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on credit terms ranging from 30-90 days which vary by vendor and type of
service.
b.  For outstanding balances, terms and conditions with related parties, refer note 40

Ageing of trade payables:

As at March 31, 2025
Particalars Outstanding for following periods from due date Total
Not due <l year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3
years

())MSME 116.35 28.63 - - - 14498

({iOthers . 6674 569.67 2113 11.64 6.75 675.93
As at March 31, 2024

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date Total
Not due <1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3
years

(IMSME 87.92 9.10 - - - 97.02

(ii)Others 126.94 577.48 25.12 10.64 9.69 749.87
18. Other financial liabilities

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Non-current

Other non-current financial liabilities 0.08 4.48

Total other non-current financial liabilities 0.08 4.48

Current

Capital creditors 41.82 25.34

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 76.49 72.23

Unclaimed/unpaid dividends 0.94 0.94

Employee benefits payable 5,506.34 4,908.44

Contingent consideration (refer note 34) - 54.25

Other payables and accruals * 4,867.74 4,715.68

Total other current financial liabilities 10,493.33 9,776.88

Total other financial liabilities 10,493.41 9,781.36

*Includes unbilled dues, having ageing of less than one year.

19. Financial instruments by category

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Particulars
FVTPL FYTOCI Amortised cost FVTPL FVYTOCI Amortised cost

Financial assets:
Investments

-Equity instruments 0.23 - - 0.23 - -

-Preference shares 327.98 - - 241.04 - -

-Bonds and debentures 34.99 - 75.00 34.99 - 125.00

-Mutual funds 5.90 - - 5.55 - -
Trade receivables - - 18,640.26 - - 18,858.46
Cash and cash equivalents - - 7,169.19 - - 6,514.82
Other bank balances - - 4,556.38 - - 890.41
Loans - . - 17.00
Other financial assets 24.66 - 8,526.46 24.66 - 8,100.19
Total financial assets 393.76 - 38,967.29 306.47 - 34,505.88
Financial liabilities:
Trade payables - - 82091 - - 846.89
Borrowings ) - - 15,016.03 - - 15,086.02
Lease liability - - 1,438.39 - - 1,494.33
Other financial liabilities 10,493 41 54.25 - 9,727.00
Total financial Liabilities - 27,768.74 54.25 o= b 2715438
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Fair value hierarchy

The assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis and the basis for that measurement is as below:

March 31, 2025

March 31,2024

Particulars

Level 1inputs | Level 2 inputs

Level 3 inputs

Level 1 inputs

Level 2 inputs

Level 3 inputs

Financial assets:

Investments carried at FVTPL 5.90 - 363.20 5.55 - 276.26
Other financial assets - - 24.66 - - 24.66
Total financial assets 5.90 - 387.86 5.55 - 300.92
Other financial liabilities - - - N - 54.25
Total financial liabilities - - - - - 54.25

Valuation methodologies

Investments in equity / preference instruments: The Group’s investments consist primarily of investment in equity / preference shares of unquoted
companies. Management has considered cost to be approximating to the fair value of certain investments and valued other investments using fair

valuation techniques as mentioned below

All of the resulting fair value estimates are included in Level 3 as the fair values have been determined based on present values and discount rates used

are adjusted for counter party or own credit risk.

The following table presents the change in Level 3 items for the periods ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024:

Particulars Unquoted Indemnification Cu?tinge.nt
Investments asset consideration
As at April 1, 2023 241.27 24.66 55.16
Additions 34.99 - -
Unwinding of present value discount - - 220
Discharge of Hability - - 4.51)
Translation adjustments - - 1.40
As at March 31, 2024 276.26 24.66 54.25
Additions 86.94 - -
Unwinding of present value discount - - 0.57
(Gains) / loss on fair value recognized in statement of profit and loss - - (23.84)
Discharge of liability - - (32.19)
Translation adjustments - - 1.21
As at March 31, 2025 363.20 24.66 -
Unrealised fair value (gains) / losses recognized in statement of profit and loss related to assets and liabilities held as on reporting date:
March 31, 2025 - - -
March 31, 2024 - - -

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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Fair Values of assets and liabilities carried at amortised costs are as follows:

Particulars Fz.lir value March 31, 2025 i March 31, 2024

hierarchy Carrying value Fair value Carrying value Fair value
Financial assets:
Investments Level 2 75.00 75.99 125.00 126.38
Trade receivables 18,640.26 18,640.26 18,858.46 18,858.46
Cash and cash equivalents 7,169.19 7,169.19 6,514.82 6,514.82
Other bank balances 4,556.38 4.356.38 890.41 890.41
Loans - - 17.00 17.00
Other financial assets 8,526.46 8,526.46 8,100.19 8,100.19
Total financial assets 38,967.29 38,968.28 34,505.88 34,507.26
Financial liabilities:
Trade payables 820.91 820.91 846.89 846.89
Borrowings - floating rate 11,655.36 11,655.36 14,272.23 14,272.23
Borrowings - fixed rate Level 2 3,360.67 3,179.15 813.79 801.23
Lease liability 1,438.39 1,438.39 1,494.33 1,494.33
Other financial liabilities 10,493.41 10,493 .41 9,727.11 9,727.11
Total financial liabilities 27,768.74 27,587.22 27,154.35 27,141.79

The Group assessed that fair value of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, other financial assets, trade payables, bank overdrafls, lease liability
and other financial liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

The fair value of investments and fixed rate borrowings are calculated based on fixed cash flows discounted using weighted average cost of debt as on
balance sheet date and accordingly classitied under level 2 fair values in the fair value hierarchy due to the use of significant observable inputs.

Valuation inputs and relationships to fuir value

The following table summarises the quantitative information about the significant unobservable inputs used in Level 3 fair value measurements

Fair value as at Significant
Particulars unobservable Sensitivity
March 31,2025 | March 31,2024 inputs

Management has considered fair value / cost to

Unquoted Investments 363.20 276.26 | Fair Value / Cost be approximating to fair value of such
investments.

Change in estimates by 10% results in
Indemnification asset recognised on 2466 24 66 Probability of increase/decrease in fair value by:
business combination ’ "~ loutcome of litigation [March 31, 2025: INR 2.47 million

March 31, 2024: INR 2.47 million

Change in estimates by 5% results in
increase/decrease in fair value by:
March 31, 2025 INR 0 million
March 31, 2024: INR 2.71 million

Probability of
Contingent consideration - 54.25 jachieving financial
projections

Valuation processes

The finance department of the Group includes team that performs the valuations of financial assets and liabilities required for financial reporting
purposes, including level 3 fair values. The team reports directly to the chief financial officer (CFO). Discussions of valuation processes and results are
held between the CFO and the valuation team atleast once every 3 months, in line with the Group’s quarterly reporting period. External valuer’s
assistance is also taken for valuation purposes whenever required.

The main level 3 inputs used by the Group are derived and evaluated as follows:

o Discounts rate are determined using a capital asset pricing model to calculate a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risk specific to the asset.

» Risk adjustments specific to the counter parties (including assumptions about credit default rates) are derived from credit risk grading determined
by the Group’s internal credit risk management group.

o Volatility used for option pricing model is based on historical volatility of comparable companies.

»  Contingent consideration — estimated based on expected cash outflows arising from the forecasted sales and the entities; knowledge of the business
and how the current economic environment is likely to impact it.

(This space has been intentionally left blank) . o 5 /?j/ L
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2{. Provisions

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Non-current Current Non-current Current

Provision for employee benefits (refer note 28)

Gratuity 1,727.91 500.67 1,482.73 432.61

Compensated absences 436.58 3,600.74 455.13 3,558.60

Other provisions

IBNR - 59.90 - 61.12

Others 6.59 25.41 33.47 38.70

Total 2,171.08 4,186.72 1,971.33 4,091.03
IBNR

The IBNR, which is the abbreviated form of incurred but not reported (IBNR), are the reserves for claims that become due with the occurrence of the
events covered under the insurance policy but have not been reported yet. The sum of IBNR losses plus reported losses yields an estimate of the total
eventual liabilities the insurer will cover, known as ultimate losses.

21, Other liabilities

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Other non-current liabilitics - -
Other current liabilities

Statutory dues payable 22171 1,955.92
Unearned income (refer note 23) 0.26 1.90
Others” 32.65 9.68
Total other current liabilities 2,250.02 1,967.50
Total other liabilities 2,250.02 1,967.50

22. Government grants

*Includes advances received from customers.

Particulars

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

As at the beginning of the year

Received during the year - 1.32
Released to the statement of profit and loss - (1.32)

As at the end of the year

Current

Non-current

During the year ended March 31, 2024, one of the subsidiaries avail the benefit under National Apprenticeship Promotion Scheme (NAPS) launched
on August 19, 2016 wherein the Government of India provides the financial support to establishments undertaking the apprenticeship training in the

following ways:

1. Reimbursement of 25% of prescribed stipend subject to a maximum of INR 1500/- per month per apprentice by the Government of India to all

employers who engage apprentices.

2. Reimbursement of cost of basic training (up to a limit of INR 7500/~ for a maximum of 500 hours= INR 15/hour) by the Government of India to
Basic Training Providers (BTPs) in respect of apprentices who come directly for apprenticeship training without any formal training

Accordingly, such Government Grant is taken to profit or loss when the conditions are met.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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23. Revenue from operations

se)

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Sale of products (traded goods)

Revenue from sale of electronic security devices 301.06 539.66
Total (A) 301.66 539.66
Rendering of services

Security services

From guarding and other security services 108,120.79 100,103.70

Facility management services

From Housekeeping, Cleaning, Facility operation & management services 21,978.43 20,507.36

From pest control services 35141 32447
Other services

From training fees 108.72 124.03

Total rendering of services (B) 130,559.35 121,059.56

Other operating revenues* 1,029.96 1,015.03
Total (C) 1,029.96 1,015.03
Revenue from aperations (A+B+C) 131,890.37 122,614.25

*Includes revenue from the sale of uniforms to employees.

Disaggregate revenue information

The following table presents the disaggregated revenue from contracts with customers for the year ended March 31, 2025.
Particalars | ket | Managoment | siminaons Total
Revenue by time of recognition
At a point in time 644 .45 18.98 - - 663.43
Over the period of time 55.119.65 54,279.74 22,470.42 (642.87) 131,226.94
Total 55,764.10 54,298.72 22,470.42 (642.87) 131,890.37
Revenue by geographical markets
India 55.764.10 - 22,470.42 (642.87) 77,591.65
Outside India - 54,298.72 - - 54,298.72
Total 55,764.10 54,298.72 22,470.42 (642.87) 131,890.37

The following table presents the disaggregated revenue from contracts with customers for the year ended March 31, 2024.
Particulars Sccuri;z'l :;rviccs - Se;::trcl:z" :::;:‘::s - MﬂFaiﬂity ) In:er-seg‘r,ir:s:( Total
Revenue by time of recognition

{At a point in time 523.14 16.52 - - 539.66
Over the period of time 51,061.60 50,673.84 20,921.02 (581.87) 122,074.59
Total 51,584.74 50,690.36 20,921.02 (581.87) 122,614.25
Revenue by geographical markets
India 51,584.74 - 20,921.02 (581.87) 71,923.89
Qutside India - 50,690.36 - - 50,690.36
Total 51,584.74 20,921.02 (581.87) 122,614.25

50,690.36

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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Contract balances:

The following table provides information about unbilled revenue and uneamed income from contract with customers:

Particalars

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Unbilled revenue

Unearned income

Unbilled revenue

Unecarned income

Opening balance

7,060.57

1.90

5,990.05

3.08

Revenue recognised that was included in uncarned income at the
beginning of the year

(2.49)

(24.76)

Increase due to cash received, excluding amounts recognised as
revenue during the year

0.85

23.58

Transfers from unbilled revenue, recognised at the beginning of the
year, to receivables

(7,060.57)

(5,990.05)

Increase due to revenue recognised during the year, excluding
amounts billed during the year

7,368.07

7.060.57

Closing balance

7,368.07

0.26

7,060.57

1.90

Cost to obtain or fulfil a contract with a customer

Particulars

March 31,2025

March 31, 2024

Opening balance - 5.54
Costs incurred and deferred - 397
Less: Cost amortised - (9.51)

Closing balance

24. Other income

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
[nterest income * 586.64 399.50
Total 586.64 399.50
*Includes interest income on income tax refund
23, Other gain / (loss)
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Net gain / (loss) on sale of property, plant and equipment* 58.75 36.37
Foreign exchange gain/(loss) 7.57 (4.61)
Net gain / (loss) on financial assets/liabilities mandatorily measured at FVTPL” 23.84 -
Other items 3.90 (4.59)
Total 94.06 27.17

* Includes gain/(loss) on derecognition of Right of Use assets.

~ Gain on fair value arising on acquisition of remaining shares in Safety Direct Solutions Pty Ltd [refer note 37]

26. Cost of materials consumed

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Purchases of chemicals, consumables, and others 575.73 572.35
Uniforms and related inventories 68.64 39.78
Total 644.37 612,13
27. Changes in inventory
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Inventory at the beginning of the year 309.03 314.28
Inventory at the end of the year 283.76 309.03
Changes in inventory - (increase)/decrease 25.27 525

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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28. Employee benefits expense

a) Employee benefits expense include

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Salaries, wages and bonus 97,460.39 89,733.63
Contribution to provident and other funds 9,377.28 8,656.82
Government grants (Note 22) - (1.32)
Employee share-based payment expense 31.93 70.68
Gratuity expense 466.55 495.53
Leave compensation 706.89 702.26
Staff welfare expenses 1,050.42 835.89
Total 109,093.46 100,495.49

b) Unfunded Scheme ~leave obligations

Leave obligations cover liability for sick and earned leave in certain subsidiaries of the Group located in India.
The provision for leave obligations is presented as current, since the Group does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of any of these

obligations.

Unfunded Schemes:
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Present value of unfunded obligations 24113 245.60
Expenses to be recognized in the statement of profit and loss 706.89 702.26
Discount rate (per annum) 6.55% 7.15%
Mortality IALM 2012-14 IALM 2012-14
Salary escalation rate (per annum) 8.00% 8.00%

The liability for earned and sick leave is recognised and measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows to be made in respect of
non-billing employees at the reporting date. In determining the present value of the liability, attrition rates and pay increases through promotion and

inflation have been taken into account.

(C) Defined contribution plans

The entities of the Group have certain defined contribution plans. Contributions are made to provident fund in India for employees at the rate of 12%
of the salary (subject to a limit of INR 15,000 salary per month) as per regulations. For entities in India, the contributions are made to the statutory
provident fund administered by the govemment. The obligation of the Group is limited to the amount contributed and it has no further contractual or

constructive obligation in this regard.

Further contributions are made in respect of Employees’ State Insurance Scheme, for specified employees, at the rate of 3.25% of the gross pay as
per regulations. The contributions are towards medical benefits provided by the Government to the employees. The contributions are made to
employees’ state insurance authorities administered by the Government. The obligation of the Group is limited to the amount contributed and it has

no further contractual or constructive obligation in this regard.

In outside India, the entities of the Group provide post-employment benefits through accumulation fund and central provident fund. The entities of
the Group pay a fixed contribution at the rate of 9.5% of the basic salary into employee nominated independent superannuation (annuity) funds in
relation to several state plans and insurance for individual employees. The central provident fund is an employment-based savings scheme with
employers and employees contributing a mandated amount to the Fund at the rate from 7.5% to 17%. The Group has no legal or constructive

obligations to pay contributions in addition to its fixed contributions,

Contributions to provident fund/ employees’ state insurance/ superannuation funds are recognised as an expense as they become payable which
coincides with the period during which relevant employee services are received. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a

cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.

Particulars

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Expense recognised during the period towards defined contribution plans

9,377.28

8,656.82

(d) Defined beunefit plans

In accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, applicable for Indian companies, the entities of the Group provide for a lump sum payment to
eligible employees, at retirement or termination of employment based on the last drawn salary and years of employment with the entities of the Group
subject to completion of five years of service and other conditions. The gratuity plan is a partly funded plan for the Parent and certain subsidiaries in
the Group, and those entities make contributions to Group’s gratuity policies managed by insurance companies. The gratuity plan is an unfunded plan
for certain subsidiaries in the Group. The Group does not fully fund the liability and maintains a target level of funding to be maintained over a period

of time based on estimations of expected gratuity payments.

Gratuity is applicable only to employces drawing a salary in Indian rupces and there are no foreign defined benefit plans. Ccnam entities of the Group

have invested the plan assets in the insurer managed funds.
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The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit or loss and the funded status and amounts
recognised in the balance sheet for the respective plans:

Expenditure to be recognised during the year:

Particulars

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Current service cost 351.58 386.34
Interest cost 114.97 109.19
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 466.53 495.53
Remeasurements
Return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in interest income 9.86 (8.04)
Loss / (gain) from changes in financial assumptions 48.52 333
Loss / (gain) from changes in demographic assumptions (2.84) -
Experience loss / (gain) 112.12 (64.56)
Total loss / (gain) recognised in other comprehensive income 167.66 (69.07)
Change in present value of defined benefit obligation is summarised below:
Reconciliation of opening and closing bal of Defined Benefit Obligation March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Defined benefit obligation at the beginning of year 2,112.22 1,844.48
Current service cost 351.58 386.34
Interest cost 128.30 113.00
Remeasurements 157.80 (61.03)
Benefits paid (309.76) (170.69)
Liabilities assumed / (settled) 1.34 0.12
Defined benefit obligation at the end of year 2,441.48 2,112.22
Reconciliation of fair value of plan assets:
Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of fair value of plan assets March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year 196.88 185.22
Interest income 13.33 3.81
Remeasurements (9.86) 8.04
Contribution by employer 32231 170.50
Benefits paid (309.76) (170.69)
Fair value of plan assets at the closing of the year 212.90 196.88

Reconciliation of fair value of Assets and Obligations:

Reconciliation of fair value of assets and obligations

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Fair value of plan assets 212.90 196.88
Present value of obligation (2,441.48) (2,112.22)
Asset / (liability) recognized in balance Sheet (2,228.58) (1,915.34)

The present value of defined benefit obligation relates to active employees only

The Group has no legal obligation to settle the deficit in the funded plans with an immediate contribution or additional one-off contributions. The
Group intends to continue to contribute to the defined benefit plans to achicve target level of funding to be maintained over a period of time based on

estimations of expected gratuity payments.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity and post-employment benefit obligations for the Group's plans are shown below:

Principal assumptions:

Principal actuarial assumptions March 31, 2025 March 31,2024

Discount rate 6.55% 7.15%

Mortality TALM 2012-14 TALM 2012-14

Future salary increase

- Non-billing / indirect employees 8.00% 8.00%

- Billing /direct employees 5.00-7.00% 5.00-7.00%

Altrition rate

Billing employees

- Age from 21-30 years ) 39-56% 39-32%

. 31-40 28-44% 28-42%

- 41-30 28-38% 28-40%

- 51 & above 28-35% 28-43%

Non billing employees

- Age from 21-30 years 27.00% 24-27%

- 31-40 16-25% 16-21%

- 41-50 12-21% 12-24%

- 51 & above ’ 16-23% 11-16%
A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption is as shown below:

Assumptions March 31,2025 March 31, 2024

Discount rate

0.5% increase (1.96%) (1.92%)

0.5% decrease 2.05% 2.00%

Future salary increases

0.5% increase 1.96% 1.92%

0.5% decrease (1.90%) (1.86%)

The above sensitivity analysis is based on a change in assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur,
and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation 1o significant actuarial
assumptions, the same method (present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected credit unit method at the end of the
reporting period) has been applied as when calculating the defined benefit liability recognised in the balance sheet.

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the previous year.

Risk Exposure
Through its defined benefit plans, the Group is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are market volatility, changes in inflation,
changes in interest rates, rising longevity, changing economic environment and regulatory changes.

The Parent and certain entities of the Group have selected a suitable insurers to manage the funds in such a manner as to ensure that the investment
positions are managed with an asset-liability matching framework that has been developed to achieve investments which are in line with the
obligations under the employee benefit plans. Within this framework, the asset-liability matching objective is to match assets to the obligations by
investing in securities to match the benefit payments as they fall due.

The insurers, on behalf of the entities of the Group, actively monitor how the duration and the expected yield of the investments are matching the
expected cash outflows arising from employee benefit obligations. The entities of the Group has not changed the processes used to manage its risks
from previous periods. Investments are well diversified, such that failure of any single investment should not have a material impact on the overall
level of assets.

Defined benefit liability and employer contributions
The weighted average duration of the post-employment benefit plan obligations and expected maturity analysis of undiscounted gratuity benefits is
as follows:

Particulars ) March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

The weighted average duration of the post-employment benefit plan obligations (in years) 3.36 333
Expected contribution to the fund during the next year 441.29 377.31
Maturity profile: March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Less than a year 708.67 626.35
Between 1-2 years 544.26 47765
Between 2-5 years 1,052.63 92454
Over 5 Years A?\\ WERT \ 83065 | 75023
Total \ 313621 2;80 7]
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(¢) The Code on Wages, 2019 and the Code on Social Security, 2020 have been notified through Gazette of India afier assent of Hon’ble President
of India which govemn, and are likely to impact, the contributions by the Group towards certain employee’s benefits. Notification of rules of these
codes are pending. The effective date of timplementation of these Codes has not yet been notified and the Group will assess the impact of these codes
as and when they come into effect and will provide for the appropriate impact in its financial statements in the period in which, the Code becomes
effective.

(fy  Share-based payments
The Parent has Employee Stock Option plan namely ESOP 2016 as on March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024.

a)  During the year ended March 31, 2022, the Parent issued 1,421,973 options to cligible employees which will vest over next four financial

years and be cligible for exercise, subject to certain conditions, after June 1, 2023, except as approved otherwise. Out of such options;
i 243,741 options have been forfeited/lapsed till March 31, 2025
n. 275,581 options have been exercised up till March 31, 2025,
1. 571,365 options have been vested and exercisable but not exercised/allotted as on March 31, 2025.

b)  During the year ended March 31, 2023, the Parent issued a further 35,700 options to eligible employees which will vest over next three
financial years and be eligible for exercise, subject to certain conditions, after June 1, 2025, except as approved otherwise. Out of such
options:

i 21,800 options have been forteited/lapsed on account of the respective employees no longer in employment till March 31, 2025,
i 10,000 options have been exercised up till March 31, 2023,
it 2,600 options have been vested and exercisable but not exercised as on March 31,2025,

c) During the year ended March 31, 2024, the Parent issucd a further 10,000 options to eligible employees which will vest over next two
financial years and be cligible for exercise, subject to certain conditions, on or after June 1, 2025, except as approved otherwise. Qut of
such options:

I No options have been forfeited/lapsed till March 31,2024
i 5,000 options have been vested and exercisable but not exercised as on March 31, 2025.

d)  During the year ended March 31, 2025, the Parent issued a further 1,000 options to cligible employees which will vest over next financial

year and be eligible for exercise, subject to certain conditions, after October 5, 2025, except as approved otherwise. Out of such options:
i No options have been forfeited/lapsed till March 31,2025,
it No options have been vested and not exercised/exercisable as on March 31, 2025

e} During the year ended March 31, 2025, Nomination and Remuneration Committee has approved the option of carly exercise of vested
option as on date.

f) There were no cancellation to the awards during the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024.

Options granted under the aforesaid plans carry no dividend or voting rights.
Movements during the year

Year ended March 31, 2025

ESOP 2016
Particulars ESOPs granted in Total
2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25
Outstanding stock options as on April 1, 2024 1,196,083 13,900 10,000 - 1,219,983
Exercise price INR 5/- INR 5/- INR 5/- INR 5/- INR 5/-
Options granted during the year - - - 1,000 1,000
Options exercised during the year* 257,070 10,000 - , - 267,070
Options forfeited/lapsed during the year 36,362 - - - 36,362
Qutstanding stock options as at March 31, 2025 902,651 3,900 10,000 1,000 917,551
Exercisable stock options as at March 31, 2025" 571,365 2,600 5,000 - 578,965
Year ended March 31, 2024
ESOP 2016
Particulars ESOPs granted in Total
2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25

Outstanding stock options as on April 1, 2023 1,294,288 33,900 - - 1,328,188
Exercise price INR 5/- INR 5/- - - INR 5/-
Options granted during the year - - 10,000 - 10,000
Options exercised during the year* 7312 - - - 7312
Options forfeited/lapsed during the year 90,893 20,000 - - 110,893
Qutstanding stock options as at March 31, 2024 1,196,083 13,900 10,000 - 1,219,983
Exercisable stock options as at March 31, 2024 - - - - -

*The weighted average share price at the date of exercise of options during the year ended March 31, 2025 was INR 348.03 (March 31, 2024;
INR 440.23) -

~ Includes 120,146 options exercised but not allotted during the year ended March 31, 2025, ’
There were no cancellations or moditications to the awards in 2025 or March 31,2024,




SIS Limited (Formerly known as ‘SECURITY AND INTELLIGENCE SERVICES (INDIA) LIMITED?)

(AUl figures in INR million unless stated otherwise

Stock options oufstanding at the end of the year have the following details:

Exercise Fair value 5(::::!;:(:(;;\ Stock options
Grant Tranche | Grant date | Vesting date | Expiry date ([;::::) (INR) March 31, w(:\:tcsl::;nldi;ju
) 2025 o ’
Plan I (ESOP 2016): Grant V 1 20-Apr-21 01-Jun-22 01-Jun-27 5.00 35719 161,258 239217
Plan U (ESOP 2016): Grant V i 20-Apr-21 01-Jun-23 01-Jun-27 5.00 357.19 163,758 239216
Plan [T (ESOP 2016): Grant V I 20-Apr-21 0l-Jun-24|  01-Jun-27 5.00 357.19 242,749 358,825
Plan 11 (ESOP 2016): Grant V v 20-Apr-21 0l-Jun-25)  01-Jun-27 5.00 357.19 334,886 358,825
Plan 1 (ESOP 2016): Grant V 1 20-Oct-22}  21-Oct-23{  01-Jun-27 5.00 411.65 1,300 4,633
Plan H(ESOP 2016): Grant V i 20-Oct-22|  Ol-Jun-24{ 01-Jun-27 5.00 411.65 1,300 4,633
Plan 1 (ESOP 2016): Grant V 1 20-Oct-22 01-Jun-25 01-Jun-27 5.00 411.65 1,300 4,634
Plan 1 (ESOP 2016): Grant V 1 12-Dec-23]  12-Dec-24]  01-Jun-27 5.00 450.98 5,000 5,000
Plan 11 (ESOP 2016): Grant V II 12-Dec-23 01-Jun-25}  01-Jun-27 5.00 450.98 5,000 5,000
Plan 11 (ESOP 2016): Grant V I 04-Oct-24|  05-Oct-25]  01-Jun-27 5.00 398.62 1,000 -
Total 917,551 1,219,983

The weighted average remaining contractual life for the options outstanding as on March 31, 2025 is 2.17 years (March 31, 2024: 3.17 years).

Fair value of options granted

The fair value at grant date is determined using the Black Scholes Model which takes into account the exercise price, the term of the option, the
market price being the latest available closing price prior to the date of the grant and expected price volatility of the underlying share, the

expected dividend yield and the risk free interest rate for the term of the option as detailed below:

Grant date Volatility Market price (INR) :;:::rﬂcy:i:; Risk-free interest rate Dividend yield
20-Apr-21 46.02% 360.93 512 5.55% 0.00%
20-Oct-22 39.02% 415.60 3.62 7.39% 0.00%
12-Dec-23 34.06% 45533 221 7.28% 0.00%
04-Oct-24 33.99% 403.035 1.83 6.66% 0.00%

Total expenses arising from share-based payment transactions recognised in profit or loss as part of employee benefit expense were as follows:

Particulars

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Employee option plan

31.93

70.68

Total employee share-based payment expense

31.93

70.68

29. Finance costs

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Interest expenses 1,439.60 1,350.28
Interest on lease liability 150.37 114.05
Other finance costs * 16.50 17.26
Total 1,606.47 1,481.59

*Includes commitment charges, loan processing charges, guarantee charges, loan facilitation charges, other ancillary costs incurred in connection

with borrowings other than finance costs that do not meet the definition of transaction costs.

30. Depreciation and amortization expense

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment including ROU (Note 4) 1,369.54 1,336.88
Amortization of intangible asscts (Note 5) 268.30 326.40
Total 1,637.84 1,663.28

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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31. Other expenses

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Training expenses 279.18 171.18
Uniform and kit items 204.60 163.75
Selling expenses 145.69 162.30
Administrative expenses:
Travelling and conveyance 986.99 1,027.17
Postage and telephone 290.19 280.90
Rent’ 728.64 616.65
Rates & taxes 96.13 116.73
Insurance 319.63 280.07
Repairs and maintenance:

- Buildings 10.67 12.87

- Machinery 85.84 76.87

- Others 289.12 246.16
Vehicle hire charges 187.04 171.25
Payments to auditors 55.38 38.18
Legal and professional fecs 899.68 709.28
Allowance for expected credit loss 220.55 244.82
Expense towards corporate social responsibility 36.93 31.99
Direct operating cost 9,774.92 9,684.42
Other administration and general expenses 938.36 791.26
Total 15,549.54 14,825.85

* Refer note 16

32. Earnings per share (EPS)

A reconciliation of profit for the year and equity shares used in the computation of basic and diluted earnings per equity share is set out below:

Particulars

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Parent :

Continuing operations 117.88 1,900.40
Profit attributable te equity holders of the Parent for basic earnings 117.88 1,900.40
Profit attributable to equity holders of the Parent adjusted for the effect of dilution 117.88 1,900.40
Weighted average number of equity shares for basic EPS (Numbers) 144,150,826 145,344,093
Effect of dilution:

Stock options (Numbers) 905,952 1,205,991
Weighted average number of Equity shares adjusted for the effect of dilution 145,056,778 146,550,084
Nominal value of equity shares (INR) 5.00 5.00
Earnings per share

- Basic {INR) 0.82 13.08
- Diluted (INR) 0.81 12.97

33. Distributions made and proposed
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Cash dividends on Equity shares declared and paid:

Final dividend /@ INR Nil per share (March 31, 2024: INR Nil per share)

Dividend distribution tax on proposed dividend

Proposed dividends on equity shares are subject to approval at the annual general meeting and are not recognised as a liability as at the reporting

date.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)




NR million unless stated otherwise)

34, Commitments and contingencies
(2) Capital commitment
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Particulars

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account (net of capital advances) and
not provided for

51.17

15.44

(b) Commiitinent towards forward contract/ put and call option to purchase non-controlling interests

Particulars

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Safety Direct Solutions Pty Ltd

54.25

Total

54.25

(¢) Contingent Habilities

Particulars

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Claims against the Group not acknowledged as debt:

- Litigation matters with respect to direct taxes 460.07 71131
- Litigation matters with respect indirect taxes 199.73 167.50
Other money for which the Group is contingently liable 60.70 67.81
Total 720.50 946.62

The Group is subject to various income tax proceedings arising from ments and reassessments for multiple assessment years. These primarily
relate to disallowances of expenses including belated remittances of employees” share of Provident Fund (PF) and Employees’ State Insurance (ESI)
under Section 36(1)(va), depreciation on goodwill, disallowance w/s 14A, ESOP expenses, differences between the Return of Income and Tax Audit
Report, and other disallowances under Sections 37, 43B and 68 of the Tncome-tax Act, 1961. Appeals have been filed before appropriate appellate
authorities including the Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals), Income Tax Appellate Tribunal (ITAT), and the High Court as applicable. Rectification
applications have also been submitted in relevant cases. The Group believes that it has a valid position in these matters and the likelihood of an outflow
of resources is not considered probable at this stage.

‘The Group is subject to various indirect proceedings under Service Tax, Finance Act, 1994 and Goods and Service Tax 2017 in various states. The
litigation is due to assessments and audit conducted by GST Authorities, including the cases which have been filed under appeals at different Appellate
Authorities i.e. Commissioner Appeals and CESTAT. The various issues involved are due to taxability of reimbursement of expenditure, excess claim
of input credit as per authoritics, pre-GST credit notes issued, GST payable on SEZ locations, GST liability due to incorrect computation of GSTRI vs
GSTR3B, GSTR3B vs GSTR9.

The Group records a liability when it is both probable that a loss has been incurred and the amount can be reasonably estimated. Significant judgment
is required to determine both probability and the estimated amount. The Group reviews these provisions periodically and adjusts these provisions
accordingly to reflect the impact of negotiations, settlements, rulings, advice of legal counsel, and updated information. The Group believes that the
amount or estimable range of reasonably possible loss, will not, either individually or in the aggregate, have a material adverse cffect on its business,
financial position, resuits of the Group, or cash flows with respect to loss contingencies for legal and other contingencies as at March 31, 2025.

Disputed claims against the Group, inchuding claims raised by the tax authorities (¢.g. Service tax) and which are pending in appeal /court and for which
no reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation, are not provided for in the accounts. However, the present obligation, if any, as a result
of past events with a possibility of outflow of resources, when reliably estimable, is recognised in the accounts as an expense as and when such obligation
crystallises.

35. Events occurring after the Balance Sheet date
There were no significant events that occurred after the Balance Sheet date.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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36. Segment information

The Group is currently focused on three business groups: Security Services (India), Security Services (International) and Facility Management, The
Group's organizational structure and governance processes are designed to support effective management of multiple businesses while retaining focus
on each one of them. The Operating Segments have been reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Group
Management Committee, which is the Chief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM™).

The Group operates primarily in 4 geographies, viz., India, Australia, Singapore and New Zealand. Outside India, the Group’s business consists only
of Manned Guarding and the risk and returns are similar to the business and geography in which they operate, hence segment results of these
geographics are presented as International segment. Given the risks and returns of each business and geography in India and outside India in ‘which
they operate are different, the segment results of the Group are presented geographically for each the Group’s business across India and Intcrnational
to enable better appreciation of the risks and retumns of the Group across its various businesses and geographies in which they operate.

The business groups comprise the following:
s Security Services (India) - Guarding, Electronic security and home alarm monitoring and response services

s Security Services (International) - Guarding, Mobile patrols, Emergency medical response and rescue, Loss prevention and allied services
= Facility Management — Housekeeping, Cleaning, Facility operation & management and Pest control services

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Particulars External sc:::lecrn.t Total External Sc;"ﬂ:i:t Total
Revenue
Security services — India 55,277.64 486.46 55,764.10 51,173.57 411.17 51,584.74
Security services — International 5429872 - 54,298.72 50,690.36 - 50,690.36
Facility Management 22,314.01 156.41 22,470.42 20,750.32 170.70 20,921.02
131,890.37 642.87 132,533.24 122,614.25 581.87 123,196.12
Inter.co / inter-segment elimination (642.87) (581.87)
131,890.37 122,614.25
Earning before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA)*
Security services — India 2,952.33 108.74 3,061.07 2,838.61 79.54 2,918.15
Security services - International 1,982.58 - 1,982.58 2,061.88 - 2,061.88
Facility Management 1,116.97 (117.45) 999.52 947.91 (82.87) 865.04
6,051.88 (8.71) 6,043.17 5,848.40 (3.33) 5,845.07
Inter.co / inter-segment elimination (6.12) (0.54)
6,037.05 5,844.53
Finance costs (1,605.90) (1,479.39)
Depreciation and amortisation (431.86) (1,564.27)
Other income and gains 656.86 426.67
Share of profit/(loss) from associates/joint ventures 258.28 248.87
Profit before tax reported to CODM 4,914.43 3,476.41
Other gains/ (losses) and effect of entries resulting
from consolidation and business combination (1,182.71) (101.2hH)
accounting
Impairment of goodwill (3,058.34) (656.05)
Profit before tax 673.38 2,719.15
Other information
Trade receivables 18,640.26 18,858.46
Gross debt 16,454.42 16,580.35
Net debt 4,287.34 8,893.20
Capital expenditure 1,398.80 1,535.88
*Excluding other income and other gain/(loss).
The total of non-current asscts other than tinancial instruments and deferred tax assets by geographical location:
Particulars :“Z:)czhs}]’ March 31, 2024
India 7,858.02 9,086.20
Intermational 8910.35 10,766.99
Total 16,768.37 19,853.19




SIS Limited (Formerly known as ‘SECURITY AND INTELLIGENCE SERVICES (INDIA) LIMITED?)

(All figures in INR million unless stated otherwise)

37. Business combinations and acquisition of non-controlling interests
I. Acquisition of Safety Direct Solutions Pty Ltd (‘SDS’)

On | September 2022, SIS Australia Group Pty Limited, a subsidiary of the Group acquired 85% of the voting shares of Safety Dircct Solutions Pty
Limited (SDS), a non-listed company based in Australia and New Zealand specializing in providing critical risk, medical, training and security
services o a diversified portfolio of customers comprising the defence, mining and resource sectors for cash consideration of INR 270.50 million
(AUD 4.95 million). The Group acquired SDS because of the continue building along with SMR the largest Paramedic business in Australia, and to
increase the SIS Group’s overall margin profile. Effective 11 July 2024, the Group acquired the remaining 15% of shares of SDS, Australia under the
put and call option in place as part of the share purchase agreement for a consideration of INR 32.19 million (AUD 0.58 million). As a result of this
transaction, the Group has acquired 100% ownership of the shares in SDS.

37a. Assets and Liabilities classified as held for distribution to shareholders of subsidiary
As per the Sharcholders” Agreement between SIS and the existing shareholders of SLV Security Services Private Limited (*SLV”), the Training

Center business will be transferred from the SLV to a separate legal entity (owned and controlled by Promoters), by way of slump sale under a
business transfer agreement. The assets and liabilities mentioned in the table below represent assets and liability in the training center business:

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Assets:

Advance to Suppliers 0.60 0.60
Other 1.62 1.62
Total assets classified as held for distribution to sharcholders of subsidiary 2.22 2.22
Liabilities:

Trade payable 1135 1.15
Other 1.67 1.67
Total liabilities classified as held for distribution to shareholders of subsidiary 2.82 2.82

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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SIS Limited (Formerly known as ‘SECURITY AND INTELLIGENCE SERVICES (INDIA) LIMITED?)

(All figures in INR million unless stated otherwise)

39Y. Interests in other entities

{a) Interest in joint ventures
Joint ventures

The Group holds 49% interest in SIS Cash Services Ltd., SIS Prosegur Cash Logistics Pvt. Ltd., SIS Prosegur Holdings Pvt. Ltd, SIS-Prosegur
Cash Services Pvt. Ltd and Habitat Security Pty Ltd. SIS Cash Services Ltd is holding/ultimate holding company of SIS Prosegur Cash Logistics
Pvt. Ltd., SIS Prosegur Holdings Pvt. Ltd. and SIS-Prosegur Cash Services Pvt. Ltd. The Group’s interest in these entities are accounted for using
the equity method in the consolidated financial statements.

ol .

Pl £ ° 0 A i Carrying amount
Name of entity a'ce ° ownership Relationship ceounting

business interest method Mareh 31,2025 |  March 31, 2024
SIS Cash Services Limited
(formely known as SIS Cash India 49.00% Joint venture Equity method 1,005.63 753.88
Services Private Limited)
Habitat Security Pty Ltd. Australia 49.00% Joint venture Equity method 391 3.13
Total equity accounted investments 1,009.54 757.01

The share of profits from joint ventures recognised by the Group is given below:

Aggregate amount of share of joint ventures

Joint ventures

March 31,2025 March 31, 2024

(a) Profit or loss from continuing operations 25828 248.87
(b) Other comprehensive income (2.70) (1.29)
{c) Total comprehensive income 255.58 247.58

40. Related party transactions

Note 38 above provides the information about the Group's structure.

Names of related parties

Key Management Personnel and their relatives

Joint Venture entities

Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by
group of individuals or their relatives whe have
control or significant influence over the Group

- Mr. Ravindra Kishore Sinha (Chairman)

- Mr. Rituraj Kishore Sinha (Managing Director)
- Mr. Uday Singh (Independent director)

- Mr. Arvind Kumar Prasad (Director - Finance)

- Mrs, Rita Kishore Sinha (Non-Executive Director)
- Mr. Rajan Verma (Independent Director)

- Mr. Upendra Kumar Sinha (Independent Director)

- Ms. Rivoli Sinha (Non-Executive Director)
- Mr. Sunil Srivastav (Independent director)

- Ms. Vrinda Sarup (Independent Director)
{appointed w.e.f. June 20, 2023}

June 27, 2024]

- Mr. Devesh Desai (Chief Financial Officer)*
- Ms. Pushpalatha Katkuri (Company Secretary)

- Mr. Deepak Kumar (Independent Director) [appointed w.e.f.

- Mr. Brajesh Kumar (Chief Financial Officer - India)

- SIS Cash Services Limited (formely
known as SIS Cash Services Private
Limited)

- SIS Prosegur Holdings Private Limited

- SIS Prosegur Cash Logistics Private
Limited
- SIS-Prosegur Cash Services Private
Limited

- Habitat Security Pty Lid.

- Saksham Bharat Skills Limited

- Security Skills Council India Limited
- SIS Group Enterprises Limited

- Sunrays Overseas Private Limited

- Vardan Overseas Private Limited
- SIS Asset Management Limited
- Lotus Learning Private Limited

- The Indian Public School Educational Foundation
Society

- International Institute of Security & Safety
Management

- Annapurna S.P, Sinha Welfare Activities & Social
Awareness Reforms Charitable Trust

- RSYA Dhanbad Auto Private Limited

- RSYA Durgapur Private Limited

- Adi Chitragupta Finance Limited

*On one-year sabbatical leave and step down from the position of Chief Financial Officer, effective October 1, 2024




SIS Limited (Formerly known as ‘SECURITY AND INTELLIGENCE SERVICES (INDIA) LIMITED?)

1l figures in INR million unless stated otherwise)

The following table provides the total amount of transactions that have been entered into with related parties for the relevant financial year.

Enterprises owned or
significantly influenced by
Key management . .
. . group of individuals or their
Joint venture personnel and their . Total
. . relatives whe have control or
Particulars relatives L .
significant influence over the
Group
March 31, | March 31, | March 31, | March 31, | March 31, March 31, | March 31, | Mawch 31,
2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024
ar i " sed/
Propu.ly, plant and cq}upmcnl purchased : 87 ) A 43.33 10238 4333 110
Intangible assets acquired
¢ of poods / receiving of services /
Purchase ol“_.oods receiving of services 547 150 ) A 10.47 8.75 15.94 12.25
expenses reimbursed to related parties
Sale of goods/ rendering of serviecs / 18665 | 17590 - . 118.66 12061 | 30s31] 29651
expenses reimbursed by related parties
Repayment of loans given - - - - 17.00 - 17.00 -
Redemption of investment in <
0.00 100.0 - - - - 50.
bonds/debentures > 0 50.00 100.00
Interest income on bonds or debentures or 12,13 18.54 ) } 168 170 13.81 2024
loans
Salary & remuneration paid ™ - - 109.44 9229 - - 109.44 92.29
Rent paid - - 18.87 18.34 127.52 100.74 146.39 119.08
Contribution to CSR expenditure - - - - 12.70 1841 12.70 18.44

* Post-employment benefits/other long term employee benefits are actuarially determined for the Company as a whole and hence not separately
provided. Compensation towards share based payments are being disclosed in the year of exercise of options.
# Includes sitting fees and commission paid.

Balances outstanding at end of the year

Enterprises owned or
significantly influenced hy

Key manageme: s .
<y gement group of individuals or their

Joint venture personnel and their . Total
. . relatives who have control or
Particulars relatives M- .
significant influence over the
Group
March 31, | March 31, | March 31, | March 31, March 31, March 31, | March 31, | March 31,
2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024
Trade payables / Other payables 2.31 8.74 6.97 2,50 0.68 6.80 9.96 18.04
Trade receivables / Other receivables 33.11 50.13 - - 7230 100.00 105.41 150.13
Loans to related party - - - - - 17.00 - 17.00
Investment in bonds / debentures 75.00 125.00 - - - - 75.00 125.00
Terms and conditions of tr tions with related parties

Transactions relating to dividends paid, subscription for new equity shares were on the same terms and conditions that applied to other sharcholders.

The sales to, and purchases from, rclated parties are made on normal commercial terms and conditions and at market rates. OQutstanding balances at
the year-end are unsecured and carry interest equivalent to market rate, where specified, in terms of the transactions and settlement occurs in cash.
For the year ended March 31, 2025, the Group has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties (March
31, 2024: INR Nil). This assessment is undertaken each financial year through examining the financial position of the related party and the market in
which the related party operates.

There is no allowance account for impaired receivables in relation to any outstanding balances, and no expense has been recognised in respect of
impaired receivables due from related parties.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)




stated otherwise,

Information regarding significant transactions

SIS Limited (Formerly known as ‘SECURITY AND INTELLIGENCE SERVICES (INDIA) LIMITED")

S No {Particulars

Relationship

March 31, 2625

March 31, 2024

Property, plant and equipment purchased/
a) Intangible assets acquired

RSYA Dhanbad Auto Private Limited Others* 3335 60.30

RSYA Durgapur Private Limited Others* 9.98 42.08

Sale of goods / rendering of services / expenses reimbursed by
b) related parties

SIS Cash Services Limited (formely known as SIS Cash Services

Private Limited) Joint Venture 13.86 14.57

Habitat Security Pty Ltd. Joint Venture 169.29 156.77

Security Skills Council India Limited Others* 90.47 95.43
c) Redemption of investment in bonds/debentures

SIS Cash Services Limited (formely known as SIS Cash Services

Private Limited) Joint Venture 50.00 100.00
Q) Interest income on bonds / debentures / loans given

SIS Cash Services Limited (formely known as SIS Cash Services

Private Limited) Joint Venture 12.13 18.54
€) Salary & remuneration

Ravindra Kishore Sinha KMP ** 33.00 25.27

Devesh Desai KMP ** 15.09 15.13

Rituraj Kishore Sinha KMP ** 15.73 12.77

Arvind Kumar Prasad KMP ** 7.60 7.03

Brajesh Kumar” KMP ** 10.16 8.97

Pushpalatha Katkun KMP ** 5.36 4.67

Director sitting fees KMP ** 10,60 8.90
f) Rent paid

SIS Asset Management Limited Others* 105.06 79.31
2) Contribution to CSR expenditure

Annapurna S.P, Sinha Welfare Activities & Social Awareness

Reforms Charitable Trust Others* 12.70 18.41

# Includes an amount of INR 0.89 million (March 31, 2024: Nil) towards share based payments for the options exercised during the year.
*Others represent Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by group of individuals or their relatives who have control or significant influence

over the Group.
** Key management personnel and their relatives.

The details of loans and advances as required by Schedute V of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure requirements) regulation, 2015

are given in the table below:

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Particulars Maximum amount Maximum amount
Outstanding balance cutstanding during the |O ding bal jing during the
year vear
Lotus Leaming Private Limited - 17.00 17.00 17.00
Total - 17.00 17,00 17.00

(This space has been intentionally left blank)




SIS Limited (Formerly known as ‘SECURITY AND INTELLIGENCE SERVICES (INDIA) LIMITED”)

All figures in INR million unless stated otherwise)

41. Financial risk management

‘The Group’s principal financial liabilities, comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables, and financial guarantee contracts. The main
purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Group’s operations and to provide guarantecs to support the financing of the operations of its
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates. The Group’s principal financial assets include trade and other receivables, and cash and cash equiv alents
that derive directly from its operations and loans, sceurity and other deposits

The Group’s operations expose it to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s focus is to reduce volatility in financial statements while
maintaining balance between providing predictability in the Group’s business plan along with reasonable participation in market movement. It is the
Group's policy that no trading in derivatives for speculative purposes may be undertaken.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk
mainly comprises currency risk and interest rate risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings, loans and deposits
given, FVTOCT investments and derivative financial instruments. .

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates
which arises from assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of the respective entities and foreign currency
revenuc and cash flows. The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign currency exchange rates relates primarily to the Group’s operating
activities (when revenue or expense is denominated in a foreign currency) and the Group’s net investments in foreign subsidiaries. The Group has
limited foreign currency transactions and has limited exposure to foreign currency assets and liabitities resulting in the foreign currency risk being
low.

The exchange rate between the Indian Rupec and foreign currencies has fluctuated in recent years and may continue to do so in the future,
Consequently, the results of the Group’s operations may be affected as the Indian Rupee appreciates/depreciates against these currencies.

The Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period expressed in INR are as follows:

Financial liabilitics

Particulars
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Foreign currency risk in INR
usD ' 1.50 . 1.94
EURO 0.07 0.03
Net exposure to forcign currency risk 1.57 1.97
Sensitivity
The sensitivity of profit or loss to change in the exchange rates arises mainly from foreign exchange denominated financial instruments are as follows:
Particulars Impact on profit after tax
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024
Sensitivity
Increase by 5% 0.08 0.10
Decrease by 5% (0.08) (0.10)

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk primarily arises from floating rate borrowing, including various revolving and other lines of credit. Interest rate risk is the risk that
the fair value or future cash flows of' a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

The exposure of the Group’s borrowing to interest rate changes at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Variable rate borrowings:

- Loan repayable on demand 517257 7.037.40
- Term Loans 6,482.79 7,234.83
Fixed rate borrowings

- Vehicle loan 887.80 813.79
Total 15,016.03 15,086.02

The Group’s fixed rate borrowings are carried at amortised cost. They are therefore not subject to interest rate risk as defined in
neither the carrying amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because of a change in market interest rates

Profit or loss is sensitive to higher/lower interest expense from variable rate borrowings as a result of changes in interest rates.

Ind-AS 107, since

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Interest rates - increase by 25 basis points * 29.14 3568
Interest rates - decrease by 25 basis points * (29.19) (35.68)

*Holding all other variables constant




SIS Limited (Formerly known as ‘SECURITY AND INTELLIGENCE SERVICES (INDIA) LIMITED?)
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Credit risk

Credit risk arises from the possibility that counterparties may not be able to settle their obligations as agreed resulting in a financial loss. The primary
exposure to credit risk arises from Trade receivables and Unbilled revenue (refer note 11 & 7 respectively). These are unsecured and are managed by
the Group through a system of periodically assessing the financial reliability of customers, taking into account the financial condition, current
economic trends, and analysis of historical bad debts and ageing of accounts receivables. No single customer accounted for more than 10% of the
accounts receivable as of March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024, respectively and revenues for the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024,
respectively. There is no significant concentration of credit risk. The Group uses the expected credit loss (“ECL’") method to assess the loss allowance
for Trade receivables and Unbilled revenue taking into account primarily the historical trends and analysis of bad debts. The Group does not expect
any credit risk or impairment in respect of amounts lent to its subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, if any.

The credit risk for financial assets other than bank balances and trade receivables are considered tow.

Significant estimates and judgements

Impairment of financial assets

The impairment provision for financial assets disclosed above are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates. The Group uses
Jjudgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the Group’s past history and existing market
conditions. The Group estimates loss arising on trade receivables as a percentage of sales based on past trends and such loss is directly debited to
revenue instead of creating a provision for impairment of receivables.

Financial instruments and cash deposits
Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Group’s treasury department in accordance with the Group’s policy.
Surplus funds are invested in bank fixed deposits or used to temporarily reduce the balance of cash credit accounts to optimize interest costs.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difticulty in meeting its obligations associated with financial liabilities. The Group consistently
generates sufficient cash flows from operations and has access to multiple sources of funding to meet its financial obligations and maintain adequate
liquidity for use.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank overdrafts, bank loans, debentures,
shareholder equity, and finance leases.

The below table summarises the Group’s long-term debt that will mature in less than one year based on the carrying value of borrowings reflected
in the financial statements.

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Group's long-term debt 9.843.46 8,048.62
Group’s long-term debt that will mature in less than one year from reporting period 1,273.93 5,748.12

12.94% 71.42%

The Group has assessed the concentration of risk with respect to refinancing its debt and concluded it to be low. The Group has access to a sufficient
variety of'sources of funding and significant portion of short-term debt maturing within 12 months can be rolled over with existing lenders. The Group
believes that it has sufficient working capital and cash accruals to meet its business requirements and other obligations.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments.

Year ended March 31, 2025

Particulars On demand Less thanj 3 to 12 months 1to 5 years > 5 years Total
months

Borrowings 5,172.57 364.00 1.417.66 8,983.16 - 15,937.39

Lease liabilities - 128.77 376.21 964.83 33475 1,804.56

Other financial labilities - 10,369.79 47.05 0.08 - 10,416.92

Trade payables - 820.91 - - - 820.91

Year ended March 31, 2024

Less than 3

Particulars On demand months 3 to 12 months 1to 5 years > 5 years Total
Borrowings 7,037.40 470.91 5.728.33 2,298.10 0.05 13,534.79
Lease liabilities - 125.74 384.30 1,209.30 199.32 1,918.66
Other financial liabilities - 9,582.11 68.29 4,48 - 9,654.88
Trade payables - 846.89 - - - 846.89
Contingent consideration - - 54.25 - - 54.25

As a matter of policy, the Group does not carry out any hedging activities.
There has been no default in servicing borrowings and/ or breaches in loan covenants.
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The Group has the following financial assets which are subject to the impairment requirements of Ind AS 109. On assessment of the future cash flows
arising from these assets, the Group believes that there is no provision required to be made for impairment losses on these assets.

Particulars March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Financial Assets:

[nvestments 75.00 125.00
Loans - 17.00
Other financial assets 8,526.46 8,100.19
Total 8,601.46 8,242.19

Reconciliation of liabilities whose cash flow movements are disclosed as part of financing activities in the statement of cash flows:

Year ended March 31, 2025

Finance/
. Asat April 1, Exchange As at
Bala sheet caption hfl . 14
alance sheet captio 2024 Cash flow Z:i;'ﬂs‘“lf;‘g’" translation March 31, 2025
Borrowings* 8,048.62 1,940.76 (18.87) (127.05) 9,843.46
Interest accrued 72.23 (1,468.91) 1,474.07 (0.90) 76.49
Year ended March 31, 2024
Finance/
. As at April 1 . Exchange As at
Balance sheet capt . e °
alance sheet caption 2023 Cash flow ::;;':;f:'r:" translation March 31, 2024
Borrowings* 8,568.77 (380.63) (71.24) (68.28) 8,048.62
Interest accrued 236.14 (1.405.02) 1.244.92 (3.81) 72.23

*Excluding borrowings considered as cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of statement of cash flows.
42. Additional capital disclosures

For the purpose of the Group s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium, all other equity reserves attributable to the
equity holders of the Group. The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to maximise shareholder value and support its strategies
and operating requirements. The key objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a stable capital structure with a focus
on total equity to uphold investor, creditor, and customer confidence and to ensure future development of its business. The Group determines the
capital requirement based on annual operating plans and long-term and other strategic investment plans. The funding requirements for the Group’s
operations are generally met through operating cash flows generated and supplemented by long-term and working capital borrowings from banks.

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to:

a) safeguard its ability to continue as a going concem, so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders, and '

b) maintain an optimal capital structure to optimise the cost of capital.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial
covenants to which it is subject. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders or issue new shares. The Group monitors capital using a ratio, which is Net Debt divided by EBITDA. The Group defines Net Debt
as borrowings and Iease liabilities less cash and cash cquivalents including bank balances and deposits irrespective of their duration / maturity.

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Borrowings (Note 15) 15,016.03 15,086.02
Lease liabilities (Note 16) 1,438.39 1,494.33
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 12), other bank balances and deposits (including margin money) (12,167.08) (7,687.15)
Net Debt 4,287.34 8,893.20
EBITDA 6,037.05 5,844.53
Net debt to EBITDA ratio 0.71 1.52

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Group’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it simultaneously meets financial
covenants attached to its borrowings. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings.
There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any borrowing in the current period.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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43. Additinnal regulatory disclosures

{a) Relationship with Struck off Companies:

Relationship with struck  {Naturc of

off companies transactions
Companies with outstanding balance

Name of Struck off Companies March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Bateshwarnath  Construction and  Developers
(Opc) Private Limited: Brij Packaging; Knorr-
Bremse India Private Limited; MGF Developers
Private Limited; K M Memorial Hospital and
Rescarch Centre Private Limited; B. P. Food
Products Private Limited; Koppal Steels Private
Limited; Neel Industrics P- Ltd: Protectron
Elcctromech Pyt Ltd; Rudra Alloys Privite
Limited; Sky Automobiles; CG Foods India
Private Limited; Panacea Biotec Limited;
Customers Receivables Jubilant Biosys Limited; Bennett Coleman And 0.96 9.96
Company Limited: Schwing Stetter (India),
Private Limited; Panacea Biotec Limited: Amtek
Packaging Pvt Lid; OSG India Pyt Ltd; Faith
Machines Pvt Ltd; Transtel Engineering Pyt Ltd;
Interface Microsystems; Navira Organo Private
Lid

Supplier Payable Precthi Praapthi Technicals Pvt Lid 5.61 -

C ies with Nil out: ding bal

. Innoterra Foods India Private Limited-Nadana
Customer Receivables ; L - -
Pakhanan Road Taraori Kamal

Supplier Payable Johnson Controls India Pvt. Ltd - -
(b) The disclosures required under Division I of Schedule 11T have been given to the extent applicable to the Group.
For S S Kothari Mehta & Co. LLP For and,

half of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants ; \A MJJ

Fi‘m\l’geg. no. — B007356N/N300441
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